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PR at India Infoline is all about People and Relationships. Encompassing our assets, revenue, profits, raw material,

equipment and intellectual property. 

The virtuous cycle starts with our People, who think and act like owners. 

Their empowerment and primary responsibility is to grow enduring customer Relationships. 

The driver of this relationship is the sentiment that every customer, small or big, must get PReferred customer

treatment. So that every customer feels PRivileged with this PRiority. This sentiment powers the wheels of PRogress for

the company.

This document contains forward looking statements and information. Such statements are based on our current expectations and
certain assumptions, and are, therefore, subject to certain risks and uncertainties. Should one or more of these risks or uncertainties
materialise, or should underlying assumptions prove incorrect, actual results may vary. India Infoline does not intend or assume any
obligation to update or revised these forward looking statements in light of developments, which differ from those anticipated.

All the pictures used in this document are of employees, vendors and customers of the India Infoline group and have been shot specifically for the purpose

of this document. They may not be reproduced without the explicit permission of India Infoline Ltd. © 2007- 08. India Infoline Ltd. All rights reserved.

At India Infoline, the coming together of 

People and Relationships
have made amazing things happen
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At India Infoline, the term‘PR’holds a varied significance for our diverse stakeholders.

PRobity
represents the core of 
our culture.

Our continuous growth
generates increasing 

PRofits,
which, when deployed,
sustains a virtuous cycle.

Our employees and
vendors enjoy a

PRide
of association with the
India Infoline brand.

Our

PRoven
technological expertise
helps deliver low-cost
superior service to enhance
customer experience.

Our 

PRoactive
service enables us to
deliver superior value
and in the process
delight customers.

We are committed to

PRotect
our brand and the
interests of all our
stakeholders.

To our customers, we

PRovide
a one-stop solution for
their various financial
needs.

Our pan-India

PResence
ensures that we are near
our customers to satisfy
their needs.
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PRobity
Probity1 was the name of India Infoline

when it was founded. The dictionary2

meaning of the word is honesty,

integrity, truthfulness, fairness,

uprightness and decency. 

As it turned out, the selection of this

word was not just based on a

fashionable turn of the tongue; it was

as we were and wanted to remain. 

We are pleased to state that we have

remained true to this description.

Probity continues to be our core value,

explaining why in this modern world,

when the vision of most businesses is a

singular pursuit of profit, our vision is

distinctively different. 

So it is no coincidence that India

Infoline aspires to be the most

respected company in India's financial

services space today.

PRerequisite for
growth
At India Infoline, we recognise that if

we are to stay true to our vision, we

will need to command the highest

respect from all our constituents. For

instance, our shareholders seek high

growth, our society expects the best

governance practices, our customers

need assistance in capital protection

and accretion while our employees

desire attractive career growth and

rewards. 

It gives us deep pride to state that we

have been successful in servicing the

interests of each stakeholder; the

service of your Company is second to

none across these parameters. While it

may appear that in the servicing of one

interest there could be a conflict in the

servicing of another, we have

successfully reconciled all interests

because the root driver in each has

been growth through fair means and a

fair sharing of rewards with all.

PRopeller for growth
At India Infoline, we are indeed well

placed to make this growth sustainable

for the benefit of all our stakeholders.

For one, the Company is fortunate to

be present in an industry with a strong

long-term tail wind. Besides, even as

the Indian economy is growing

annually at 8-9% in real terms, the

services sector is growing faster even as

the current penetration of financial

services in India is low. The

combination of the two realities

provides the prospect of sustained

growth for all specialised financial

services over a number of years. 

PRogressive strategy
At India Infoline, we expect to

capitalise on this industry buoyancy

through five distinctive priorities:

1. PRoximity to customers
Even as our broking is predominantly

online, we recognise that customer

proximity enhances his or her trust in

us on the one hand and enables us to

deliver superior service on the other.

We expanded our branch network from

175 to 560 during the year under

review for precisely this reason: to

ensure that whenever our customers

seek an informed, competent and

honest financial services intermediary,

an India Infoline facility will never be

far away. 

2. PRedicting precision
At India Infoline, our core business lies

in the accurate prediction of the stock

markets. While we must concede that

nobody can predict the performance of

even a stock, sector or the overall

market with any precise consistency,

we modestly claim to have

demonstrated an ability in improving

the odds and, in turn, helping our

customers better theirs. 

3. PRecise execution
Today, stocks and money worth

millions move in the form of invisible

bits through wires over various

networks. At India Infoline, we are

proud to possess cutting-edge

technology that ensures that the

customers’ money and securities are

always secure, transactions executed

with precision and customers receive all

information support – stock quotes,

charts, trade confirmation, etc. – on a

real-time basis whenever they need

them.

4. PRoactive service
The goal of a service provider is to

respond to a customer’s query with

speed, accuracy and efficiency. This is

true at India Infoline with a difference;

this responsiveness is not a goal in

itself; it represents the originating point

in our customer relationship cycle. We

recognise that it is not only important

to provide all that the customer

requires, it is also critical to provide

what he or she has been unable to

articulate as well. We are delighted to

state that this is now an essential

feature of our corporate culture, with

our trade confirmation on SMS and our

alerts on the customer's portfolio being

two of a number of relevant examples. 

5. PRocess mastery
Six years ago, India Infoline pioneered a

paradigm shift in India’s broking

industry through a voluntary reduction

in brokerage rates from 100-150 basis

points to a mere 5 basis points. This

inspired an industry wide meltdown

that made trading affordable for

millions in the history of India’s capital

market for the very first time. As an

extension, our processes have now

been perfected to not only deliver

value-for-money but also provide

precise information as well as

demonstrate superior risk control and

management – every time.

PRofits for shareholders
At India Infoline, these drivers of

strategy will ensure that we make

adequate profits for shareholders in all

markets and enhance their wealth. In

2006-07, the health of our businesses

resulted in a high ROCE (28.7%) and

ROE (29.1%), which exceeded industry

standards; besides, profits rose by 54

per cent in a volatile industry

environment.

PRemier financial
services Company
We are adequately PRepared for

unPRecedented growth through the

aggressive expansion of our PResence,

the benefits of which will now translate

into more customers and higher

revenues. 

When you take this and combine it

with a deep respect for integrity and

governance, we are inspired to

conclude that India Infoline is

attractively placed to rapidly emerge as

the premier financial services company

in India. 

Yours sincerely,

Nirmal Jain and R Venkataraman

PRomoters’ speak

We are adequately PRepared
for unPRecedented growth
through the aggressive
expansion of our PResence,
the benefits of which will
now translate into more
customers and higher
revenues.

1. Originally, this company was founded as Probity Research and Services Private Limited on October 18, 1995. The name was changed to India Infoline.com on

May 23, 2000 and subsequently to India Infoline Limited on March 23, 2001.    2. Babylon English Dictionary
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Board of directors

Mr R Venkataraman

Executive Director

Mr Sat Pal Khattar

Non-Executive Director

Mr Sanjiv Ahuja

Independent Director

Mr Kranti Sinha

Independent Director

Mr Nilesh Vikamsey 

Independent Director

Mr Nirmal Jain

Chairman and Managing Director

Mr Nirmal Jain, MBA (IIM,
Ahmedabad) and a Chartered and
Cost Accountant, founded India
Infoline Ltd. in 1995. Beginning his
career with Hindustan Lever in
1989, he successfully handled a
variety of responsibilities, including
exports and trading in agro-
commodities. 

He founded Probity Research and
Services Pvt. Ltd. (later re-christened
India Infoline) in 1995; perhaps the
first independent equity research
company in India. Mr Jain was 
one of the first entrepreneurs in
India to seize the Internet
opportunity, with the launch of
www.indiainfoline.com in 1999.

Under his leadership, the company
not only steered through the
dotcom bust and one of the worst
stock market downtrends but also
grew from strength to strength.

India Infoline has emerged as one
of the leading independent
financial services company in India,
with a significant presence in
equities broking, life insurance and
mutual funds distribution.

Mr R Venkataraman, co-

promoter and Executive Director

of India Infoline Ltd., is a B.

Tech (Electronics and Electrical

Communications Engineering,

IIT Kharagpur) and an MBA (IIM

Bangalore). He previously held

senior managerial positions in a

number of ICICI Limited group

companies, including ICICI

Securities Limited, their

investment banking joint

venture with J. P. Morgan of

USA. He has also held senior

managerial positions with BZW

and Taib Capital Corporation

Limited. He was also Assistant

Vice President with GE Capital

Services India Limited in their

private equity division,

possessing a varied experience

of more than 16 years in the

financial services sector.

As co-promoter of India Infoline,

he has been instrumental in the

company’s metamorphosis to an

internet-based platform offering

superior value to the customer.

Mr Sat Pal Khattar, Presidential

Council of Minority Rights

member, Chairman of the Board

of Trustee of Singapore Business

Federation, is also a life trustee

of SINDA, a non profit body,

helping the under-privileged

Indians in Singapore. Mr Khattar

is a Director of public and

private companies in Singapore,

India and Hong Kong; Chairman

of Guocoland Limited listed in

Singapore and its parent Guoco

Group Ltd listed in Hong Kong,

a leading property company of

Singapore, China and Malaysia.

Mr Khattar is also the Chairman

of the Khattar Holding Group of

Companies with investments in

Singapore, India, UK and across

the world.

Mr Sanjiv Ahuja, Certified

Public Accountant (CPA), Board

member of Singapore Indian

Chamber of Commerce and

Industry possesses a 16-years

corporate experience; a

Singapore Grassroots

organisations member he has a

rich experience of over a decade

in handling private equity deals

of India and Singapore. He also

possesses 10-years real estate

investment experience with

applicable legal, accounting and

regulatory aspects. Currently an

executive director with a

Singapore M&A outfit and

director of his own India-centric

investment advisory firm, Mr

Ahuja is also on the board of

directors of various publicly

listed and private limited

companies. 

Mr Kranti Sinha completed his

Masters from the Agra University

and started his career as a Class I

officer with Life Insurance

Corporation of India. He served as

the Director and Chief Executive of

LIC Housing Finance Limited from

August 1998 to December 2002

and concurrently as the Managing

Director of LICHFL Care Homes (a

wholly owned subsidiary of LIC

Housing Finance Limited). He

retired from the permanent cadre

of the Executive Director of LIC;

served as the Deputy President of

the Governing Council of

Insurance Institute of India and as

a member of the Governing

Council of National Insurance

Academy, Pune apart from various

other such bodies. Mr Sinha is

also on the board of directors of

various publicly listed companies.

Mr Nilesh Vikamsey, a practising

Chartered Accountant and partner

(Khimji Kunverji & Co., Chartered

Accountants), a member firm of

HLB International, headed the

audit department till 1990 and

thereafter also handles financial

services, consultancy,

investigations, mergers and

acquisitions, valuations etc; an

ICAI study group member for

Proposed Accounting Standard –

30 on Financial Instruments –

Recognition and Management,

Finance Committee of The

Chamber of Tax Consultants

(CTC), Law Review, Reforms and

Rationalization Committee and

Infotainment and Media

Committee of Indian Merchants’

Chamber (IMC) and Insurance

Committee and Legal Affairs

Committee of Bombay Chamber

of Commerce and Industry (BCCI). 

Mr Vikamsey is a director of

Miloni Consultants Private

Limited, HLB Technologies

(Mumbai) Private Limited and

Chairman of HLB India.
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PRobity forms the core of our  culture

‘‘People find stock market jobs highly
stressful. But with India Infoline, I have
never felt so. The atmosphere is very
relaxed and friendly; it’s just like home.
The camaraderie that I share with my
colleagues and the ease and freedom of
interaction with my superiors is
something which I cherish a lot.’’
Janvi Nagrecha
Team Manager, India Infoline

‘‘Our entire system had to be
developed in-house because the
kind of system and technology we
wanted to provide to our customers
was simply not available off-the-
shelf. Looking back, our system and
technology has, in fact, become our
biggest competitive advantage.’’
S. Sriram
Chief Technology Officer, India Infoline

‘‘There are times when, for critical
projects, I am required to work late
hours or even weekends. But I do it out
of choice and not out of compulsion. I
know that I am making a difference and
so the best part is that I enjoy it.’’
Utkarsh Prajapati
Project Manager (IT), India Infoline

‘‘In stock markets, where so much
money changes hands every moment, it
is very easy for a person or company to
get misled. What I like and appreciate
about India Infoline is its honesty and
uprightness in operations. Any activity
which hints at a slightly non-ethical
leaning is not tolerated at all.’’
Deepa Shetty
Relationship Officer, India Infoline
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THE VISION OF INDIA INFOLINE IS TO

EMERGE AS THE MOST RESPECTED

FINANCIAL SERVICE PROVIDER IN

INDIA. 

This vision is not a pipe-dream; it is

supported by a culture that comprises

belief in ethics, transparency in process

and commitment to compliance; it is

reinforced by a respect for someone

else’s precious life-time resources; it is

prioritised by a willingness to let an

opportunity pass rather than

compromise one’s ethics; it is extended

by a compliance across all managerial

levels.

Compliance 
India Infoline is present in a highly

regulated business warranting multiple

statutory compliances across its

different business segments. The

Company has responded to this critical

ongoing need through the institution

of a strong compliance team headed by

a Chief Compliance Officer with a

previous working experience at SEBI for

13 years. 

India Infoline's various enlistments

comprise the following: 

Registration with BSE and NSE for

the broking business

Registered with CDSL and NSDL as a

depository participant 

Registered with SEBI for portfolio

management and investment banking 

Registered with AMFI for the

distribution of mutual funds

Registered with FMC, MCX, NCDEX

and DGCX for the commodity broking

business 

Registered with RBI as an NBFC 

Registered with IRDA for insurance

services 

The Company ensures that it complies

with the requirements of all the

regulatory bodies governing its various

businesses through the following

initiatives:

A comprehensive compliance system

that extends from client identification,

transaction execution, transaction

settlement and transfer of funds and

securities

A rigorous compliance with ‘Know

Your Customer’ (KYC) documentation,

which is required to be mandatorily

filled by customers with all supporting

documents (specifically proof of

identity, residential address, financial

status, PAN number and bank details),

without which no customer account

can be activated 

A segregated activation process

marked by internal control where one

person captures the data, another

verifies it and a third uploads it,

ensuring data and documentation

integrity 

Comprehensive Branch Compliance

Manuals providing guidance across

branch operations from office

administration, regulatory

requirements, trading terminals, NCFM

certifications, Board of Conduct and

client management

Sending confirmation following

successful trade execution; digital

contract notes are sent to clients by 

e-mail at the end of the day’s trading

Operation of trading terminals only

by NCFM-certified personnel; the

provision of dedicated software

certified by exchanges to all branches

and Internet-based customers

Only client account receipts and

payments without third party

intermediation (in strict compliance

with SEBI guidelines), minimising room

for money laundering  

A rigorous internal and concurrent

audit covering the entire gamut of

functioning provides assurance of

complete adherence

Complete assumption of the

statutory compliance responsibilities by

the senior management. Quarterly

generation of compliance reports by

department heads, placed before the

Audit Committee and Board for review;

submission of periodic reports to

regulatory bodies as per requirement 

The institution of a dedicated

grievances cell at www.indiainfoline.com

for the benefit of clients and regulatory

agencies, monitored by a compliance

team and attended to within a week

Diligent compliance with RBI

regulatory requirements for the NBFC

business through KYC documentation

and adherence to prudential norms

Compliance with IRDA guidelines

across the insurance business 

The result of this inflexible compliance

discipline has been freedom from

controversy. India Infoline has never

been reported for any major violation

or penalty by any regulatory body in its

existence. This robust compliance

facilitates rapid scaling up of the

Company’s business, improves public

confidence and enhances customer

trust. 

PRohibited behaviour

‘No’ to unfair or ad hoc policies, be they for customers or employees

‘No’ to cutting corners, to policies that may be legal but not fair

‘No’ to hidden charges

‘No’ to unethical suppliers

‘No’ to poor quality in the pursuit of instant results

‘No’ to short-term stop-gap alternatives

‘No’ to using legal loopholes to ensure our sole benefit

’No’ to tax evasion

‘No’ to a circumvention of any law of the land

‘No’ to sub-standard service

The Company has never been
reported for any major violation,
or penalty by any regulatory body
in its existence.
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Parameters 2006-07 2005-06 Growth (%)

Income from operations 4,160.9 2,134.3 95.0

Equities broking 2,313.5 1,427.0 62.1

Life Insurance distribution 592.9 215.9 174.6

Commodities broking 120.3 41.3 191.3

Funding and investment 281.8 46.9 500.9

Online media, research and content 645.1 200.6 121.6

Mutual funds etc distribution 150.1 199.9 (25)

Other income 96.4 46.4 107.8

EBIDTA 1,412.3 868.8 62.6

Profit after tax 756.2 489.3 54.5

Cash profit 905.4 574.9 57.5

Earnings per share (Rs) 16.3 11.5 41.9

Cash E.P.S. (Rs) 19.5 12.7 53.9

Dividend per share (Rs) 3.0 3.0 –

Net worth 3,250.9 1,942.6 67.3

Capital employed 5,067.7 3,746.1 35.3

Financial highlights (consolidated) (Rs mn)

THE COMPANY, LISTED ON THE BSE

AND NSE, RECOGNISES THAT IT IS IN

BUSINESS TO ENHANCE THE VALUE OF

THE HOLDINGS OF ITS SHAREOWNERS.

India Infoline is attractively placed to do

so as is evident from its performance: 

A 95 per cent increase in net

revenues to Rs 4,257.3 mn in 2006-07,

mainly on account of higher broking

and insurance income; broking income

doubled and WAPI trebled 

A 55 per cent increase in profit after

tax to Rs 7,56.2 mn in 2006-07;

earning per share was Rs 16.3 as on

March 31, 2007 and CEPS Rs 19.54

An EBIDTA of Rs 1,412.3 mn and

EBIDTA margin of 33.2 per cent in

2006-07 

A Rs 569.3 mn investment in the

Company’s expansion, the benefits of

which will be achieved only during

2007-08 

An increase in the Company’s market

capitalisation from Rs 80 billion as at

March 31, 2006 to Rs 168 billion as at

March 31, 2007, translating into an

increase in shareholder value 

An interim dividend of Rs 3 per share

paid for 2006-07
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PRide
AT INDIA INFOLINE, RAPID BRANCH

EXPANSION WARRANTED RAPID

HEADCOUNT RAMP-UP: FROM 4,150

IN 2005-06 TO 11,750 IN 2006-07.

To elevate this growing employee

population to the required

competence, the Company focused on

human resource development. To

ensure the right recruitment fit –

cultural and technical – the Company

introduced a three-day common

admission programme covering training

in culture, values and the Company’s

businesses. Following this, the trainees

are examined through a formal

examination; only successful candidates

are inducted. Our stringent recruitment

procedure ensures that we get best

quality people.

The rapid rollout of branches reflected

the Company’s project management

skills. In keeping with the ‘Owner

Mindset’ credo, the selected employees

were empowered to assume control of

new branches – from location selection

to suitable recruitment to proactive

decision making to responsible location

leadership. The Company’s training also

emphasised on leadership at the

individual and managerial levels. 

As an ongoing practice, the Company

measured employee competence

through internal tests, plugging gaps

through technical and behavioural

training. The presence of diverse

business segments provided a wider

career choice for employees.

A culture of informal communication

reinforced a constructive workplace

environment; seniors continued to be

easily accessible, promoting frequent

interaction and quicker problem

resolution. A two-way communication

was strengthened through the 

prudent use of the corporate

intranet.

A culture of meritocracy facilitated

performance evaluation and rewards.

An ESOP scheme enhanced a culture of

emotional ownership leading to

superior performance.

To manage growth in a responsible

way, the Company strengthened its

senior management team through the

induction of a Chief Financial Officer,

Chief Compliance Officer, Chief

Operating Officer and Chief Internal

Auditor, during the year.

in being associated with India Infoline

‘‘India Infoline understands not only how markets
operate but also how opinion is formed and how it
can be influenced in an exploding media
environment. The management's credo is ‘investor
first', hence our key mandate is to focus on investor
education and credible communication. It is very
refreshing to work with someone who has such
clarity.’’
Kavita Lakhani
Vice President, LINOpinion - The Lintas Public Relations Division

‘‘ICICI Prudential Life and India Infoline joined hands
six years ago with the common vision to take
modern life insurance solutions to individuals across
the country. We’re delighted that over these years,
our partnership has grown from strength to strength
to become one of the most successful alliances in
the life insurance segment. In the coming years, we
look forward to reach greater heights.’’
Tarun Chugh & Vineet Arora
Chief & Sr. V.P. – Bancassurance and Alliances

‘‘We look at customer service like treating
guests at home. Though we have rules and
regulations about how problems are to be dealt
with and issues sorted out; we encourage our
people to go out of the way to make sure that
the clients are taken care of. This is the secret
behind the smiling faces of our customers.’’
Manjiri Apte
Head – Customer Service, India Infoline

‘‘I have been with India Infoline for nine years;
right from the time when we used to operate
from one office with 20 people till now, when
we have over 550 branches and about 11,000
employees. It has been a tremendous learning
experience for me and a matter of great pride.’’
Suchit Chavan
Associate Vice-President, 
Venue and Direct Marketing, India Infoline
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PRoviding one-stop solutions

‘‘When I want to buy shares, I go to
India Infoline. When I want to take a
position in commodities, I go to India
Infoline. To buy an insurance policy, I
go to India Infoline. To raise a home
loan, I go to India Infoline. Their
product offerings are so diverse that it
is like one Company in place of five.’’
Anita Menezes

‘‘In a world where knowledge means
money, India Infoline is my trusted
information provider for real-time
quotes, live intra-day tick-by-tick charts,
historical charts, stock market updates,
price alerts, daily SMS alerts and even
my updated ledger balance. I get what I
want and more!’’
Divyakumar Raval

‘‘My relationship with India Infoline is
unlike a typical broker-client relationship,
it is more like a partnership. My
Relationship Manager, who is more like
my friend, helps me out with everything.
He has a feel for the stock markets and
helps me spot winners in the market. Me
and India Infoline, we make a great
team.’’
Beena Shah

‘‘At India Infoline, the small investor is not
an outcast. For instance, I get the same
research report that a large corporate
client does. So, India Infoline to me,
stands for a level playing field.’’
Hemant Patel
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PRemier
financial services player

Corporate Structure*

(Post-merger with India Infoline Securities Pvt. Ltd.)

India Infoline Limited

Member of BSE and NSE and NSDL and CDSL

Portfolio management services

Investment banking

*The above chart depicts only the major subsidiaries of the Company. Other subsidiaries include India Infoline Housing Finance Limited; India Infoline Commodities,

DMCC, Dubai  and Moneyline Credit Private Limited  

India Infoline
Insurance
Services Ltd.

Life Insurance

Corporate

agent of ICICI

Prudential Life

Insurance Co.

Ltd. (Will

discontinue,

once IIBL

commences

operations)

India Infoline
Distribution
Co. Ltd.

Mobilisation of

retail

investments in 

Mutual funds

(Mutual Funds

shifted to IIL

from 2007-08)

RBI bonds,

Small savings

Distribution of

home loan

products 

India Infoline
Commodities
Pvt. Ltd.

Commodity

broking

Member of

MCX, NCDEX

and DGCX

(through a

subsidiary of IIL)

India Infoline
Investment
Services Pvt.
Ltd.

Financing

against security

Investment

and trading

India Infoline
Insurance
Brokers Ltd.

Insurance

broking

Applied for a

licence with

IRDA

India Infoline
Media and
Research
Services Ltd

Content related

services

Online media

Research

IN MODERN-DAY INDIA, THERE HASN’T

JUST BEEN A SIGNIFICANT INCREASE IN

DISPOSABLE INCOME AND SAVINGS;

THERE HAS ALSO BEEN A PROGRESSIVE

DIVERSIFICATION IN FINANCIAL NEEDS

AND ASPIRATIONS.

There is also an increasing sophistication

and variety in the financial services

available. While people work hard to

derive financial rewards, they need

expert advisors to ensure sustained

financial security and wealth creation.

India Infoline’s core competence in this

space is driving its emergence as the

PRemeir financial services player in

India.

India Infoline has been positioned as a

trusted advisor and not just a

transaction handler. Its value

proposition is powered by the diverse

availability of products complemented

by personalised attention; its need for

rapid growth is complemented with a

priority to put stakeholder interest first. 

In view of this, India Infoline is present in some of the fastest growing segments in India’s financial services space.

Equity and commodity broking

Portfolio management and wealth advisory services

Investment banking

Corporate agency of life insurance products  

Distribution of mutual funds, fixed deposits, RBI bonds, small savings products

Distribution of personal loans and mortgages

To service customer interests most effectively, India Infoline structured its businesses into various subsidiaries with the twin

objectives of:

Effective compliance with the demanding regulatory requirements of each business

Enhanced focus on each business as a strategic business unit, leading to sustainable growth

During the year under review, the

Company merged subsidiary India

Infoline Securities Pvt Ltd (engaged in

equity broking, portfolio management

and investment banking) with itself.

Going ahead, the merger will

strengthen the Company’s net worth as

well as its retail-cum-institutional equity

brokerage businesses. The higher post-

merger net worth of the Company will

also enhance the Company’s

transparency and confidence within the

investor community.

The Company has been positioned as
a trusted advisor. Its value proposition
is powered by the diverse availability
of products complemented by
personalised attention.
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Equities broking 
and related income 

54.3%
contribution to 
total revenues

Membership on the Bombay Stock Exchange Limited

and the National Stock Exchange

Registered with the NSDL and CDSL as a depository

participant

Broking services in cash and derivative segments

Customised terminals for online broking – Investor

Terminal for retail investors and Trader Terminal for

regular traders and sub-brokers

Also offers portfolio management services and

wealth advisory services

Enhanced branch presence from 175 in 2005-06

to 560 in 2006-07

Improved focus in portfolio management

services. Assets Under Management of Rs 550 mn

as at March 31, 2007 

84 per cent growth in average daily turnover to

Rs 8,500 mn

60 per cent growth in PBIT 

Increase in registered clients to 150,000 

Retail broking retains significant potential. Managed assets in India expected to grow

by 22% per annum and touch $1 trillion-plus by 2015 (source: Boston Consultancy

Group)

India’s low penetration in financial products remains a growth driver in retail broking.

Only 5.5 mn demat accounts in a country of 1.1 billion indicates vast under-penetration

Increase in online trading (NSE) by 100% a year over the last five years

Technology is now not just an enabler but a differentiator in retail broking 

India Infoline’s robust technology platform is a competitive advantage 

Life Insurance

13.9%
contribution to 
total revenues

Corporate agent for ICICI Prudential’s life insurance

products

Insurance portfolio de-risks from an overdependence

on broking and equity-centric revenues

Applied for a licence to enter insurance broking

across general and life insurance categories

More than trebled the weighted annualised

premium income from Rs 110 mn in 2005-06 to Rs

360 mn

175 per cent growth in revenues to Rs 592.9 mn

111 per cent growth in PBIT  

Increase in coverage to 150,000 lives

Life insurance business growing rapidly but premiums still contributed less than 2%

of the country's GDP (5% to 10% in developed countries)

Life insurance market in India expected to rise to US$ 20 billion in four years from

less than US$ five billion today 

Total life insurance premiums grew 41% in 2005-06 to nearly $8 billion; non-life

premiums grew 16% to about $4.4 billion 

Only 22% of the insured population in India enjoy a life-cover; most not covered

adequately 

More than 40% of Indian insurance consumers perceive it as a savings product; only

20% buy insurance to hedge death risk 

India’s rapid economic growth, increasing disposable income, growing awareness

and rising need for product variants driving insurance sector growth 

India Infoline has applied for broking license from IRDA, which is expected shortly

Commodities
broking

2.8%
contribution to 
total revenues

Membership with the MCX and NCDEX, leading

Indian commodity exchanges

Acquired membership of DGCX (Dubai Gold

Commodity Exchange), growing its NRI-centric business

Among select Indian financial intermediaries to offer

commodity broking to retail investors

Income stream a contra-cyclical alternative to equity

broking, a complete solution for corporate clients

Enhanced presence through increase in number of

branches to 156 (96 in 2005-06)

Activated 60 new franchisees 

Increase in market share from 0.73 per cent to

1.34 per cent 

208 per cent growth in volumes 

191.1 per cent growth in revenues to Rs 120.3 mn

115 per cent growth in PBIT 

Increase in registered clients to 4000 

New commodities research desk to provide

fundamental, technical and daily reports

India’s commodity derivatives segment grew nearly 71% in 2006-07. India still

remain a nascent commodities trading market 

India’s commodity markets report an average daily turnover of Rs 120-150 billion

Trading velocity still low in global comparison. Greater penetration will drive volume

growth

Commodities broking is a high volume business with the potential to generate

significant revenues for the government, inspiring win-win regulation

The Company is leveraging its pan-national branch presence to expand its

commodities broking    business 

Overview Highlights, 2006-07 Outlook Key two-year graphs (Revenue)

India Infoline’s businesses: A snapshot
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Distribution of
mutual funds and
other fixed interest
bearing products

3.5%
contribution to 
total revenues

Distributor of mutual fund schemes for all leading

fund houses, widening the product basket

In-depth knowledge of every scheme, resulting in

customised advice 

Offline distribution supplemented with online

distribution of mutual funds 

Distributor of RBI bonds, fixed deposits and small

saving schemes

25 per cent decline in revenues to Rs 150.1 mn,

primarily due to fewer New Fund Offerings (NFOs)

during the year. Business expected to rebound in

the current year

Leveraged nationwide branch infrastructure to

enter new markets

Assets under management for the mutual fund industry nearly doubled in two

years to Rs 3,53,300 crore 

Market for MFs expected to touch $520 billion in 10 years

40% of growth in equity broking derived through MFs 

Under-penetrated sector; MF investments estimated at only 8% of GDP

Can potentially provide higher returns than traditional savings instruments

(fixed deposits and bonds); relatively stable, balancing risk and reward

India Infoline intends to capitalise on this growing demand

Distribution of
personal loans

0.68%
contribution to 
total revenues

Entered the business through the acquisition of

Moneytree Consultancy Services in 2005-06

The business completes the Company’s portfolio of

retail financial products   

Distributed loans amounting to Rs 1.73 billion 

Activated 11 new branches

Increasing debt-based consumption in India driving personal loan demand

India’s share of consumer loans remains 10 per cent of GDP (as against 100 per

cent in most developed countries)

India Infoline will distribute personal loan products through a prudent leverage

of its pan-national infrastructure  

Online media and
research

15.2%
contribution to 
total revenues

Critical support service to other businesses through

quality content, industry characteristics, trends, market

news, statistics, company and economy analysis,

historical data and commodities database

Revenue generator through the sale of

advertisements on the Company’s website and content

sale to Indian and global financial / media houses 

Website adjudged “...a must read for investors in

South Asia” by Forbes

221.5 per cent growth in revenues to 

Rs 645.1 mn

135 per cent growth in PBIT 

Online trading remains one of the fastest growing industry segments; accounts

for almost 12% of the overall market; growing Internet penetration driving

growth 

Internet advertising expected to post the highest CAGR of 43 per cent, rising

from current Rs 1.6 billion to Rs 9.5 billion in 2010

India emerging as the ninth largest online population outpacing U.S., China

and Japan (source: ComScore Networks)

Estimated 32 mn Indians enjoyed Internet exposure till 2006. While 59 mn

Indians PC-literate and still growing

Financing and
investment

6.6%
contribution to 
total revenues

NBFC licence from the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) 

Offers margin-funding facility to the broking

customers

500 per cent growth in revenues to Rs 282 mn

315 per cent growth in PBIT

Continued buoyancy in stock markets provides optimism

Under-penetrated market in terms of access to credit

Large network of branches allows better access to Tier II and Tier III cities

Overview Highlights, 2006-07 Outlook

20
05

-0
6

20
06

-0
7

28
1.

8

46
.9

00
.0

20
04

-0
5

20
05

-0
6

20
06

-0
7

64
5.

1

20
0.

6

63
.8

20
04

-0
5

20
05

-0
6

20
06

-0
7

28
.9

2.
4

00
.0

20
04

-0
5

20
05

-0
6

20
06

-0
7

15
0.

1

19
9.

9

11
7.

7
20

04
-0

5

Key two-year graphs (Revenue)

(Rs mn)

(Rs mn)

(Rs mn)

(Rs mn)



22
 >

 2
3 

In
di

a
In

fo
lin

e
>

 P
ro

gr
es

s 
Re

po
rt

 0
6-

07

PResence from 175 to 560  branches

‘‘At India Infoline, training is
viewed very seriously and receives
a lot of top management time
and attention. The training
sessions are very interactive and
each session provides crucial
inputs for the next. In fact, I have
learnt a lot during the course of
imparting training.’’
Swati Baranwal
Training Manager, India Infoline

‘‘Our endeavour to achieve operational
excellence is a continuous activity. To save
costs, we do not cut corners but innovate
and use technology effectively.’’
Mukesh Singh
Chief Operating Officer, India Infoline

‘‘Working as a partner with India Infoline
needs constant reinvention of targets.
You never really meet an organisation
growing at such a speed in terms of size,
dimension or acumen. India Infoline has
managed to remain incredibly nimble, in
spite of its large size.’’
Suniti Ghoshal
Yellow Submarine

‘‘Matching India Infoline's fast-paced
growth over the years has become
increasingly a tougher job. But their
unflinching insistence on 100 per cent
uptime for all the mission-critical
applications has taught us a lot and
enabled us to improve our own skills
to a great extent.’’
Sharad Sanghi
Managing Director & CEO, Netmagic
Solutions Pvt Ltd
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Expansion strategy
A WIDE AND DEEP DISTRIBUTION

NETWORK IS CRITICAL FOR SUCCESS

ON THE RETAIL SIDE OF THE

COMPANY’S FINANCIAL

INTERMEDIATION BUSINESS. TO

STRENGTHEN ITS COMPETITIVE

POSITION, THE COMPANY EXPANDED

ITS BRANCH NETWORK FROM 170 TO

560 BRANCHES.

Even as these new branches accounted

for 70 per cent of the Company’s total

family of branches, they contributed

only 20 per cent to its business during

the year under review. Going ahead,

the Company expects to scale up

revenues corresponding to its extensive

footprint. 

The effectiveness of branch expansion is

being derived through the offer of

multiple products. India Infoline

leverages its existing infrastructure

across all its businesses – equity and

commodity broking on the one hand

and the distribution of insurance,

mutual funds, personal loans and fixed

interest bearing instruments on the

other. This multi-functionality has

helped enhance branch productivity

and cost reduction.

The aggressive expansion in branch

network in 2006-07 was conducted on

the basis of the findings of market

surveys, which established the city and

town locations as high-growth as well

as high-opportunity. For instance, the

Company’s branches were established

in pockets popularised by the presence

of successful brokers and private

insurance companies.

The Company’s 385-branch expansion

resulted in the development of over

220,000 square feet – from Shillong in

the north-east to Dwarka in the west

and from Jammu in the north to

Nagercoil in the south – within just six

months. The expansion covered large

cities and small towns. 

An expansion as vast and as fast

created its own challenges. To optimise

the cost of this expansion, the

Company centralised the sourcing of

furniture and IT hardware through

select vendors; the décor of the

branches was standardised; the

recruitment process was decentralised

and the local managers were

empowered to recruit the right people

for their teams. To manage the 

large-scale branch roll-out, the

Company followed a phased

commissioning methodology. As a

result, all branches were operational 

by January 2007. 

Alliance with Bank of
Baroda
India Infoline recognised the

importance of widening and deepening

its market position beyond the

traditional customer acquisition mode.

The Company firmed up a strategy to

enter into non-competing alliances with

companies already enjoying established

distribution networks with the 

objective to plug immediately into an

available one. 

In 2006-07, the Company entered into

an alliance with Bank of Baroda. It will

provide the bank’s 26 mn nationwide

depositors – across 2,708 branches in

India and 42 outlets abroad – with the

benefit of a one-stop investment

solution. The complement of a

brokerage platform, insightful research

and ongoing analysis by India Infoline

will enable the bank’s numerous

customers to participate directly 

in the Indian stock market 

revolution. 

These account holders will enjoy the

option of trading in equity shares

online or offline on the NSE or BSE in

the cash and derivative segments. They

will also enjoy a seamless benefit in

depositing cheques, automatic

updation of the broker ledger of the

client and setting trading limits

immediately. To facilitate competent

service, India Infoline will manage a

counter within various BOB retail

locations. 

Multiple marketing
channels
Besides the direct customer acquisition

route, the Company explored

alternative marketing channels. For

instance, it created more than 300

active alternate channel partners/sub-

brokers in mutual funds, investment

products, loans, commodities and

equity broking. 

Meanwhile, the direct marketing

channel targeted customer acquisitions

in the area of online products; it

leveraged the alliance route with BOB.

The creation of dedicated HNI desks

and private client groups helped market

to institutional and high net worth

individual clients supported by

relationship managers.   

India Infoline employs the venue

marketing concept to drive its

insurance business. It has tied up with

venue operators who invite customers

for seminars followed by a presentation

on insurance.

India Infoline’s Taxpert channel made it

possible for large corporates to

commission India Infoline desks that

advised employees in the area of tax

planning, generating attractive revenues.

Middle East foray 
With India emerging as an attractive

investment destination, the Company

intends to leverage its robust Internet-

enabled platform and India-focused

research across countries with a large

Indian expatriate population.

Concurrent to an expanding Indian

presence, the Company is also raising its
exposure in the Middle East. In the
Middle East, the Company provides all
services comprising equities/commodity
broking, portfolio management and
wealth advisory services. The Company
created a franchisee in Kuwait, a
country with a significant regional
trading economy, large expatriate
population, favourable demography
and consumption pattern. The
Company expects to provide the full
gamut of its financial services in Kuwait
to facilitate hassle-free investing.

Besides, the Company’s membership of
the Dubai Gold Commodity Exchange
(DGCX) is expected to accelerate
business opportunities; it will offer a
global commodity trading opportunity
to Indians as and when the market
opens up. 

New logo
During the year under review, the

Company gradually phased out its

5paisa.com logo and strengthened

focus on a common brand – India

Infoline – positioning it around strong

research, still an effective differentiator.

The Company's logo underwent a

metamorphosis to enhance a feel of

institutional solidity retaining the brand

line and colours to preserve the brand

connect.

The Company’s 385-branch
expansion resulted in the
development of over 220,000
square feet within just six months.

5 paisa.com merges with the big fish of financial solutions - India Infoline.
5 paisa.com had started a revolution by lowering brokerage charges drastically.
Now, India Infoline starts the next revolution, aided by in-depth research and technology.
Log on to www.indiainfoline.com to experience ‘cutting-edge e-broking’.
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PRoven expertise in technology

‘‘An active trader like me would
normally need a full-time accountant.
India Infoline plays that role and
much more. It maintains my saudas
and ledger balance in real time,
accessible with a mere click of a
button. Not just this, I even get
amazing advice on the market as
well!’’
Parag Raichura

‘‘Thanks to India Infoline’s prompt SMS
on the movement of my stocks, I
invested at the right time and made an
attractive profit.’’
Sandhya Garg

‘‘With India Infoline, investing in Mutual
Funds has become a breeze. I view
details of all mutual fund schemes
online, compare them with various
product offerings, make my choice,
download application forms from its
portal and finally submit it online. All in
five minutes.’’
Rupa Shah

‘‘I placed an order with India Infoline
from my mobile en route to the office.
When I reached my office I decided to
place another order through the internet
terminal. What surprised me is that my
position had already been updated in
the interim. Now, that’s quick!’’
Bipin Rastogi
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AT INDIA INFOLINE, WE WERE AMONG

THE EARLIEST TO RECOGNISE HOW

TECHNOLOGY COULD COMPLETELY

ALTER THE DYNAMICS OF OUR

BUSINESS.

To make this a reality, we made our

biggest investment in the area of

technology, not just for technology’s

sake, but in how it could fundamentally

enhance the investor experience. 

More specifically, the Company’s use of

technology extended the trading facility

from a broker’s office to the customers’

residence or office desktop. The locus

of control of trading thus shifted from

the broker to the customer. In doing

so, India Infoline played a pioneering

role in the reduction of intermediation

costs to its lowest level; this helped

widen the market and accelerate the

growth of the equity cult in India. The

Company launched the superior and

advanced version of its trading

platform called TT Advanced™.

TT Advanced™ is a comprehensive

trading tool, with superior charting and

analytical capabilities, that provides

users a simple, intuitive and blazing

fast trading environment. This is

achieved through load balancing

capabilities built into its architecture.

Users can receive real-time quotes and

news, watch their current portfolio,

conduct technical analysis of price

charts, identify top gainers/losers or

scrips reporting a sudden jump in

volumes, etc. 

Features:
Simple and reliable, yet extremely

fast and secure 

Tick watch/ Market watch analysis to

identify scrips with momentum 

Quick order entry 

Quick order modification/

Cancellation 

Quick position square-off 

Advanced charting options and

technical analysis tools

One-click historical charts

To sustain the edge derived from its

first-mover advantage, the Company

continued to invest in the development

of advanced trading infrastructure

comprising best-of-breed servers and

switches. This made it possible for the

Company’s clients to place orders and

receive immediate confirmations. The

integration of the Company’s

technology-driven trading platform into

its proprietary risk management system

enabled trading volumes to be scaled

up without a corresponding increase in

related default risk. 

The Company’s front-office software

was seamlessly integrated to in-house

back office and MIS software. This

made it possible for the back-office

system to handle a significant increase

in the volume of data without

compromising the speed of response to

its external customers.

India Infoline’s technology

infrastructure helped provide superior

service. Its engagement of Avaya and

Nortel resulted in superior IVR

solutions; its home-grown customer

relationship management system

enhanced service flexibility; its

innovation facilitated prompt credits for

pay-ins, prompt responses to pay-out

requests and an almost instantaneous

response for password resets; its SMS

engine provided customers with

frequent alerts related to their

investments, net positions and debit

balances. 

The Company provides all relevant

information online to its clients, their

Relationship Managers, branches and

area offices. Most of the Company’s

branches are connected to the head

office through VSATs and it is currently

implementing an MPLS network that

will connect more locations. This inter-

connectivity will enable the Company

to run all its software across a WAN

network, enhancing data traffic security

on the one hand, while converging

voice and video conferencing.

India Infoline invested in technology to

enhance internal communications as

well. The Company’s intranet portal

provides secure employee access and

relevant information. The intranet

serves as an organisational repository of

policies, procedures and circulars; it

also enables the online posting of

employee job description/key result

areas, appraisal, salary details and

appointment/increment letters.

The Company recognises the criticality

of information security and has

incorporated two factor authentication

techniques before permitting secure

access. It has invested heavily in the

deployment of information security

best practices and is also engaged in

obtaining an ISO 27001 certification.

India Infoline possesses a dependable

back-up with offline data storage,

facilitating timely recovery from any

disaster. It is also in the process of

implementing a business continuity

plan, comprising the proposed

commissioning of a disaster recovery

site with online data replication.

Though this initiative will involve

significant investments, it will de-risk

the business from unexpected acts of

man or nature.

The Company recognises the
criticality of information security
and is therefore engaged in
obtaining an ISO 27001
certification.
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PRotect interests of all stakeholders 

‘‘The respect for the India Infoline
brand in the outside world makes me
feel proud to be a part of it. This
gives me that extra passion which
ensures that not even the slightest
compromise is made in the quality of
my work.’’
Gandhali Salvi
Graphic Designer, India Infoline

‘‘The management does not say ‘do this’ or ‘do
that’. It provides me with the freedom to do what
I think will be right. With India Infoline, I never
realised how fast my career has progressed.’’
Ankita Khandelwal
Branch Manager, India Infoline

‘‘Few industry players can match India
Infoline’s product breadth. We have
extended our branches from a
transaction into a one-stop solution.’’
Jeremiah Jayakaran
Territory Manager, India Infoline

‘‘The brand India Infoline is
founded on a pedigree of
research. Our research is highly
valued, not just by the retail
segment but by institutions as
well. I see this in the depth and
exacting standards which are
expected out of us in our work.’’
Amar Ambani
Research Analyst, India Infoline
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Therefore, the concept of real-time risk
mitigation management is integrated
within the Company’s existence
strategy. It is integrated into the
Company’s strategic and operational
decision making process; it is ingrained
in the organisational mindset; it
pervades all organisational tiers, roles
and functions.

India Infoline’s effective risk
management is guided by an
understanding of the various variables
that can have a bearing on its business
and profitability:

External: These comprise risks that
the Company faces but cannot control
– industry slowdown, competition,
regulatory changes and brand
perception

Internal: These comprise risks that
the Company can directly control
through prudent strategy – costs,
liquidity, technology, operations and
people

At India Infoline, the balance of risk
and initiative is derived through a
precise understanding of strategy,
policy, process and limits. These are
formulated at the core management
level and subsequently enunciated
clearly across the organisation. The
implementation of this is secured
through summary reporting by a
dedicated compliance team, reviewed
periodically by the senior management.
This sequence of policy implementation
and ongoing checking results in a
complete clarity of where the business
stands at all times, triggering prompt
and proactive action whenever
required. 

At India Infoline, one of the principal
de-risking initiatives comprises an
extension in business presence from
equity broking to multiple segments
(broking and distribution of financial
products). This wide product variety
also serves to protect customers,
making it possible for them to diversify
investments and broadly insulate
themselves from the impact of a
downturn in any one segment; this
model also secures employee interests
through corporate stability. 

India Infoline invests continuously in
people, technologies and compliance
discipline as a hedge against attrition,
asset obsolescence and regulatory
censure. 

India Infoline’s intensive use of
technology continues to unleash
knowledge capital at one end and
facilitates the online monitoring of risk
at the other. Specifically, the
Company’s WIRE software facilitates
proactive risk determination and
counter-initiative; its integrated
platform monitors client trading
positions, ledger balance, demat status
and outstanding positions, resulting in
an ongoing control of client positions.

India Infoline controls client risk
through a prudent categorisation of
clients as per their financial depth. This
helps circumscribe their trading limits,
leading to effective risk management.
As a matter of prudence, clients trading
in A-group scrips are allowed a
relatively large exposure, clients dealing
in B-group scrips are permitted
restricted exposure, while those
intending to transact in Z-group scrips
enjoy no leverage at all. 

India Infoline monitors a client’s trading
pattern in addition to keeping a
continuous vigil on positions, balances
and margins. This provides an
understanding of a client’s trading
pattern in terms of nature of
transactions, trading, investments, F&O
types of scrips, etc. to detect any
undesirable or prohibited practices.
Based on this, remedial actions are
initiated whenever required. This ensures
strict regulatory compliance and an
avoidance of regulatory actions that the
Company was not subjected to.

India Infoline adopted the balance
score card system in 2006-07 to de-risk
its corporate strategy. This system
makes it possible for the Company to
achieve challenging multiple objectives
through quantification. For instance,
the Company set annual numerical
targets for each objective; it identified
an owner (or joint owners) responsible
for their achievement. The clarity
behind numerical targets inspired a
corresponding aggression in the
strategy required for their achievement. 

India Infoline created an environment
of responsible target achievement
through a monthly review of all
progress. This review discipline served
in a number of ways: it helped direct
efforts towards a common objective, it
prompted corrective action in the event
of a probable deviation and helped
communicate how employee actions
(or inactions) could influence
organisational growth, enhancing
responsibility through transparency.

India Infoline has also responded to the
following specific risks through
customised strategy.

India's economy is climbing a distinctive
growth curve, indicated in a stable 8-9
per cent annual growth, rising foreign
exchange reserves (in excess of US$200
billion by March 2007) and FDI flow
estimated at US$12 billion in this fiscal.
The industrial and investment
resurgence is sustained by a growth in
gross bank credit to industry from only
10.7 per cent in September 2003 to 29
per cent yoy in March 2007. 

India’s financial services sector grew at
11.1 per cent in 2006-07. The stock
market reported its largest single-year
advance in history, with the BSE Sensex
adding 1,792 points. Besides, the BSE

Sensex gained around 1,000 points
towards end 2006-07 and beginning
2007-08 in only 26 trading sessions to
recover lost ground and touch 14,000,
boding well for the Company’s equity-
dependant businesses. 

The prospects of India’s insurance
industry are reflected in the fact that
only 22% of the country’s insured
population enjoy any life cover. This
under-penetration is expected to
correct with speed; India’s insurance
market is expected to grow 500% in
four years to a size of US$60 billion.
This will help strengthen India Infoline’s
presence, especially once it recieves its

insurance broking licence from the
IRDA. 

India Infoline’s presence in multiple
product segments also serves as a
natural hedge against a downturn in
any particular sector. For instance, the
Company’s presence in the relatively
volatile equity segment is balanced by
its presence in the relatively stable
insurance, mutual funds and fixed
interest-bearing debt instruments.
Similarly, its presence in commodity
broking is expected to be contra-
cyclical to its presence in the equity
business. 

PRevention and mitigation of risks

In a business where prices and realities change every instant, it is imperative for India Infoline to operate
within a broadly de-risked business model that protects stakeholder interests on the one hand and facilitates
growth on the other.

Industry risk

India Infoline is primarily engaged in the business of financial services. Any slowdown in the country’s
economy or financial sector as well as any changes in interest rates, political climate or regulatory changes
could affect the Company’s prospects.  

India Infoline is widening its focus on
areas beyond equity or commodity
broking. Besides, over the last few
years, there has been a conscious shift
from being just an intermediary to a
financial advisory and distribution
company. India Infoline has leveraged
different communication tools –
website, media, analyst meets and

annual reports – to emphasise this
differentiated positioning. 

To strengthen this, the Company
entered into alliances with specialised
companies engaged in various financial
services – ICICI Prudential for life
insurance, almost all asset management
companies for the distribution of their

mutual funds, banks and non-banking
finance companies for the distribution
of loans – strengthening its position as
a one-stop service provider. These
alliances have enabled the Company to
leverage the strengths of its non-
competing alliance partners, facilitating
market expansion and customer
acquisition.

Perception risk

With more than 64 per cent of revenues being derived from broking (equity, financing and commodity), the
Company could be perceived as just a non-value-adding financial intermediary. 

India Infoline has exercised prudence in
client selection and credit extension.
For instance, the Company’s internal
audit team ascertains client credentials
before they are permitted to trade. A
robust online IT-based risk

management tool, called WIRE,
monitors client transactions, trading
pattern and detailed payment history in
real-time. 

When the credit limit is breached, a
system-generated alert makes it

possible for the Company to liquidate
the client’s holdings, reducing risk.
Besides, a stock-based categorisation
allows limits to be set based on the
liquidity and quality of the specific
stock. 

Liquidity risk

In the event of clients not honouring their financial commitments following an unexpected market
movement, the Company’s cash flow could be significantly affected. 
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India Infoline takes its compliance
commitment seriously, recognising that
the business must not only serve the
interest of the customer but also
function well within the established
guidelines of the various regulatory
authorities for responsible and
profitable growth. 

At India Infoline, we consider
compliance as a serious competitive
advantage. In 2005-06, the Company
reinforced this commitment by
strengthening its dedicated regulatory
team to ensure timely, ongoing and
complete compliance as required by the

various regulatory authorities. 

At India Infoline, the compliance
discipline extends across the entire
transaction cycle: client identification,
KYC process transaction execution,
transaction settlement involving
securities and funds transfer. The
compliance requirements across the
various service points have been
communicated comprehensively to all
branches through compliance manuals,
leading to uniformity, quality, priority
and discipline.

As a part of checks and balances, the

centralised compliance team ensures
periodic compliance audits across the
Company’s branches. To ensure
departmental involvement in the
compliance process, heads of the
respective departments/zones submit
quarterly compliance reports, the
compilations of which are reviewed by
the Audit Committee/Board and also
submitted to regulatory bodies as per
requirement. 

As a result of this strong compliance,
the Company’s reputation has always
been responsibly protected in this
dynamic market. 

Regulatory risk

The Company’s presence in a variety of financial segments warrants an ongoing compliance with the
evolving requirements of their various regulators. Any violation or transgression could invite censure,
affecting the Company’s brand.

India Infoline is among the top
financial services providers in India,
staying ahead of competition through
the following initiatives:  

Presence: India Infoline pioneered
the online delivery of financial services
in India. Besides, the Company is
present in 24 states and 330 cities and
towns – one of the widest networks in
the country. 

Brand: India Infoline is one of the
most visible retails brands in the area of
financial services in India, an adequate

hedge against emerging competition.

Choice: India Infoline provides
multiple investment products and
options, de-risking itself from
competitors who have a limited
product bandwidth.

Infrastructure: India Infoline enjoys
robust online facilities. Since the
Company’s back office is also available
online, clients can check their complete
portfolio online (daily sales, purchases,
holdings and ledger) while offline
customers can access the same from a
customer desk. Besides, a link on the

Company’s website makes it possible
for clients to transfer money through
multiple banks, a service which few
players have matched.

Relationships: India Infoline is
leveraging the relationship route to
growth as opposed to a transaction-
centric approach. The Company is
focusing on high net worth individuals
and small-medium companies. This
direction will de-risk the Company from
short-term competition and retail client
attrition arising out of short-term
volatility.

Competition risk

With competition intensifying, it is imperative for the Company to continuously uphold its product and
service quality.

The Company aggressively expanded its
branch coverage to the entire country:
they increased from 175 to 560 in
2006-07, helping the Company
enhance its proximity to customers. A
multiple product presence enabled the
Company to generate multiple non-
equity business opportunities –
insurance, commodity broking, mutual
funds and personal loans – from within

a single branch as well. The Company
also leveraged multi-channel marketing
and alliances to capture a larger market
share. 

To derisk itself, the Company also
focused on institutional clients with the
prospect of generating higher volumes
from fewer clients, balancing its
growing retail presence. 

The Company also concentrated on
developing the market segments across
all its businesses to progressively reduce
the impact of market volatility. As a
result, the Company’s equity exposure
is expected to decline from 54 per cent
of total revenues in 2006-07 to around
40 per cent over the next five years
accompanied by growing revenues. 

Market risk 

The Company is predominantly engaged in the retail end of financial services, besides institutional business.
Its inability to capture a growing market could hinder growth.

The Company continuously invested in
developing one of the best trading
front-end systems, enabling users to
place orders and receive confirmations
at lightning speed. Most of its branches
are connected by VSAT ensuring
undisrupted connectivity. The Company
is in the process of implementing an

MPLS network that will connect 45
locations in the first phase and the rest
in the second phase.

India Infoline’s intranet portal allowed
each employee to log on in a secure
manner and view relevant information.
Most of the software employed a two-

factor authentication technique to
ensure security. The Company is
engaged in the process of
implementing ISO 27001 practices as
well as a Business Continuity Plan,
which includes setting up a disaster
recovery site with an online replication
of data.

Technology risk

The dominant online nature of the Company’s business model makes technology selection and management
critical. Besides, delayed communication between branches could affect the security of customer assets and
the Company’s records. In this technology-intensive environment, tampering with systemic algorithms could
affect clients and the Company.

The Company opened more than 385
branches in 2006-07 with a significant

capital expenditure of Rs 569 mn. Even
as these new branches accounted for

70 per cent of the Company’s total
number of branches, revenue derived

from them was a low 20 per cent in
2006-07, a scenario that will now
correct. 

To support this expansion, the
Company recruited 7,600 employees
across all levels, increasing manpower
cost. However, the Company recognises
that this increased infrastructure and
people cost represents an investment in
its prospective growth, enhancing
branch productivity and shrinking
payback.

Respect for brand India Infoline helped

it attract young, informed and
enthusiastic individuals. The Company
initiated the Common Admission
Programme (CAP) to effectively test a
candidate’s aptitude prior to
recruitment. 

In a business where people attrition
could drain intellectual capital, the
Company implemented policies to
motivate people retention. Once
recruited, the Company provided them
with training to assume in-depth
domain knowledge and skill-sets.

Knowledge and soft skill upgradation
workshops were conducted by external
consultants. The Company instituted a
scientific system of performance
recognition, evaluation and reward
programme. 

The aggressive growth plan of the
Company also served to excite and
challenge. The adoption of targets in
consultation with key objectives as well
as a culture of empowered decision
making enhanced an employee’s sense
of self-worth and responsibility.

Operations risk

The Company could suffer losses arising from increasing costs, human errors, people attrition and low
productivity. 
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OUR EXTENSIVE PRESENCE ACROSS

DIVERSE FINANCIAL PRODUCTS IS NOT

JUST INCIDENTAL, IT IS INTEGRAL TO

OUR STRATEGY.

This drives a win-win proposition for

the customer and the Company:

customers derive a one-stop solution

for their diverse financial needs; the

Company is de-risked from downturns

that could affect any specific segment. 

So while a number of investment-

centric players within India prefer to

focus excessively on the equity side of

the industry – this stream generally

accounts for more than 90 per cent of

their revenues – India Infoline has

consciously selected to diversify its

income basket. In doing so, India

Infoline has evolved its role from being

just an equity showpiece into an

attractively broad-based financial

services player. 

This focus is visible in the Company’s

numbers: revenues from equity broking

declined from a peak of 65 per cent in

2005-06 to 54 per cent in 2006-07. In

the opinion of the management, this

income diversity and their respective

proportions not only ensure adequate

management attention for all the other

products belonging to the service

basket, but also enhance the

customer’s requirement to be serviced

in a comprehensive way in the

segments of their choice.

Even as revenues from equity broking

are expected to grow, the contribution

of equity broking to total revenues is

gradually expected to be brought down

to 40 per cent in the next three years

even as contribution of non-equity

products is expected to increase to 60

per cent. This strategy is expected to

progressively reduce the Company’s

exposure to equity movements and

cyclicality.

A presence across multiple financial

product segments is advantageous for

another reason: it strengthens

customer relationships leading to their

effective retention. For instance, during

a weak equity market, it has generally

been observed that clients liquidate

their equity positions and re-invest in

relatively low-risk financial products. By

virtue of being present in these diverse

financial segment, the Company is

attractively placed to not just transact

across the two spaces but also extend

the transaction into a holistic wealth

management solution. Besides the

goodwill arising out of holistic wealth

management, the flexibility generates

an even bigger opportunity through

referrals, leading to sustainable and

profitable growth. 

During the year under review, the

Company also strengthened its focus

on revenues from institutional clients,

who generate larger transactions

compared to retail investors. As a

result, a small number of institutional

clients, when compared with the retail

equivalent, retain the potential to

generate significantly larger revenues

over time. To drive this agenda, the

Company recruited an experienced,

senior professional as Head of

Institutional Research. 

Service,
Technology
And
Research – the key
differentiators of our strategy
To a single-point availability of a broad

basket of financial products at India

Infoline, add efficient service,

strengthened by robust technology and

updated research. This concept of

service comprises an understanding of

what customers need and a proactive

investment in resources to provide 

them. 

Complete solution: India Infoline

provides a complete – from advice to

execution – solution facilitated by an

informed insight into likely trends. This

advice is provided free by expert

advisors across all investment options

for broking and distribution products.

Research: India Infoline enjoys an

effective and distinctive research

platform which, unlike other industry

players, is not limited to the creation of

exclusive reports for corporate clients.

On the contrary, the Company’s quality

research reports and related articles are

available to all its clients – without

distinction – absolutely free, making it

possible for them to take informed

investment decisions. These research

reports are available on the Company’s

website for easy accessibility.

Recognising that different products

need to be supported with customised

research, the Company commissioned a

commodity research desk in 2006-07,

which, going ahead, will drive related

segment revenues. Similarly, dedicated

research support was created to service

the growing needs of the Company’s

institutional and high net worth clients.

Multi-channel delivery model: India

Infoline has created a robust

technology infrastructure to emerge

among the few financial intermediaries

in India to offer a complement of

online and offline broking services

through its investor and trader

terminals on the one hand, while

internet, phone or branch presence on

the other. The Company’s customers

are provided with multiple platforms –

internet, e-mail, toll-free lines and in

person – to address their queries.

Multi-trading capability: India

Infoline’s customers can either trade on

the BSE and NSE in the cash or

derivative segments and also in MCX

and NCDEX. Besides, the Company

provides different terminals to service

different investor types – the Investor

Terminal for investors and Trader

Terminal for active traders.

Updated positions: India Infoline

extended its use of technology to

integrate its front office with its middle

and back office operations, enabling

customers to view their updated

positions in real time.

Multi-banking facilities: India

Infoline tied up with a number of

leading banks, providing its customers

with the facility to transact through

various banks of their choice. Besides,

the Company provides an online

banking facility through certain pre-

designated banks.

Information: India Infoline’s trading

terminals do not just provide customers

with real-time quotes; they also provide

live intra-day tick-by-tick charts,

historical charts and price alerts.

Besides, the Company provides

customers with a one-click access to

the back office for updated ledger

positions. The Company recognises that

in a fast changing marketplace, the

immediacy of information is

paramount. In view of this, the

Company makes the fullest use of the

popular SMS medium to provide

market updates and investment

opportunities; it sends around half a

dozen intra-day stock tips to a large

SMS-registered database. For

distribution products like mutual funds,

the Company makes calls to update

clients on dividends declared and other

related information. It also distributes

new mutual fund offerings to the

client’s doorstep; distributes pamphlets,

reports and newsletters at periodic

intervals to increase investor awareness

on new schemes.

Interface: India Infoline has 

deployed dedicated customer

relationship managers to provide a

superior personalised service to its

corporate and high net worth 

clients. 

PRoactive
strategy sharpens 
our STAR edge   

To a single-point availability
of a broad basket of
financial products at India
Infoline, add efficient
service, strengthened by
robust technology and
updated research.
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Directors’ report

India Infoline Limited

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 12th Annual Report along with the Audited Statements of Accounts of your

Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2007.  

1. Financial results
A snapshot of the financial performance of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year 2006-07 is as under:

2. Review of operations
On a consolidated basis, the

Company’s income (excluding inter-

group transfer) posted a healthy

growth of 95.2% at Rs 4,257.2 mn.

Income from the core business of

equities broking grew by 62.1% to 

Rs 2,313.5 mn, whereas life insurance

agency commission grew by 174.7%

to Rs 592.9 mn. This strong growth

was driven by a rapid expansion in the

Company's branch network, increasing

popularity of its internet trading

software and overall favourable

market conditions. During the year,

the Company along with its

subsidiaries added 385 new branches,

taking the strength of our branch

network to 560. Your Company and

its subsidiaries’ employee strength

also rose significantly to 11,750 as at

March 31, 2007 as against 4,150 a

year ago. Income from commodities

broking grew manifold, albeit on a

small base. The Company’s insurance

distribution business witnessed a

strong growth, driven primarily by

increased distribution network. Your

Company’s online media and research

and content income increased

significantly with increased business

from old customers as well as from

(Rupees mn)

Revenues Profit before Interest, Profit After Tax

Depreciation and Tax

India Infoline Limited 2,867.2 983.4 521.2

India Infoline Distribution Company Limited 189.2 24.1 9.9

India Infoline Insurance Services Limited 593.0 225.6 137.4

India Infoline Commodities Private Limited 122.2 12.8 8.8

India Infoline Investment Services Private Limited 289.4 212.3 64.5

India Infoline Insurance Brokers Limited – (0.1) (0.1)

India Infoline Media and Research Services Limited 289.0 24.9 15.8

India Infoline Housing Finance Limited – (0.3) (0.3)

India Infoline Commodities, DMCC – – –

Moneyline Credit Private Limited 0.1 (1.1) (1.1)

Inter-company adjustments (92.9) (69.4) –

Aggregate 4,257.2 1,412.2 756.2

A snapshot of stand-alone financial performance of India Infoline Limited is as under: (Rupees mn)

2006 – 2007 2005 – 2006

Gross Total Income 2,867.2 484.7

Profit Before Interest, Depreciation and Taxation 983.4 434.0

Interest and Financial Charges 63.9 21.8

Depreciation 123.3 14.7

Profit Before Tax 796.2 397.5

Taxation - Current 260.7 (134.5)

- Deferred 2.4 2.0

- Fringe Benefit Tax 11.9 (0.3)

Net Profit for the year 521.2 264.7

Less: Appropriations

Dividend:

Interim Dividend paid 149.6 87.8

Final Dividend 0.0 45.5

Dividend Distribution Tax 21.0 18.7

Transfer to General Reserve 53.0 30.0

Add: Balance brought forward from previous year 83.5 0.8

Add: Other adjustments 

(profits of India Infoline Securities Private Limited added pursuant to merger) 93.0 0.0

Balance to be carried forward 474.1 83.5

On a consolidated basis, the
Company’s income (excluding
inter-group transfer) posted a
healthy growth of 95.2% at 
Rs 4,257.2 mn.
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the addition of new customers.

Operating margin (EBIDTA) on a

consolidated basis increased by 62.5%

to Rs 1,412.3 mn as compared with

Rs 868.7 mn in the previous year,

despite extraordinary growth in

manpower and related costs. The

margin improvement signifies the

operating leverage from higher

volumes. While profit before tax rose

by 59.6% to Rs 1,146 mn, profit after

tax rose by 54.5% to Rs 756.2 mn

due to higher incidence of tax. 

The Company has forayed into new

businesses of investment banking and

distribution of mortgages and loan

products, which are expected to

contribute significantly in the 

years to come. 

The financial services sector is

expected to grow at a rapid pace,

driven by increasing per capita

income, favourable demographics and

the growing need for “advice” due to

increasing multiplicity and complexity

of products. Your Company along

with its subsidiaries is well-placed to

seize these opportunities. 

Merger
Your Directors have pleasure in

informing you that further to approval

of NSE and BSE as also prior approval

of SEBI, the Hon’ble High Court,

Bombay has passed an order

approving the merger of India Infoline

Securities Private Limited (wholly

owned subsidiary of the Company) 

with the Company on January 12,

2007. As per the Scheme of

Amalgamation, the effective date of

amalgamation is April 1, 2006.

Accordingly, in compliance with the

order of the Hon’ble High Court, the

merged accounts of India Infoline

Securities Private Limited with your

Company as at March 31, 2007 are

placed for adoption. 

Pursuant to the merger, the

businesses of securities broking,

depository services, portfolio

management services, investment

banking and research services have

been brought under the holding

company India Infoline Limited,

making the company strongly

capitalised and well placed to grow at

a rapid pace.

subsidiaries can also be sought by an

investor of the Company or its

subsidiaries on making a written

request to the Company in this

regard. The accounts of these

subsidiaries are also available for

inspection of investors of the

Company or its subsidiaries at the

registered office of the Company.  

4. Management
discussion and analysis
The Management Discussion and

Analysis Report for the year under

review as required under Clause 49 of

the Listing Agreement, is given as a

separate statement in the annual

report.

5. Changes in equity
capital
During the year, the following

changes were effected in the paid-up

capital of the Company: 

a) Upon exercise of part conversion of

7,000 Optionally Convertible Bonds

into equity shares, the Company has

allotted 41,17,647 equity shares to

DSP Merrill Lynch Capital Limited at

the conversion price of Rs 170 per

share as per the terms of preferential

issue. 

b) During the year, the Company

allotted 948,700 equity shares

pursuant to exercising of options by

the employees under the ESOP

scheme 2000. 

The Company also implemented an

ESOP (Employees Stock Option

scheme), namely ESOP 2005, under

SEBI (ESOP) Regulations. The scheme,

provides for grant of options

aggregating to 25 lakh equity shares,

as approved by shareholders on

January 25, 2006. The Company has

granted 15 lakh options on May 4,

2006 under the scheme to the eligible

employees.

6. Dividend on equity
shares
The board has declared and paid an

interim dividend of Rs 3 (30%) per

equity share of Rs 10 each on March

19, 2007 and the same is considered

final. The total outflow on account of

payment of interim dividend,

including dividend distribution tax and

surcharge was Rs 170.6 mn.

7. Deposits
During the period under review, your

Company has not accepted/renewed

any deposits within the meaning of

Section 58A of the Companies Act,

1956, and the rules thereunder.

During the year under review, the

Company has incorporated three new

wholly owned subsidiaries viz. India

Infoline Media and Research Services

Limited, India Infoline Housing

Finance Limited and India Infoline

Commodities, DMCC. The Company

has also acquired the entire share

capital of Moneyline Credit Private

Limited (formerly Khambhat

Investments & Trading Co. Pvt. Ltd.). 

On an application made by the

Company, the Ministry of Company

Affairs has granted exemption under

Section 212(8) of the Companies Act,

1956, from attaching to the balance

sheet of the Company, accounts and

other documents of its subsidiaries.

The Company has attached the

consolidated financial statements in

this annual report, which includes the

results of these subsidiaries. Copies of

the annual audited accounts of these

3. Subsidiary companies

As at March 31, 2007, the Company had the following nine subsidiaries. The names of the subsidiary companies and

holdings of the Company in these subsidiaries are mentioned below:

Names of subsidiaries Holding of India Infoline Limited (in %)

India Infoline Distribution Company Limited 100

India Infoline Insurance Services Limited 100

India Infoline Commodities Private Limited 100

India Infoline Investment Services Private Limited 100

India Infoline Insurance Brokers Limited 100

India Infoline Media and Research Services Limited. 100

India Infoline Housing Finance Limited 100

India Infoline Commodities DMCC 100

Moneyline Credit Private Limited 100

8. Disclosure of employee stock options 

During the financial year 2006-07, the Company has granted 1,500,000 options under the new ESOP Scheme 2005.

Following are the Disclosures in terms of Clause 12 of the SEBI (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock

Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999.

Disclosure in the Directors’ Report as per SEBI Guidelines:

Particulars ESOP 2000 ESOP 2005

01-Apr-03 01-Oct-04 04-May-06

a Options granted during the year 1,500,000

b Options outstanding at the beginning of the year 429,670 575,040 –

c Pricing Formulae Rs 10 Rs 10 Rs 150

d Options Vested during the year** -   4,85,940 –

e Options Exercised during the year 409,100 539,600 –

f Total no. of shares arising as result of exercise of Options 409,100 539,600 –

g Options lapsed during the year* 18,570 35,440 

h Variation in terms of Options Nil Nil Nil 

i Money realised by exercise of Options (in mn) 4.1 5.4 Nil 

j Total number of options in force 2,000 – 1,500,000
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9. Directors
In accordance with Section 255 and
256 of the Companies Act of 1956
and with Article 137 of the Articles of
Association of the Company, Mr Sanjiv
Ahuja and Mr Kranti Sinha retire by
rotation and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment at the
ensuing Annual General Meeting of
the Company.

Brief resumes of both the Directors
proposed to be re-appointed,
qualification, experience and the
names of the Companies in which
they hold directorship, membership of
the board committees, as stipulated in
the clause 49 of the listing agreement
are provided in the Report of
Corporate Governance forming a part
of the annual report.

10. Directors’
responsibility statement 
As required by Section 217 (2AA) of
the Companies Act, 1956, your
directors confirm that:

(a) In the preparation of the annual
accounts, the applicable accounting
standards have been followed;

(b) Appropriate accounting policies
have been selected and applied
consistently and that judgments and
estimates made are reasonable and
prudent so as to give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of your
Company as at March 31, 2007, and
of its profit for the year ended on that
date;

(c) Proper and sufficient care has been
taken for the maintenance of
adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 1956 for
safeguarding the assets of your
Company and for preventing and
detecting fraud and other
irregularities;

(d) The annual accounts have been

prepared on an ongoing concern
basis.

11. Conservation of
energy, technology
absorption, foreign exchange
earnings and outgo
The additional information required in
accordance with sub-section (1)(e) of
Section 217 of the Companies Act,
1956, read with the Companies
(Disclosure of Particulars in the Report
of the Board of Directors) Rules,1988,
is appended to and forms part of this
report.

12. Corporate
Governance Report
Your Company has complied with all
the mandatory provisions of the revised
Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement. As
part of the Company’s efforts towards
better corporate practice and
transparency, a separate report on
Corporate Governance compliances is
included as a part of Annual Report.

A certificate from the auditors, M/s
Sharp & Tannan Associates, Chartered
Accountants, of the Company
regarding compliance of the
conditions of Corporate Governance
as stipulated under Clause 49 of the
Listing Agreement is attached to this
Directors’ Report.

13. Particulars
of employees
Pursuant to Section 217(2A) of the
Companies Act, 1956 read with the
Companies (Particulars of Employees)
Rules, 1975 as amended, the names
and other particulars of employees are
set out in Annexure attached to this
report.

14. Auditors
and Auditors’ Report:
M/s. Sharp & Tannan Associates,
Chartered Accountants, Mumbai, the
Company’s Auditors, retire at the

ensuing Annual General Meeting and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment. M/s Sharp & Tannan
Associates have sought re-appointment
and confirmed that their re-
appointment shall be within the limits
of Section 224(1B) of the Companies
Act, 1956. The necessary eligibility
certificate under Section 224(1B) of the
Companies Act, 1956 has been received
from them. The Audit Committee and
Board of Directors recommend the
appointment of M/s Sharp & Tannan
Associates, Chartered Accountants, as
the auditors of the Company.

The notes to the accounts referred to
in the Auditors Report are self
explanatory and therefore do not call
for any further comments.
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extended to the Company. The
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unstinting efforts in ensuring an
excellent all-round operational
performance. Last but not the least,
the directors would like to thank
valuable shareholders for their support
and contribution. We look forward to
their continued support in the future.

On behalf of the Board

Nirmal Jain
Chairman and Managing Director 

Dated: April 25, 2007

Registered Office:
75, Nirlon Complex, 
Off Western Express Highway, 
Goregaon (East), 
Mumbai – 400 063.

Particulars ESOP 2000 ESOP 2005

01-Apr-03 01-Oct-04 04-May-06

k Employee wise details of options granted to:
- Senior Management a. Mr Ajit Menon 200,000

b. Mr Graham Sharp 200,000
c. Mr R Mohan 50,000
d. Mr Kapil Krishan 50,000
e. Mr Vijay Bhatia 50,000

- any other employee who receives a grant in any one year of 
option amounting to 5% or more of options granted Nil
during that year
- employees who were granted options, during any one year, 
equal to or exceeding 1% of the issued capital (excluding Nil
warrants and conversions) of the Company at the time of grant

l Diluted earnings per share pursuant to issue of shares on 
exercise of option calculated in accordance with AS 20 10.3 
‘Earnings per Share’

m Pro Forma Adjusted Net Income and Earning Per Share
Particulars Rs
Net income
As reported 521,216,692
Add: Intrinsic Value Compensation Cost 10,967,210
Less: Fair Value Compensation Cost 67,672,358
Adjusted Pro Forma Net Income 464,511,544
Earning Per Share: Basic

As Reported 11.2
Adjusted Pro Forma 10.0

Earning Per Share: Diluted
As Reported 10.3
Adjusted Pro Forma 9.1

n Weighted average exercise price of Options granted 
during the year whose
(a) Exercise price equals market price N.A. 
(b) Exercise price is greater than market price N.A. 
(c) Exercise price is less than market price Rs 150 
Weighted average fair value of options granted during the 
year whose
(a) Exercise price equals market price N.A. 
(b) Exercise price is greater than market price N.A. 
(c) Exercise price is less than market price Rs 92.4 

o Description of method and significant assumptions used to 
estimate the fair value of options
Risk free interest rate 6.9%
Expected life 3.8 
Expected volatility 62.2%
Expected dividends 2.4%
Price of the underlying share in the market at the time 
of option grant 182.9

* Lapsed Options includes options forfeited and options cancelled/lapsed.

** All options under grant 1 are vested 100% as on 31 March 2006. All options under grant 2 are vested 100% during the year.
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Annexure I to the Directors’ Report

(a) Conservation of energy
The Company is engaged in providing
financial services and its operations
are not energy intensive. However the
Company is taking all possible
measures to conserve energy. Several
environment-friendly measures have
been adopted by the Company such
as:

Automatic power shutdown of idle

monitors

Creating environmental awareness

by way of distributing the information

in electronic form

Minimising air-conditioning usage

Shutting off all lights when not in

use

Installation of different capacities of

DG sets so that optimum amount of

diesel is consumed as per the load

The management frequently puts up

circulars on the corporate intranet for

the employees, educating them on

ways and means to conserve electricity

and other natural resources and

ensures strict compliance with the

same.

(b) Technology absorption and
innovation

During the year under review, the
management has ensured continued
and sustained efforts towards
absorption of technology, adaptation
as well as development of the same to
meet business needs and objectives.
We have successfully developed a
front office trading platform using
.NET technology that will help us
streamline operations significantly and
provide extremely rich end-user
(customer) experience.

Management has also invested

considerably in deploying latest
technologies in areas of Wide Area
Networking (WAN), voice and video
communication, automated dialers
and other Customer Relationship
Management (CRM) tools and
software. This has enabled us to
provide excellent services to our
customers. 

The management understands the
importance of technology in the
business segment it operates in and
keeps itself updated of the
technological advancements in the
industry.

(c) Foreign exchange earnings/
outgo

a) The foreign exchange earnings of
the Company were Rs 3.4 mn.

b) The foreign exchange expenditure
was Rs 8.0 mn.

Information relating to conservation of energy, technology absorption and innovation, and foreign
exchange earnings/outgo forming part of the directors’ report in terms of Section 217(1)(e) of the
Companies Act, 1956.

Annexure II to the Directors’ Report
Statement of particulars of employees as per provisions of Section 217(2A) of the Companies Act, 1956
read with, the Companies (Particulars of Employees) Rules, 1975 and forming part of the Directors Report
for the year ended March 31, 2007.

Name Mr Nirmal Jain Mr R Venkataraman Mr Ajit Menon Mr Graham Mr Sachin Mr Vijay

Sharp Neema3 Bhatia

Age in years 41 40 47 53 34 38

Designation Chairman and Executive Director Head of Head of Vice President- Vice President-

Managing Investment International Research PCG

Director Banking Operations

Gross 9,839,940 6,975,240 3,600,000 3,108,218 2,288,052 2,473,824

Remuneration (Rs)

Qualification ACA, AICWA, B.Tech MSc ( London MSc, (University BE Mechanical, BE Industrial

MBA (IIT-Kharagpur), Business School), of London), MMS-JBIMS, electronics,

(IIM Ahmedabad) MBA Sloan Fellow Sloan Fellow, CFA DBM from

(IIM Bangalore) Member, PGDIM C.A. (Member of NMIMS

Institute of 

Chartered 

Accountants of 

Scotland), 

LL.B., DPhil, 

(Oxford university)

Experience in years 18 years 16 years 27 years 27 years 11 years 16 years

Date of October 18, July 5, 1999 December 1, December 1, 2005 July 3, 2006 November 17,

commencement 1995 2005 2005

of employment

Particulars of last Motilal Oswal GE Capital Services Marchmont Marchmont HDFC Securities Indiabulls

employment Securities India Limited International International Limited Securities

Pvt Ltd. Financial Services Financial Services Limited

Limited. Limited.

Relationship with N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A N.A

any other Director

of the Company

Notes :

1. Gross Remuneration includes salary, monetary value of perquisites as per income tax rules and Company’s contribution to provident fund.

2. The services of all the persons are contractual and the terms and conditions are subject to the rules and regulations of the Company as in

force from time to time.

3. Mr Sachin Neema was employed only for the part of year under review.

On behalf of the Board

Nirmal Jain
Dated: April 25, 2007 Chairman and Managing Director 

Registered Office: 75, Nirlon Complex, Off Western Express Highway, Goregaon (East), Mumbai – 400 063
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Management’s
discussion and analysis 
of financial condition and results of operations 
(as per Unconsolidated Indian GAAP)

Overview
These financial statements are

prepared in accordance with Indian

GAAP and the Companies Act, 1956.

The management of India Infoline

Limited (IIL) accepts responsibility for

the integrity and objectivity of these

financial statements, as well as for

various estimates and judgements

used therein. The estimates and

judgements relating to the financial

statements have been made on a

prudent basis so that the financial

statements reflect in a true and fair

manner the form and substance of

transactions, and reasonably present

the Company’s state of affairs and

profits for the year.

The financials for the current year

reflect the merged businesses of the

IIL and that of erstwhile India Infoline

Securities Pvt Ltd, which merged with

IIL with effect from April 1, 2006. The

current year figures are, therefore, not

comparable with those for the

previous year.

Brokerage and related income refers

to the gross income from equity

brokerage, depository services,

portfolio management services and

other related incomes. This business

was carried on in a subsidiary

company in the previous year. 

This segment accounted for 80% 

of the Company’s total income 

in 2006-07.   

Merchant banking income pertains to

fees earned by the Company from

arranging private equity funding for

medium-sized companies. This is the

first year in which this business started

contributing to revenues with an

income of Rs 28.2 mn.

Online, research and media income

comprises the sale of banner space on

our website, email campaigns, sale of

research reports, etc. It also involves

providing content to our subsidiaries

pursuant to contractual arrangements.

Media and content income posted a

growth of 76% during the financial

year 2006-07, compared with the

previous year.

Other income comprises interest

income earned on fixed deposits and

other advances. The previous year’s

figure is not strictly comparable as it

did not include the operations of the

erstwhile subsidiary.

Direct costs relate to statutory

payments to exchanges, sub-

brokerage costs and other costs that

are direct in nature and pertaining to

the equity brokerage business. The

previous year’s figure was nil as India

Infoline Securities Pvt Ltd was merged

with effect from April 1, 2006.

Employee costs showed a substantial

increase as the current year’s figures

comprise costs related to the equity

brokerage business, which witnessed a

rapid increase in headcount owing to

expansion in the branch network. 

Administration and other expenses

showed a substantial increase on the

back of a rapid increase in the number

of branches but could not be

compared with the previous year’s

figures.

Unsecured loans declined mainly due

to the conversion of 1% optionally

convertible bonds of Rs 700 mn by

DSP Merrill Lynch Capital Ltd. The

Company availed of some additional

unsecured loans to fund its branch

expansion.

Investments rose by Rs 712 mn

mainly because of increased

investments in its subsidiary India

Infoline Investment Services Limited to

the extent of Rs 1,050 mn. Additional

investments were made in optionally

convertible debentures of certain

companies. Investments also reflect

the decline in value of investments

due to extinguishment of capital in

the erstwhile subsidiary – India

Infoline Securities Pvt. Ltd. – to the

extent of Rs 600 mn upon its merger.

Sundry debtors, cash and bank

balances as well as loans and

advances showed higher figures as

they reflected the inclusion of the

business of India Infoline Securities

Pvt. Ltd.

Opportunities
The booming financial services sector

presents a huge growth potential for

our various businesses. The low

penetration levels of equity, insurance,

mutual funds and other financial

service products present an

opportunity for us. There is also

substantial scope for expanding our

institutional presence in the equities

broking business as its contribution is

currently much lower than that of

some of our major competitors. We

can also substantially expand our

business by cross selling our various

products to our customers and offer

wealth management solutions.

Risks and concerns
Economic slowdown, political

instability and a further rise in interest

rates remain key concerns. Although

our business has a diversified revenue

Business Performance
Income
Our income has six components: brokerage and related income, merchant banking income, online and other media and

other income.

Particulars Year ended Year ended 

March 31, 2007 March 31, 2006

Income from operations

Brokerage and related income 2,313.5 –

Merchant banking income 28.2 –

Online, research & media income 356.1 200.6

Other income 169.4 284.1

Total income 2,867.2 484.7

(Rs mn)

Particulars Year ended Year ended 

March 31, 2007 March 31, 2006

Direct costs 738.2 –

Employee costs 558.8 19.4

Administration and other expenses 586.8 31.2

Interest expenses 64.0 21.8

Depreciation and amortisation 123.2 14.7

Total expenditure 2,071.0 87.2

Expenditure (Rupees mn)

The low penetration levels of
equity, insurance, mutual funds
and other financial service
products present an
opportunity for us.
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stream, we continue to remain linked

to the economic performance of the

country. We would also be affected if

the stock markets were to decline

sharply. Increased competition in our

markets also poses a concern. This

could lead to diminishing investor

confidence, resulting in lower business

volumes. 

Any rise in interest rates in the

developed markets leads to an

outflow of funds from emerging

markets like India to developed

countries, adversely affecting the

attractiveness of surging markets like

India in the short term. Our other

product offerings like tax saving

schemes, insurance and mutual fund

products are impacted by change in

the government’s taxation policies.

Also, manpower retention is a difficult

measure considering the growing

number of opportunities and ever-

increasing number of players in this

industry.

Outlook
The Indian financial services industry

continues to remain buoyant powered

by a strong economic performance,

stable interest rates and changing

demographics. India continues to

remain under-penetrated in terms of

insurance and investments in equity –

both through direct investments and

through mutual funds. Rising

disposable income along with a

growing number of investment

options and their complexities

necessitate the role of financial

advisors. Our Company, with a one-

stop-investment-shop and multiple

delivery channels, is positioned to

capture the complete value chain

from advice to execution. We have a

superior technology platform with

robust risk management systems. This,

coupled with our growing

geographical reach, should allow us

to maintain our superior service

delivery standards and improve cross

selling within the group.

Risk management systems
We manage the risks associated with

our broking operations through the

use of internally developed credit

algorithms implemented through fully

automated risk management software

and selective direct monitoring of

certain operating parameters. Our

automated risk management

procedures rely primarily on internally

developed risk management system as

well as systems provided by our

vendors. We manage our business risk

through strict compliance and internal

checks. We have a well-managed

internal audit and internal control

system working along with the

external audit performing checks at

regular intervals to identify any

discrepancies and rectify at the

earliest.

Human resources
The total employee strength of the

Company and our subsidiaries has

almost tripled from 4,150 as on

March 31, 2006 to 11,750 as on

March 31, 2007. The nature of our

business requires a skilled and trained

labour force, which is one of the key

assets of our organisation.

Our human resource policy is based

on the philosophy of ‘owner mindset’.

We believe that the key to our

continued growth lies in unleashing

the entrepreneurial energy of our

employees. We encourage all

employees to behave more as owners

of their departments rather than

employees. Our people are highly

motivated and work towards

increasing India Infoline’s brand and

market share across our various

product lines.

We have developed some extensive in-

house training modules. We lay an

emphasis on ‘on-the-job training’

where an experienced and senior

person mentors a junior executive.

Further, prospective employees need

to undergo pre-joining domain

training and tests. This basically tests

the understanding and aptitude of the

employee for the job and reduces

attrition and improves employee

satisfaction.

Internal control systems
As remarked by the auditors in their

report, the Company has an internal

control system commensurate with its

requirements and the size of the

business. As a step further, your

Company has already taken steps to

document its systems and processes.

Cautionary statement
The statements made in this report

describe the Company’s objectives and

projections that may be forward-

looking statements within the

meaning of applicable securities laws

and regulations. The actual results

might differ materially from those

expressed or implied depending on

the economic conditions, government

policies and other incidental factors,

which are beyond the control of the

Company.

Management’s
discussion and analysis 
of financial condition and results of operations 
(as per Consolidated Indian GAAP)

In this section, the discussion pertains

to the consolidated financials of India

Infoline Limited along with all its

wholly owned subsidiaries viz. India

Infoline Commodities Private Limited,

India Infoline Distribution Company

Limited, India Infoline Insurance

Services Limited, India Infoline

Investment Services Private Limited,

India Infoline Media and Research

Services Limited, India Infoline

Insurance Brokers Limited, India

Infoline Housing Finance Limited,

India Infoline Commodities, DMCC

and Moneyline Credit Private Limited.

As the significant part of the

Company’s business is conducted

through its wholly owned subsidiaries,

your Directors believe that the

consolidated accounts provide a

better view of the Company and its

operations.

Income
Our consolidated income comprises

seven components: equity brokerage

and related income, media and

content income, life insurance agency

commission, financing and investing,

commission from distribution of

mutual funds and other small savings

products, commodities brokerage,

home loan commission and merchant

banking. The following table sets forth

the contribution of the different

components of our revenue and other

income.

Particulars Year ended Year ended 

March 31, 2007 March 31, 2006

Equity brokerage and related income 2,313.5 1,427.1

Online, research and media income 645.1 200.6

Life insurance agency commission 592.9 215.9

Financing and investing 281.8 46.9

Mutual funds, etc. distribution 150.1 199.9

Commodities brokerage 120.3 41.3

Home loan commission 28.9 2.4

Merchant banking 28.2 –

Other income 96.5 46.4

Total income 4,257.3 2,180.5

(Rs mn)
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Equities brokerage and related

income comprises the income

received from broking activities in the

cash and derivatives segments of both

the exchanges, BSE and NSE, and

related activities such as depository

services and portfolio management

services are offered to clients. Equity

brokerage and related income

reported a growth of 62% during the

year under review and comprised 54%

of total income for the financial year

ended March 31, 2007 on the 

back of increased broking turnover in

a buoyant capital market

environment.

Online, research and media income

was generated by selling space 

on our web properties,

www.indiainfoline.com and

www.5paisa.com, and related

marketing and promotional activities.

We leveraged our relationship with life

insurance and mutual funds principals

to drive this income. This also

included revenue generated by way of

sponsorship and the sale of research

reports and customised assignments.

Media and content income grew by

222% during the financial year 2006-

07 and contributed 15% of the total

income.

Life insurance agency commission

comprises the income generated from

the activity of selling life insurance

policies as the corporate agent of ICICI

Prudential Life Insurance Company

Limited through our subsidiary India

Infoline Insurance Services Limited.

With increased branch presence

coupled with marketing innovations

effected during the year, policy

commission income recorded a

growth of 175% and comprised 14%

of the total income during 2006-07. 

Financing and investing activities

started contributing to revenues

mainly in the current year. The total

income for the financial year 2006-07

was Rs 281.8 mn and accounted for

6.6% of revenues.

The distribution of mutual funds

and other instruments comprises the

income received from the distribution

of personal investment products like

mutual funds, fixed deposits, IPOs,

GoI bonds, etc. conducted by our

subsidiary, India Infoline Distribution

Company Limited. Agency commission

income declined by 25% during the

year and comprised 3.5% of the total

income.

Commodities broking income is the

revenue generated by broking

activities conducted by India Infoline

Commodities Private Limited on the

commodities exchanges of MCX and

NCDEX. During the year, the Company

was granted membership of the Dubai

Gold and Commodities Exchange

(DGCX); in view of this, the Company

initiated steps to operationalise the

subsidiary company in Dubai. The

activity of commodities broking

commenced during 2005-06 and

grew 191% in 2006-07. 

Home loan commission income

comprises the income generated from

selling loan products to retail

customers. This is a nascent business

and with a significant potential once

we equip our branch network for this

business. The Company earned a total

commission income of Rs 28.9 mn

during the year.

Direct costs consisted of exchange

charges, NSDL fees, referral fees, SEBI

charges, service tax, stamp duty and

filing fees. These costs, in general,

varied with the volume of business

and were indicative of the levels of

business activity. Direct costs grew by

63% and were Rs 917.8 mn during

the financial year ended on March 31,

2007. On a percentage basis, direct

costs declined from 26% of sales to

22% on account of a change in the

business mix.

Employee costs grew by 190% to 

Rs 1,063.1 mn during the year. The

total headcount stood at 11,750

employees as of March 31, 2007,

which was an outcome of the overall

growth in all the segments of our

businesses, especially broking,

distribution and insurance. We also

hired employees who are now under

training for the anticipated increase in

the volume across all our strategic

business expansions. 

Administrative expenses rose by

126% to Rs 863.7 mn and accounted

for 20% of the income. We invested

in increasing the number of branches

and building infrastructure for zonal

and area offices for better

administration and control over our

expanded branch network.

Depreciation expenses rose by 74%

to Rs 149.2 mn largely due to an

investment in technology and

infrastructure commensurate with a

growth in business and branch

network expansion. We depreciated

hardware and software assets on a

straight-line basis over three years. 

Gross block rose to Rs 911.4 mn

during the financial year ended March

31, 2007 largely on account of Rs 569

mn invested primarily in technology,

new branches and the upgradation of

head office infrastructure.

Deferred tax, asset and liabilities

have been calculated as per the

provisions of the Income Tax Act,

1961.

Working capital increased by Rs 898

mn largely due to an increase in loans

and advances in line with the increase

in our broking revenues coupled with,

an increase in debtors’ outstanding

and loans and advances, owing to

increasing revenues from operations.

Particulars Year ended Year ended 

March 31, 2007 March 31, 2006

Direct cost 917.8 562.7

Employee cost 1,063.1 366.0

Administration and other expenses 863.7 382.8

Financial cost 117.1 65.1

Depreciation 149.2 85.6

Preliminary expenses 0.3 0.2

Total expenses 3,111.3 1,462.4

Expenditure (Rupees mn)

With increased branch presence coupled with
marketing innovations effected during the year, policy
commission income recorded a growth of 175% and
comprised 14% of the total income during 2006-07.
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Corporate governance

1. Corporate
Philosophy
The management at India Infoline is

committed to maintaining the highest

standards of integrity, honesty and

moral conduct in their professional as

well as personal life and strongly

believes that Corporate Governance

enables the organization to perform

ethically and efficiently to generate

long-term value and wealth for all its

stakeholders and society at large. 

The Company’s philosophy of

corporate governance stems from the

belief that transparent policies, timely

disclosures, adherence with all the

applicable laws, rules and regulations

coupled with a strong, professional

and independent Board are the key to

achieving the vision of the Company

to be the most respected in the

financial services space. India Infoline

understands that the customer is the

purpose of its business and every

customer is an important stakeholder

of the Company and the Company’s

respect is nothing but the sum total

of the respect all that its people

command.

India Infoline has already complied

with all mandatory requirements of

the revised Clause 49 of the Listing

Agreement and the implementation of

the Corporate Governance Code by

the Company is furnished below.

2. Board of Directors

(a) Composition of the Board
The Board of Directors of the Company comprises optimum combination of executive and non-executive directors, all of

whom are leading professionals in their respective fields. As of March 31, 2007, the composition and category of the

directors on the Board of Company were as under:

Category Particulars of Directors Date of Joining

Promoter Executive Directors Mr Nirmal Jain, Chairman and Managing Director October 18, 1995

Mr R Venkataraman, Executive Director July 05, 1999

Non-Executive Director Mr Sat Pal Khattar April 20, 2001

Independent Directors Mr Sanjiv Ahuja August 28, 2002

Mr Kranti Sinha January 27, 2005

Mr Nilesh Vikamsey February 11, 2005

The other Board and Board Committees in which the Director is member or chairman are as under:

Name of the Director Relationship with Directorships in India Other Membership of other

other Director under Section 275 of the Directorships2 Board Committees3

Companies Act, 19561 Member Chairman

Mr Nirmal Jain N.A. 6 1 NIL NIL

Mr R Venkataraman N.A. 6 1 NIL NIL

Mr Sat Pal Khattar N.A. 8 53 NIL NIL

Mr Sanjiv Ahuja N.A. 4 8 1 NIL

Mr Kranti Sinha N.A. 5 1 3 3

Mr Nilesh Vikamsey N.A. 1 3 NIL 1

Notes:

1. Directorship held by the Directors, as mentioned above, does not include directorship in private limited companies, which are neither a

subsidiary nor holding company of public company, foreign companies and companies not carrying out business for profit.

2. Other directorship are those, which are not covered under Section 275 of the Companies Act, 1956.

3. The committees considered for above purpose are those prescribed in the Listing Agreement viz. Audit Committee and Share Transfer

and Investor Grievance Committee.

(b) Attendance at the meeting of Board of Directors and General Meeting

The Board of the Company met five (5) times during the last financial year on April 26, 2006, July 24, 2006, October 17,

2006, January 23, 2007 and March 19, 2007. The gap between two Board Meetings was not more that four (4) months.

The Company had convened its Annual General Meeting on July 24, 2006 and no extra ordinary general meeting was held

during the year.

India Infoline has already
complied with all mandatory
requirements of the revised
Clause 49 of the Listing
Agreement
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The attendance of Directors at the Board Meeting and General Meetings was as under:

Name of Director No. of Board Board Meetings Annual General

Meetings held attended Meeting attended 

Mr Nirmal Jain 05 05 Yes

Mr R Venkataraman 05 05 Yes

Mr Sat Pal Khattar 05 04 Yes

Mr Sanjiv Ahuja 05 03 Yes

Mr Kranti Sinha 05 05 Yes

Mr Nilesh Vikamsey 05 05 Yes

The constitution of the Audit Committee and attendance of each member of the committee is given below: 

Name of the Members Designation Non-Executive/ Profession No. of Committee Committee 

of Audit Committee Independent Meetings held Meetings attended

Mr Nilesh Vikamsey Chairman Independent Chartered Accountant 04 04

Mr Sat Pal Khattar Member Non- Executive Lawyer 04 04

Mr Sanjiv Ahuja Member Independent Certified Public Accountant 04 03

Mr Kranti Sinha Member Independent Corporate Consultant 04 04

(c) Information given to the Board
The following information is given to

the Board either as a part of agenda

of the meeting or by way of

presentation during the meeting:

Annual operating plans and

budgets, updates and variances

Quarterly, half-yearly and annual

results of the Company and its

subsidiary companies

Minutes of meeting of the Audit

Committee and other committees 

Minutes of all the subsidiary

companies

Information on recruitment of all

key managerial persons below the

Board level

Significant regulatory matters

Detailed risk analysis 

Details of potential acquisitions or

disinvestments

Details of potential joint venture or

collaborations

Details of investments 

Compliance with statutory

regulations, listing agreements

Significant investments, transactions

and arrangements of subsidiary

companies

Such other material and significant

information

The Board performs the following

functions in addition to oversight of

overall business and management:

Review, monitor and approve major

financial and business strategies and

corporate actions

Assess critical risks facing the

Company – review options for their

mitigation 

Ensure that processes are in place

for maintaining the integrity of

• the Company

• the financial statements

• compliance with law

• relationships with customers,

suppliers and other stakeholders

Delegation of appropriate authority

to senior executives of the Company

for effective management of

operations

3.Audit Committee
The Audit Committee of the Company

is constituted as required under

Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement

and Section 292A of the Companies

Act, 1956. The Committee comprises

three independent Directors and one

Non-Executive Director. The

Committee is chaired by an

Independent Director, Mr Nilesh

Vikamsey, a qualified chartered

accountant and diploma holder in

information system audit. All the

members of the Audit Committee are

financially literate and possess a

thorough knowledge of the industry

in which the Company operates.

The Audit Committee of the Company

met four (4) times during the last

financial year on April 26, 2006, July

24, 2006, October 17, 2006 and

January 23, 2007. The gap between

two Audit Committee meetings was

not more that four (4) months.

The scope of the Audit Committee

includes the references made under

Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement as

well as Section 292A of the

Companies Act, 1956, and other

recommendations made by the Board

of Directors such as:

Supervise the financial reporting

process and all financial results,

statements and disclosures

Recommend the financial

statements and disclosures to the

Board 

Review the adequacy of internal

control systems in the Company,

including the scope and performance

of the internal audit function; review

of related party transactions; reviewing

with management the performance of

internal and statutory auditors and

fixing their remuneration; 

Holding discussions with Statutory

Auditors on the nature and scope of

audit, ensuring compliance with all

the applicable Accounting Standards;

Compliance with the listing and other

legal requirements and the Company’s

financial and risk management policies

and 

Compliance with the statutory

requirements

4. Compensation/
Remuneration Committee
The Compensation/Remuneration

Committee comprises three

independent directors with 

Mr Sanjiv Ahuja as the Chairman of

the committee and Mr Nilesh

Vikamsey and Mr Kranti Sinha as

members. The committee met three

times during the year under review on 

May 4, 2006, October 17, 2006 and

March 15, 2007.

The Compensation/Remuneration

Committee reviews and makes

recommendations on annual salaries,

perquisites, performance-linked

bonus, stock options, pensions and

other employment conditions of

Executive and Non-Executive Directors

and senior employees. The committee

conducts discussions with the HR

department and lays down suitable

remuneration policies for the

employees. 

The Compensation/Remuneration

Committee also administers the

Company’s stock option plans. The

stock options granted by the

committee have been discussed in

detail in the Director’s Report. The

details of remuneration paid/payable

during the year ended March 31,

2007 are shown in the table below.

5. Share Transfer and
Investor Grievance
Committee
The Share Transfer and Investor

Grievance Committee comprises two

Independent Directors and an

Executive Director. Mr Kranti Sinha, an

independent Director is the Chairman

of the Committee and Mr Sanjiv Ahuja

and Mr R Venkataraman are the

members. The committee met four

times during the year on August 14,

2006, September 14, 2006, December

28, 2006 and March 30, 2007. 

During the year, the Company

received 15 complaints from

SEBI/stock exchanges/MCA. All

complaints were redressed to the

satisfaction of shareholders. There

were also no shares pending for

transfer as on March 31, 2007.

The Name, designation and address of

Compliance Officer of the Company is

as under:

Name and designation:

Mr Nimish Mehta, Company Secretary

Address : India Infoline Limited,

Building No.75, Nirlon Complex, off.

Western Express Highway, Goregaon

(east), Mumbai 400 063.

Contacts: Tel: +91 22 6648 9000

Fax: +91 22 2685 0451

E-mail: shareholders@indiainfoline.com

The Company has provided a specific

Email ID;

shareholders@indiainfoline.com, for the

shareholders to lodge their queries/

grievances.

The details of remuneration paid/payable during the year ended March 31, 2007: 

Name of the Director Salary Commission Perquisite Cont. to PF and other funds Sitting fees

Mr Nirmal Jain 9,787,500 Nil 24,600 27,840 Nil

Mr R Venkataraman 6,930,000 Nil 24,600 20,640 Nil

Mr Sat Pal Khattar Nil 500,000 Nil Nil 160,000

Mr Sanjiv Ahuja Nil 500,000 Nil Nil 130,000

Mr Kranti Sinha Nil 500,000 Nil Nil 250,000

Mr Nilesh Vikamsey Nil 500,000 Nil Nil 210,000
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6. Subsidiary
Companies
India Infoline Limited has nine

subsidiary companies of which India

Infoline Distribution Company Limited,

India Infoline Insurance Services

Limited and India Infoline Investment

Services Private Limited are material

un-listed subsidiary companies. Mr

Sanjiv Ahuja, an independent Director

on the Board of India Infoline Limited

(holding company) is also Director on

the Board of India Infoline Distribution

Company Limited and India Infoline

Insurance Services Limited and Mr

Nilesh Vikamsey, an independent

Director on the Board of India Infoline

Limited (holding company) is also a

director on the Board of India Infoline

Investment Services Private Limited.

As required under the new Clause 49,

the Company has adopted a practice of

placing the minutes and statements of

all the significant transactions of all the

un-listed subsidiary companies in the

meeting of Board of Directors of India

Infoline Limited. The Audit Committee

of the Company regularly reviews the

financials of the subsidiary companies.  

7. Disclosures
(a) Basis of related party
transactions
The statement of transactions with the

related parties, if any, is duly placed

before the Audit Committee on a

quarterly basis. During the year under

review, there are no materially

significant related party transactions

entered into by the Company with its

Promoters, Directors or Management

or their relatives, etc. that may conflict

with the interests of the Company and

all the transactions are on arms-length

basis and in the normal course of

business. 

The related party transactions have

been disclosed under Notes to

Accounts No. B15 of Schedule N

forming part of the Annual Accounts.

The Register of Contracts containing

the transactions in which the Directors

are interested is placed before the

Board regularly for its approval.

(b) Disclosure of accounting
treatment
There is no deviation in following the

treatments prescribed in any

Accounting Standard (AS) in the

preparation of financial statements of

the Company.

(c) Disclosure on risk
management
The Company has detailed risk

management policy in place. During

the year, a detailed presentation was

made to the Board on the risk

management system and process was

set to inform the Board members

about the risk assessment and

minimisation procedures. The

procedures and policies to minimise

the risk are periodically reviewed by

the Board to ensure that executive

management controls the risk through

defined risk management framework.

(d) Proceeds from public issue
and preferential issue 
The Company fully utilised the funds

raised through public issue of 

Rs 90.3 crore made in April 2005 and

preferential allotment of 

Rs 104.4 crore made in February 2006

for the specified purposes mentioned

in the prospectus and notice to

shareholders respectively during 2005-

06 as disclosed in the Annual Report

of 2005-06. Accordingly, the details

of utilisation of funds for 2006-07 is

not applicable. 

(e) Compensation paid to Non-
Executive Directors
The Non-Executive Directors and

Independent Directors are paid 

Rs 20,000 each towards sitting fees

for attending the Board Meeting and

Audit Committee Meetings, and 

Rs 10,000 each, towards attending

other committee meetings, in

accordance with the resolution passed

in the meeting of the Board of

Directors on February 11, 2005.

In addition, the Non-Executive

Directors and Independent Directors

are also paid commission of a sum

not exceeding Rs 20 lakh per annum

in aggregate subject to a maximum

ceiling of 1% of the net profits of the

Company computed under the

applicable provisions of the

Companies Act, 1956, and approved

by the shareholders at the Extra

Ordinary General Meeting held on

January 25, 2006.

(f) Periodic review of compliances
of all laws applicable
With the implementation of revised

Clause 49, the Company has adopted

a system whereby all the acts, rules

and regulations applicable to the

Company have been identified and

compliance with such acts, rules and

regulations monitored by professionals

on a quarterly basis and the findings

thereof reported to the Board of

Directors in their meetings.

(g) Code of conduct
The Company has formulated code of

conduct for all Board members and

senior management personnel of the

Company in accordance with the

Clause 49(1)(D) of the Listing

Agreement which was duly approved

and adopted by the Board in the

meeting held on March 21, 2005. The

same has also been posted on the

Company’s website

www.indiainfoline.com.

All directors and members of the

senior management, that include

company executives, have affirmed

their compliance with the said Code.

A declaration signed by the chief

Executive Officer to this effect is

appended at the end of this report. 

(h) Details of non-compliance
with regard to capital market
There have been no instances of non-

compliances by us and no penalties

and/or strictures have been imposed

on us by stock exchanges or SEBI or

any statutory authority on any matter

related to the capital market during

the last three years.

(i) Details of compliance with
mandatory requirements and
adoption of non-mandatory
requirements of Clause 49 of the
Listing Agreement
The Company has duly complied with

all the mandatory requirements of

Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement.

Besides complying with all the

mandatory requirements of Clause 49,

we have a Remuneration Committee of

the Board (known as Compensation/

Remuneration Committee), which

comprises of three Independent

Directors. All the members of the

Remuneration Committee were present

at the Annual General Meeting of the

Company held on July 24, 2006.

(j) CEO/CFO certificate
The certificate required under Clause

49(V) of the Listing Agreement duly

signed by the CEO and CFO has been

given to the Board and the same is

annexed to this report.

(k) Means of communication to
the stakeholders
The primary source of information to

shareholders, customers, analysts and

other stakeholders of the Company

and to society at large is its website,

www.indiainfoline.com. The annual

report, quarterly results, shareholding

pattern, copies of press releases, etc.,

are regularly uploaded on the

Company’s website. The Company

also regularly files its quarterly reports,

annual reports and shareholding

pattern on the SEBI website through

Electronic Data Information Filing and

Retrieval System (EDIFAR).

The quarterly results of the Company

are published in widely circulated

national newspapers like The

Economic Times and The Maharashtra

Times (Marathi). The Company also

regularly makes presentations to

analysts in their meetings held from

time to time.

8. General Body Meetings
The following table gives the details of the last three Annual General Meetings of the Company:

Date of AGM Location No. of Special Resolutions passed

July 24, 2006 International Conventional Hall, 1st Floor, Bombay Stock  None

Exchange Building, P. J. Towers, Fort, Mumbai 400001

August 10, 2005 Building No. 75, Nirlon Complex, Off Western Express 4

Highway, Goregaon (East), Mumbai 400063.

August 12, 2004 Building No. 24, Nirlon Complex, Off Western Express  None

Highway, Goregaon (East), Mumbai 400063.

All the special resolutions in the above AGMs were passed with a show of hands.

Postal Ballot
During the year under review, in pursuance to Section 192A of the Companies Act, 1956 and Companies (Passing of the

Resolution by Postal Ballot) Rules, 2001, we have conducted one postal ballot for seeking approval of shareholders by way

of special resolution. Mr Nilesh Shah, practising Company Secretary, Mumbai, was appointed as independent scrutiniser. The

results of the postal ballot were announced through Notice Board at the Registered Office of the Company website i.e.

www.indiainfoline.com and press advertisements.
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9. Particulars of Directors being appointed/re-appointed
A brief on Directors seeking re-appointment at this Annual General Meeting:

Name of the Director Mr Sanjiv Ahuja Mr Kranti Sinha
Date of Birth August 4, 1966 December 28, 1942
Total Work Experience 20 years 40 years
(in years)
Date of First Appointment August 28, 2002 January 27, 2005
Qualification Certified Public Accountant Masters Degree from Agra University
Other directorships held 1. Gurgaon Technology Park Limited, India

2. Pagro Foods Limited 1. Larsen & Toubro  Ltd.
3. Centennial Management Consultants 2. Hindustan Motors Ltd.

Pte Limited, Singapore
4. India Infoline Distribution Company Limited 3. Cinemax (India) Ltd.
5. India Infoline Insurance Services Limited 4. Gremach Infrastructure Equipment &

Projects Ltd.
6. Solitaire Capital Advisors (Singapore) 5. LICHFL Care Homes Ltd.

Pte Limited, Singapore
7. Solitaire Ventures Pte. Ltd., Singapore 6. The Global Institute for Financial & 

Education Services(India) Pvt. Ltd.
8. Solitaire Capital Holdings Pte. Ltd., Singapore
9. Solitaire Capital Investments Pte Ltd., Singapore
10. Solitaire Capital Advisors Private Limited, India
11. Solitaire Buildmart Pvt. Ltd.
12. Centennial Investments Ltd, Mauritius

Other committee 1. Gurgaon Technology Park Limited – Audit 1. Hindustan Motors Ltd. – 
memberships held and Business Development Committee Audit Committee

2. Cinemax (India) Ltd.
Compensation Committee

3. Gremach Infrastructure Equipment
& Projects Ltd. – Audit Committee, 
Investor Grievances Committee and 
Compensation Committee

Number of shares held Nil Nil
in India Infoline Limited

The summary of the results was as follows:

Sr. Date of declaration Particulars of resolution passed Total valid In favour Against
No. of result votes (%) (%)

1. August 8, 2006 Special Resolution for Alteration of Object 136 12,342,955 0
Clause of the Memorandum of Association (100%) (0%)

2. August 8, 2006 Special Resolution for Alteration of the 135 12,341,955 0
Memorandum of Association (100%) (0%)

3. August 8, 2006 Special Resolution for Commencement of a 
business covered under the sub-clause (C) of the 134 12,341,804 76
Clause III of the Memorandum of Association (99.99%) (0.01%)

4. August 8, 2006 Ordinary Resolution empowering Board of 134 12,341,120 760
Directors to Create Mortgage, charge etc. (99.99%) (0.01%)

All the four (4) aforesaid resolutions were approved by shareholders with the overwhelming requisite majority.

10. General shareholders’ information
A brief on Directors seeking re-appointment at this Annual General Meeting:

1. Annual General Meeting: June 20, 2007 at 2:30 p.m. at  Maharashtra Chambers of Commerce, 

K. Dubhash Marg, Fort, Mumbai - 400 023.

2. Financial Calendar Financial Year April 1, 2007 to March 31, 2008

(2007-2008) Tentative: 12th Annual General Meeting –  June 20, 2007 

Results for the Quarter Ended 30.06.2007 – 31.07.2007

Results for the Quarter Ended 30.09.2007 – 31.10.2007

Results for the Quarter Ended 31.12.2007 – 31.01.2008

Results for the Quarter Ended 31.03.2008 – 30.04.2008

3. Book Closure Date: June 14, 2007 to June 20, 2007 (both days inclusive)

4. Dividend payment date: Interim Dividend of Rs 3 per share was paid on March 19, 2007.

5 Listing of equity shares on National Stock Exchange of India Limited

stock exchanges at: The Bombay Stock Exchange Limited   

6 Stock code: National Stock Exchange of India Limited - INDIAINFO

The Bombay Stock Exchange Limited - 532636   

7 Demat ISIN Numbers in NSDL & ISIN No. INE530B01016

CDSL for equity shares:

8 Registrar and Transfer Agent: Intime Spectrum Registry Private Limited

C-13, Pannalal Silk Mills Compound,

L. B. S. Marg, Bhandup (West), 

Mumbai – 400 078. Tel : (91 22 2596 3838)

9 Share transfer system: The Company’s shares are compulsorily traded in dematerialised form. In the

case of transfers in physical form, which are lodged at the Registrar and 

Transfer Agent’s Office, these are processed within a period of 30 days from 

the date of receipt.

All share transfers and other share-related issues are approved in the Share 

Transfer and Investor Grievance Committee meeting, which is normally 

convened as and when required.

11 Dematerialisation of shares: As on March 31, 2007, 96.22% of the paid-up share capital of the Company 

was in dematerialised form. Trading in equity shares of the Company is 

permitted only in dematerialised form through CDSL and NSDL as per 

notification issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India.

12 Correspondence

(For dematerialisation, transfer of  Intime Spectrum Registry Private Limited

shares, non-receipt of dividend on C-13, Pannalal Silk Mills Compound,

shares, and any other query relating L. B. S. Marg, Bhandup (West), Mumbai – 400 078.

to the shares of the Company): Tel: (91 22 2596 3838)

13 Any query on Annual Report, Mr Nimish Mehta

contact our Registered Office: Compliance Officer,

75, Nirlon Complex, Off Western Express Highway, 

Goregaon (East), Mumbai – 400 063.

shareholders@indiainfoline.com
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14 Outstanding convertible i) 8,000 Optionally Convertible Bonds (OCBs) of Rs 100,000 each were issued
instruments, conversion date  to DSP Merrill Lynch Capital Limited on February 7, 2006. Out of the above
and likely impact on equity: 7,000 OCBs have been converted into 4,117,647 equity shares of Rs 10 each as

per the terms of issue. The balance 1,000 OCBs will be optionally convertible 
into the number of equity shares to be issued in one or more tranches in a price
range of Rs 140.40 to Rs 170 per share within 18 months of allotment. If the 
investor opts for conversion, the paid-up share capital of the Company will 
increase accordingly.

ii) 2,600,000 Equity Warrants were issued to the promoters on a preferential 
basis on February 8, 2006. Each Equity Warrant will be exercisable into one 
equity share to be issued in one or more tranches at the price of Rs 170 per 
share within a period of 18 months from the date of allotment. Against these 
an application money of 10% of the exercisable price, has been received. If the 
promoters opt for conversion of equity warrants into the equity shares, the 
paid-up share capital of the Company will increase accordingly.

iii) There are 2,000 unexercised employee stock options under the Company’s 
ESOP plan, 2000. The Company has also granted 1,500,000 ESOPs under its 
ESOP plan, 2005 which will vest into the grantees in tranches. Each Option 
granted is convertible into one equity share of the Company. Upon exercise of 
options by grantees the paid-up share capital of the Company will accordingly 
increase.

11. Shareholding pattern
Detailed shareholding pattern of the Company as on March 31, 2007 is as under:

Category No. of shares held Percentage of shareholding

Promoter’s holding

Promoters

– Individual 15,817,201 31.53

– Bodies Corporate 671,500 1.34

Sub-Total (a) 16,488,701 32.87

Non-Promoters holding 

Institutional investors

Mutual funds and UTI 5,746,914 11.46

Banks, financial institutions, insurance companies 
(Central/state govt. institutions/non - government institutions) 55,000 0.11

FIIs 7,852,908 15.65

Sub-Total (b) 13,654,822 27.22

Others

Private corporate bodies 7,976,256 15.90

Indian public 7,890,230 15.73

NRIs 470,878 0.94

Overseas corporate bodies 850,034 1.69

Foreign companies 2,810,017 5.60

Clearing members 26,260 0.05

Sub-Total (c) 20,023,675 39.91

GRAND TOTAL (a+b+c) 50,167,198 100.00

12. Distribution of shareholding as on March 31, 2007
The distribution of shareholders as on March 31, 2007 is as follows:

No. of Equity No. of % of No. of % of 
Shares held (Range) Shareholders Shareholders Shares Shareholdings

1 – 5,000 9,110 92.04 804,843 1.60

5,001 – 10,000 305 3.08 237,701 0.48

10,001 – 20,000 158 1.60 238,276 0.48

20,001 – 30,000 80 0.81 207,066 0.41

30,001 – 40,000 33 0.33 120,960 0.24

40,001 – 50,000 36 0.36 167,746 0.33

50,001 – 100,000 54 0.55 403,082 0.80

100,001 & above 119 1.23 47,987,524 95.66

Total 9,895 100.00 50,167,198 100.00

13. Stock Market Data

The table below gives the monthly high and low quotations of shares traded at Bombay Stock Exchange and the National
Stock Exchange of India for the current year. The chart below plots the daily closing price of India Infoline Limited versus the
BSE - Sensex and NSE - S&P CNX Nifty for the year ended March 31, 2007.

Month Share Prices at BSE (in Rs) Share Prices at NSE (in Rs)

High Low High Low

April, 2006 193.70 165.00 194.00 150.00

May, 2006 227.45 144.00 227.00 145.70

June, 2006 167.80 87.00 167.80 85.10

July, 2006 121.40 96.30 121.55 95.55

August, 2006 182.50 110.50 182.90 101.50

September, 2006 193.00 156.20 192.60 154.10

October, 2006 211.80 173.90 211.60 173.20

November, 2006 308.00 195.60 308.00 195.00

December, 2006 317.30 241.00 316.80 236.00

January, 2007 399.00 304.15 397.40 304.10

February, 2007 398.00 294.85 398.80 296.05

March, 2007 368.00 255.10 368.90 255.00
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Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and 
Chief Financial Officer (CFO) certification

We, Nirmal Jain, Chairman and Managing Director, and Kapil Krishan, Chief Financial Officer, of India Infoline Limited, to the

best of our knowledge and belief, certify that:

(a) We have reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year and that to the best of our

knowledge and belief:

(i) These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements that

might be misleading;

(ii) These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance with the existing

accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

(b) There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the year which

are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company’s code of conduct.

(c) We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls and that we have evaluated the effectiveness

of the internal control systems of the Company and we have disclosed to the auditors and the Audit Committee,

deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps we have taken

or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies. 

(d) We  have indicated to the auditors and the Audit committee

(i) significant changes in internal control during the year;

(ii) significant changes in accounting policies during the year and that the same have been disclosed in the notes to

the financial statements; and 

(iii) instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the

management or an employee having a significant role in the Company’s internal control.

Mumbai, Nirmal Jain Kapil Krishan 

April 25, 2007 Chairman and Managing Director Chief Financial Officer

Declaration on Compliance with the 
Code of Conduct

This is to confirm that the Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for its Board members and the senior management

and the same is available on the Company’s website. I confirm that the Company has in respect of financial year ended

March 31, 2007, received from the senior management team of the Company and the members of the Board a declaration

of compliance with the Code of Conduct as applicable to them.

For the purpose of this declaration, the term ‘senior management’ means the direct reportees to the Chairman and

Managing Director.

For India Infoline Limited

Mumbai, Nirmal Jain

April 25, 2007 Chairman and Managing Director



Auditor’s Certificate on Compliance of
conditions of Corporate Governance

To the Members of India Infoline Limited 

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by India Infoline Limited, for the year ended 31st

March 2007 as stipulated in Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement entered into by the Company with the stock exchanges. 

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management. Our examination was

limited to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions

of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statement of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we certify that the

Company has complied in all material respect with the conditions of corporate governance as stipulated in the Listing

Agreement as mentioned herein above. 

We state that no investor grievances are pending for a period exceeding one month against the Company as per the records

maintained by the Shareholders’ Grievance Committee. 

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or

effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Sharp & Tannan Associates

Chartered Accountants

By the hand of

Place: Mumbai Tirtharaj Khot

Date: 25th April 2007 Partner

Membership No.: 37457
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Standalone Auditors’ Report

To the Members,

India Infoline Limited 

1. We have audited the attached Balance Sheet of India

Infoline Limited as at 31st March 2007, the Profit and Loss

Account and also the Cash Flow Statement of the Company

for the year ended on that date, annexed thereto. These

financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's

management and our responsibility is to express an opinion

on these financial statements based on our audit.

2. We have conducted our audit in accordance with auditing

standards generally accepted in India. These standards

require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain

reasonable assurance about whether the financial

statements are free of material misstatement. An audit

includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting

the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An

audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used

and significant estimates made by management, as well as

evaluating the overall restated financial statement

presentation. We believe that our audit provides a

reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order,

2003, as amended by Companies (Auditor's Report)

(Amendment) Order, 2004 (hereinafter referred to as "the

Order") issued by the Central Government in terms of

Section 227 (4A) of the Companies Act, 1956, we enclose

in the Annexure a statement on the matters specified in

paragraphs 4 and 5 of the said Order.

4. Further, to our comments referred to in Para 3 above, we

report that:

i) we have obtained all the information and explanations

which to the best of our knowledge and belief were

necessary for the purpose of our audit;

ii) in our opinion, proper books of account as required by

law have been kept by the Company so far as appears

from our examination of the books; 

iii) the Balance Sheet, Profit and Loss Account and also

Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in

agreement with the books of account;

iv) in our opinion, the Balance Sheet, Profit and Loss

Account and also Cash Flow Statement dealt with by

this report comply with the accounting standards

referred to in sub-section (3C) of Section 211 of the

Companies Act, 1956;

v) on the basis of written representations received by the

company from its Directors as on 31st March, 2007

and taken on record by the Board of Directors, we

report that none of the Director is disqualified as on

31st March, 2007 from being appointed as a Director

in terms of the clause (g) of sub section (1) of section

274 of the Companies Act, 1956;

vi) in our opinion and to the best of our information and

according to the explanations given to us, the said

financial statements, read together with the significant

accounting policies and other notes to accounts, give

the information required by the Companies Act, 1956,

in the manner so required and give a true and fair view

in conformity with the accounting principles generally

accepted in India;

a. in case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs

of the Company as at 31st  March, 2007; 

b. in case of the Profit and Loss Account, of the profit

for the year ended on that date; and

c. in case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash

flows for the year ended on that date.

Sharp & Tannan Associates

Chartered Accountants

By the hand of

Place: Mumbai Tirtharaj Khot

Date: April 25, 2007 Partner

Membership No.: 37457
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INDIA INFOLINE LIMITED

Annexure to the Auditors’ Report

Annexure referred to in paragraph 3 of our report dated 25th April 2007 to the members of India Infoline Limited.

1. a) The Company has maintained proper records showing

full particulars, including quantitative details and

situations of the fixed assets.

b) According to the information and explanations given to

us, Company has carried out physical verification of

fixed assets in a phased manner.

c) During the year the Company has neither transferred

nor disposed off substantially any of its fixed assets.

2. The Company is not carrying on any manufacturing or

trading activity. Therefore, the provisions of sub clause (a),

(b), and (c), of clause (ii) of paragraph 4 of the Order are

not applicable to the Company.

3. a) The Company has granted loan to One Company

covered in the register maintained under Section 301 of

the Companies Act, 1956. The maximum amount

involved during the year was Rs.97,64,37,812/- and the

year-end balance of loans granted to such companies

was Rs.63,16,64,573/-.

b) In our opinion, the rate of interest and other terms and

conditions of such loans are not, prima facie,

prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

c) The Company has have been regular in payment of

interest; however there are no stipulations as to

repayment of principal amounts.

d) There is no overdue amount in excess of one Rs.1 lakh

in respect of loan granted to Companies listed in the

register maintained under Section 301 of the

Companies Act, 1956 since repayment schedule is not

stipulated.

e) The Company has not taken any loans from the

companies, firms or other parties covered in the register

maintained under Section 301 of the Companies Act,

1956. As the Company has not taken any loans, the

provisions of sub clause (e), (f) and (g) of clause (iii) of

paragraph 4 of the Order are not applicable to the

Company.

4. In our opinion and according to the information and

explanations given to us, there is adequate internal control

system commensurate with the size of the company and

nature of its business, for the purchase of fixed assets and

sale of services. Further, on the basis of our examination

and according to the information and explanations given

to us, we have neither come across nor have we been

informed of any instance of major weaknesses in the

aforesaid internal control system.

5. a) In our opinion and according to the information and

explanations given to us, the particulars of contracts or

arrangements that need to be entered into a Register in

pursuance of Section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956

and those brought to our notice, have been so entered.

b) In our opinion and according to the information and

explanations given to us, the transactions in pursuance

of such contract or arrangements have been made at

prices, which are not comparable since the prevailing

market prices of such services, in view of the

management, are not readily available.

6. The Company has not accepted any deposits from the

public of the nature, which attracts the provisions of

Section 58A, 58AA or any other relevant provision of the

Companies Act, 1956 and the rules made there under.

Therefore, the provision of clause (vi) of paragraph 4 of the

Order is not applicable to the Company.

7. In our opinion, the Company has an internal audit system

commensurate with its size and nature of its business.

8. As per the information and explanations given to us, in

respect of the class of industry the Company falls under,

the maintenance of cost records has not been prescribed

by the Central Government under section 209 (1) (d) of the

Companies act, 1956. Therefore, the provision of clause

(viii) of paragraph 4 of the Order is not applicable to the

Company.

9. a) According to the information and explanations given to

us, and as per the records of the Company, in our

opinion the Company is generally regular in depositing

undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund,

Investor Education and Protection Fund, Employees'

State Insurance, Income tax, Sales tax, Wealth tax,

Service tax, Customs duty, Excise duty, Cess and other

material statutory dues with the appropriate

authorities, where applicable. Based on the information

furnished to us, there are no undisputed statutory dues

as on 31st March 2007, which are outstanding for a

period exceeding six months from the date they

became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to

us, there are no cases of non-deposit with the

appropriate authorities of disputed dues of sales tax /

income tax / customs tax / wealth tax / Service tax /

excise duty and Cess.

10. At the end of the financial year, the Company has neither

accumulated losses exceeding fifty percent of its net worth

nor incurred any cash loss during the financial year and in

the immediately preceding financial year.

11. According to the information and explanations given to

us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of its

dues to its financial institution, bank or debenture holder.

12. We are of the opinion that the company has maintained

adequate records where the company has granted loans

and advances on the basis of security by way of pledge of

shares, debentures and other securities.

13. The Company is not a chit fund or a nidhi / mutual benefit

fund / society. Therefore, the provisions of sub clause (a),

(b), (c) and (d) of clause (xiii) of paragraph 4 of the Order

are not applicable to the Company.

14. According to the information and explanations given to

us, the Company is not dealing or trading in shares,

securities, debentures and other investments. Accordingly,

the provisions of clause (xiv) of paragraph 4 of the Order

are not applicable to the Company.

15. The Company has granted a Corporate Guarantee to bank

in respect of a loan availed by its subsidiaries company.

Based on the information and explanations given to us, we

are of the opinion that the terms and conditions on which

the guarantees are given are prima facie, not prejudicial to

the interest of the Company.

16. The Company has not availed any term loan during the

year. Therefore, the provisions of clause (xvi) of paragraph

4 of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

17. According to the information and explanations given to us

and on an overall examination of the balance sheet of the

Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term

basis have been used for long-term investments.

18. According to the information and explanations given to

us, the Company has not made preferential allotment of

shares to parties covered in the Register maintained under

section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956.

19. The Company has issued unsecured debentures during the

year. Since, these debentures are unsecured, the Company

is not required to and has not created a charge in respect

of these debentures.

20. The Company has not raised any money through a public

issue during the year. Therefore, the provision of clause

(xx) of paragraph 4 of the Order is not applicable to the

Company.

21. Based on the audit procedures performed and information

given to us and the representation made by the

Management, we report that no fraud on or by the

Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

Sharp & Tannan Associates

Chartered Accountants

By the hand of

Place: Mumbai Tirtharaj Khot

Date: April 25, 2007 Partner

Membership No.: 37457
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Profit and Loss Account For the year ended March 31, 2007

INDIA INFOLINE LIMITED

Balance Sheet As at March 31, 2007

(Amount in Rupees)

SOURCES OF FUNDS

Shareholders’ funds

Share capital A 501,671,980 451,008,510 

Reserves and surplus B 2,351,781,592 1,238,341,934 

Equity share warrants C 44,200,000 2,897,653,572 44,200,000 1,733,550,444

Loan funds

Secured loan D 446,823,557 15,013,666 

Unsecured loan E 362,696,475 809,520,032 800,900,971 815,914,637

Total 3,707,173,604 2,549,465,081

APPLICATION OF FUNDS

Fixed assets (Including Intangibles) F

Gross block 730,990,618 87,481,776

Less : Depreciation and amortisation (243,849,039) (52,308,658)

Net block 487,141,579 35,173,118

Investments G 1,714,503,772 1,002,491,597

Deferred tax

Deferred tax  assets 5,557,808 2,014,094 

Less: Deferred tax  liabilities – 5,557,808  – 2,014,094

Current assets, loans and advances H

Sundry debtors 1,307,232,094 54,875,242

Cash and bank balances 950,793,117 20,913,151

Loans and advances 2,197,398,251 1,721,628,163

4,455,423,462 1,797,416,556

Less : Current liabilities & provisions I

Current liabilities 2,445,196,842 84,637,913 

Provisions 510,256,175 202,992,370 

2,955,453,017 287,630,284

Net current assets 1,499,970,445 1,509,786,272

Total 3,707,173,604 2,549,465,081

Significant accounting policies and N

Notes to accounts

Schedules As at 31.3.2007 As at 31.3.2006

As per our attached report of even date

For Sharp & Tannan Associates For India Infoline Limited

Chartered Accountants 

By the hand of 

Tirtharaj Khot Nirmal Jain R Venkataraman Kapil Krishan Nimish Mehta 

Partner Managing Director Executive Director Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

M. No. 37457 

Place: Mumbai 

Dated : April 25, 2007

(Amount in Rupees)

INCOME

Online & other media 356,066,086 200,644,975

Equity brokerage & related income 2,313,537,976 –

Merchant banking income 28,200,000 –

Other income J 169,368,086 284,023,725

2,867,172,148 484,668,700

EXPENDITURE 

Direct cost K 738,203,422 –

Employee cost L 558,777,659 19,434,724

Administration & other expense M 586,787,672 31,233,914

Interest 63,945,341 21,798,284 

Depreciation & amortisation F 123,268,482 14,696,284 

2,070,982,576 87,163,206

Profit before tax 796,189,572 397,505,494

Less : Provision for taxation - Current 260,690,493 134,500,000

- Fringe benefit tax 11,917,407 328,500

- Deferred tax 2,364,980 (2,014,094)

Net profit after tax for available appropriations 521,216,692 264,691,088

APPROPRIATIONS

Dividend

- Interim dividend 149,612,079 87,848,760

- Proposed final – 45,468,266

Dividend distribution tax

- Interim dividend 20,983,095 12,320,789

- Proposed final – 6,376,924 

Addition due to Merger with India Infoline Securities Pvt. Ltd. 93,027,410

Transfer to General Reserve 53,000,000 30,000,000

Balance of Profit brought forward from previous year 83,471,040 794,691

Balance of Profit / (Loss) carried forward 474,119,968 83,471,040

Earning Per Share - Basic 11.25 6.23

- Diluted 10.33 5.94

Face Value Per Share 10.00 10.00

Significant accounting policies and N

Notes to accounts

Schedules 2006-07 2005-06

As per our attached report of even date

For Sharp & Tannan Associates For India Infoline Limited

Chartered Accountants 

By the hand of 

Tirtharaj Khot Nirmal Jain R Venkataraman Kapil Krishan Nimish Mehta 

Partner Managing Director Executive Director Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

M. No. 37457 

Place: Mumbai 

Dated : April 25, 2007
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Schedules forming part of the Balance Sheet As at March 31, 2007

INDIA INFOLINE LIMITED

Schedules forming part of the Balance Sheet As at March 31, 2007

As at 31.3.2007 As at 31.3.2006
(Amount in Rupees)

A SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised 
80,000,000 (Previous year - 80,000,000) Equity Shares of Rs.10 each 800,000,000 800,000,000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid Up
50,167,198 (Previous year - 45,100,851) Equity Shares of Rs.10 each fully paid -up 501,671,980 451,008,510

Total 501,671,980 451,008,510

Securities premium account
Opening balance 1,124,870,894 206,255,007

Addition during the year 658,823,520 972,256,488

Deduction during the year – (53,640,601)

1,783,694,414 1,124,870,894
General reserve
Opening balance 30,000,000

Addition during the year 53,000,000 30,000,000

83,000,000 30,000,000
Employee stock options outstanding 48,375,000 –   

Less : Deferred employee compensation expenses 37,407,790 –   

10,967,210 –
Profit and Loss Account 474,119,968 83,471,040

Total 2,351,781,592 1,238,341,934

B RESERVES AND SURPLUS

Overdraft from Banks

Secured against pledging of fixed deposits 57,480,949 15,013,666

Secured against margins and collaterals 389,342,608 –

Total 446,823,557 15,013,666

D SECURED LOANS

1% Optionally convertible bonds 100,112,631 800,900,971

Non convertible debentures 262,583,844 –

Total 362,696,475 800,900,971

E UNSECURED LOANS

Equity share warrants (Application money received against equity warrants ) 44,200,000 44,200,000

Notes : 
a) The Company allotted 4,117,647 equity shares of Rs.10 each at the strike price of Rs.170 per share, pursuant to exercise notice for part

conversion (7,000 Optionally Convertible Bonds) of 8,000 Optionally Convertible Bonds of Rs.100,000 each to DSP Merrill Lynch Capital Limited

as per the terms of issue 

b) The Company allotted 948,700 equity shares pursuant to exercising options by the employees under the ESOP scheme 2000.

C EQUITY SHARE WARRANTS

(Amount in Rupees)
GROSS BLOCK (AT COST) DEPRECIATION NET BLOCK 

Assets As on Assets Additions Deductions As on As on Depreciation Additions Deductions As on As on As on
01.4.2006 acquired during the during the 31.3.2007 01.4.2006 on merger during the during the 31.3.2007 31.3.2007 31.3.2006

on merger year year year year
Air Conditioner 4,227,350 7,260,488 22,259,150 – 33,746,988 1,221,470 1,935,472 5,083,577 – 8,240,519 25,506,469 3,005,880
Computers 48,025,341 68,401,788 130,364,741 – 246,791,870 30,613,934 27,508,502 57,815,578 – 115,938,014 130,853,856 17,411,407
Electrical Equipment 3,110,871 8,258,261 30,341,828 – 41,710,960 2,715,634 1,827,867 5,026,509 – 9,570,010 32,140,950 395,237
Furniture & Fixture 11,166,498 57,261,984 220,407,554 – 288,836,036 8,680,695 13,887,983 36,813,281 59,381,959 229,454,077 2,485,803
Office Equipment 4,849,755 9,558,421 24,745,100 – 39,153,275 3,308,504 2,494,616 5,629,376 11,432,496 27,720,781 1,541,251
Vsat – 20,103,117 14,750,306 – 34,853,423 – 6,653,994 5,618,583 – 12,272,577 22,580,846 –
Generator – 1,781,193 – – 1,781,193 – 356,239 356,239 – 712,478 1,068,715 –
Vehicles 7,100 – – – 7,100 7,100 – – – 7,100 – – 
Sub Total 71,386,915 172,625,252 442,868,679 – 686,880,845 46,547,337 54,664,673 116,343,143 – 217,555,153 469,325,693 24,839,578
Intangible Assets
Software 3,672,903 19,045,122 8,969,790 – 31,687,815 3,276,929 13,607,226 4,440,946 – 21,325,101 10,362,713 395,974
Membership Rights, 
The Stock Exchange, 
Mumbai 28,100,001 – 28,100,001 – 11,240,001 – 11,240,001 – – –
Non Compete fees 12,421,958 12,421,958 2,484,392 – 2,484,393 4,968,785 7,453,172 9,937,566
Sub Total 16,094,861 47,145,123 8,969,790 28,100,001 44,109,773 5,761,321 24,847,227 6,925,339 11,240,001 26,293,886 17,815,886 10,333,540
Grand Total 87,481,776 219,770,375 451,838,469 28,100,001 730,990,618 52,308,658 79,511,900 123,268,482 11,240,001 243,849,039 487,141,579 35,173,118
Previous Year 44,741,759 – 42,740,017 – 87,481,776 37,612,373 – 14,696,284 – 52,308,658 35,173,118 7,129,386

As at 31.3.2007 As at 31.3.2006

G INVESTMENTS

Quoted, Non Trade, Long Term (Value at Cost)
50,000 Unit, Can Multicap Equity Mutual Fund (Net Asset Value Rs.4,97,000 P.Y. Nil) 500,000

[Aggregate units of unquoted, non Trade, Long Term Investments Rs. 500,000 P.Y. Nil) –

Quoted, Non - Trade, Current, valued At Cost or Market value whichever is lower
Benchmark Mutual Fund Liquid Bees – 1,897

Un-Quoted, Non - Trade, Long Term (Value at cost)
16 % Debenture of Rs.100 each of Orion Tele-Equipment Pvt. Ltd.

Series A 1,500,000 Non Convertible Debentures 150,000,000

Series B  500,000 Optionally Convertible Debentures 50,000,000

Unquoted, Trade, Long Term (Valued at Cost)
Investments in Subsidiaries

1,400,100 (Previous year 1,400,100) Equity shares of Rs.10 each in 

India Infoline Distribution Company Limited 49,999,700 49,999,700

481,330 (Previous year 481,330) Equity shares of Rs.10 each in

India Infoline Insurance Services Limited 10,000,000 10,000,000

200,000 (Previous year 200,000) Equity shares of Rs.10 each in

India Infoline Commodities Private Limited 20,000,000 20,000,000

12,000,000 (Previous year 5,000,000) Equity shares of Rs.10 each in

India Infoline Investment Services Pvt. Ltd. 1,371,990,000 321,990,000

500,000 (Previous year 50,000) Equity shares of Rs.10 each in

India Infoline Insurance Brokers  Pvt. Ltd. 5,000,000 500,000

2,000,000 (Previous year Nil) Equity shares of Rs.10 each in

India Infoline Housing Finance Ltd  Pvt. Ltd. 20,000,000 –

950 (Previous year Nil) Equity Shares of AED 1000/- each

India Infoline Commodity DMCC. 11,755,102 –

65,000 (Previous year Nil) Equity Shares of  Rs.100/- each in

Moneyline Credit Pvt. Ltd. 7,888,970 –

50,000 (Previous year Nil) Equity Shares of  Rs.100/- each in

India Infoline Media & Research Services Ltd. 500,000 –

NIL (Previous year 8,950,000) Equity shares of Rs.10 each in

India Infoline Securities Private Limited – 600,000,000   

10,000 Equity Shares of Bombay Stock Exchange Limited of Rs. 1 each

includes written down value of the Membership card of Bombay Stock Exchange Limited 16,870,000 

(Refer Note : 5)

Total Investments 1,714,503,772 1,002,491,597 

F FIXED ASSETS
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Schedules forming part of the Profit and Loss Account For the year ended March 31, 2007

INDIA INFOLINE LIMITED

Schedules forming part of the Balance Sheet As at March 31, 2007

As at 31.3.2007 As at 31.3.2006
(Amount in Rupees)

H CURRENT ASSETS, LOANS AND ADVANCES

A) Current Assets
I) Sundry Debtors (Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated)

Outstanding for a period exceeding six months 29,535,496 443,582

considered doubtful 7,375,518 –

36,911,014 443,582
Other debts 1,277,696,598 54,431,660

Provision for doubtful debts (7,375,518) –

1,307,232,094 54,875,242
II) Cash and Bank Balance

Cash on hand 5,783,918 464,463

Bank balances

With Schedule Banks :

–  In Current Accounts 265,451,842 996,440

–  in Fixed Deposits 679,557,357 19,452,248

950,793,117 20,913,151
B) Loans and Advances (Unsecured, Considered good, unless otherwise stated)

Loans to subsidiaries 631,664,573 806,207,769

Advances to subsidiaries 485,259,249 588,914,421

Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received. 83,863,315 552,653

Deposits with stock exchanges and others 203,179,883 22,913,911

Advance income tax, refund & tax deducted at source 410,343,115 118,007,864

Other loans & advances 383,088,116 185,031,545

2,197,398,251 1,721,628,163
Total 4,455,423,462 1,797,416,556

A) Current Liabilities
Sundry Creditors

Dues to Small Scale Industrial Undertaking – –   

Others 1,798,431,569 6,065,927

Dues to subsidiary 417,299,788 51,045,700

Income received in advance 651,601 951,983

Interest accrued but not due 524,160 –

Other liabilities 228,289,724 26,574,304

2,445,196,842 84,637,913

B) Provisions
Provision for gratuity 9,702,687 281,526

Provision for leave encashment 7,460,884 137,154

Provision for taxation 493,092,604 150,728,500

Proposed dividend – 45,468,266

Provision for dividend distribution tax – 6,376,924

510,256,175 202,992,370
Total 2,955,453,017 287,630,284

I CURRENT LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS

2006-07 2005-06
(Amount in Rupees)

J OTHER INCOME

Interest on Fixed Deposits (Gross) (Includes T.D.S Rs.71,80,566/- P.Y. Rs. 555,445) 38,050,467 2,107,902

Sub letting income 10,030,628 6,976,800

Miscellaneous income 97,858,491 28,569,623

Client referral fees 11,278,500 170,169,400

Call centre income 12,150,000 58,200,000

Content income – 18,000,000

169,368,086 284,023,725

Brokerage rebate and remisier expenses 394,734,033 –

Exchange and statutory charges 343,469,389 –

738,203,422 –

K DIRECT COST

Salaries and bonus 508,330,152 29,069,149

Contribution to provident fund and other funds 19,636,438 62,829

Gratuity 7,977,204 –

Staff welfare expenses 15,261,914 803,876

Deferred employee compensation expenses 10,967,210 –  

562,172,918 29,935,854

Less :- Recovery of expenses from subsidiary (3,395,259) (10,501,130)

558,777,659 19,434,724

L EMPLOYEE COST

Advertisement expense 25,980,730 3,485,641

Rent 142,207,632 3,060,723

Electricity expenses 27,936,563 1,116,602

Communication expenses 143,515,100 3,049,206

Printing and stationery 44,126,125 3,352,803

Postage and courier 12,949,006 820,642

Bank charges 19,588,595 176,622

Repairs and maintenance:

- Computers 5,453,532 29,139

- Others 6,827,695 12,281,227 137,673

Travelling and conveyance 28,625,662 1,366,818

Legal and professional charges 41,203,255 9,816,412

Remuneration to auditors

- Audit fees 600,000 150,000

- Certification work and other matters 81,116 60,000

- Out of pocket expenses 189,247 870,363 5,000

Office expenses 24,058,377 208,336

Software charges 42,758,974 3,011,876

Miscellaneous expenses 20,686,063 1,386,421

Total 586,787,672 31,233,914

M ADMINISTRATION AND OTHER EXPENSES
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Schedules forming part of the Profit and Loss Account For the year ended March 31, 2007

INDIA INFOLINE LIMITED

Schedules forming part of the Profit and Loss Account For the year ended March 31, 2007

A. Significant Accounting Policies:
1) Basis of preparation of financial statements: 

The financial statements have been prepared under historical cost convention on an accrual basis.

2) Use of Estimates:
The presentation of financial statements in conformity with the generally accepted accounting principles requires estimates and

assumptions to be made that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities on the date of the financial statements and the reported

amount of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Difference between the actual result and estimates are recognised in the

period in which the results are known / materialised.

3) Revenue Recognition:
Revenue from media is recognised pro-rata over the contractual / subscription period. Client Referral Fees and Call Centre Income are

recognised based on their respective contractual terms.

4) Intangible Asset & amortisation:
The Intangible Assets are stated at cost of acquisition less amortisation. These are amortised as below:

Software 3 years

Goodwill 5 years 

5) Fixed Assets and Depreciation:
Fixed assets are stated at cost of acquisition less accumulated depreciation thereon. Depreciation is charged using the straight line method

based on the useful lives of fixed assets as estimated by the management as specified below, or the rates specified in accordance with the

provisions of schedule XIV of the Companies Act, 1956, which-ever is higher.

Depreciation is charged from the quarter in which new assets are purchased. No depreciation is charged from the quarter in which assets

are sold. 

Individual assets costing less than Rs 5,000 have been depreciated in full in the year of purchase. 

Estimated useful life of the assets is as under:

Computer equipment 3 years 

Office equipment, 5 years 

Furniture and fixtures 5 years 

VSATs 5 years

6) Investments:
Investments are classified into current and long-term investments. Current investments are stated at lower of cost or market value. Long-

term investments are carried at cost less provisions, if any, for permanent diminution in the value of such Investment.

7) Foreign exchange transactions: 
Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the prevailing rates at the time transactions were effected. Foreign currency assets &

liabilities outstanding at the year-end are translated at the rates of exchange ruling on that day; gain / loss on transactions are accounted

in the Profit & Loss account, or adjusted in the value of Fixed Assets, as applicable.

8) Retirement Benefits:
The company's contribution towards Provident Fund and Family Pension Fund is charged against revenue on actual basis.

The Company has provided Gratuity on the basis of actuarial valuation and leave encashment payable to employees on actual basis.

9) Deferred Employee Stock Compensation: 
The Company has formulated an Employees stock Option Scheme. The Scheme provides that employees are granted an option to acquire

equity shares of the company that vests in a granted manner. The options may be exercised within a specified period. The company follows

the intrinsic value method as prescribed by the guidance note on "Accounting for stock options" issued by the Institute of Chartered

Accountants of India ("ICAI") to account for its stock-based employee compensation plans.

10) Leases:
Lease rentals in respect of operating lease arrangements are charged to the Profit & Loss Account in accordance with Accounting Standard

19 - Leases, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

11) Taxes on Income:
Provision for current tax is computed in accordance with relevant tax provisions.

Deferred tax is recognised for all timing differences between accounting income & taxable income and is quantified using enacted /

substantially enacted tax rates as at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets are recognised subject to the management judgement that

the realisation is reasonably certain. 

Forming part of the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2007 and Profit and Loss Account for the year ended March 31, 2007.

N SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES

B. Notes to accounts:  
1) The board of directors of India Infoline Ltd. (IIL) and India Infoline Securities (P) Ltd.  (IISPL) in their meeting held on April 26, 2006

approved merger of India Infoline Securities (P) Ltd. a wholly owned subsidiary with India Infoline Ltd. under Section 391 - 394 of

Companies Act, 1956 and subject to necessary approvals. Further to the approvals of BSE and NSE as well as prior approvals of SEBI for

the scheme of amalgamation of  IISPL with IIL, the merger was approved by Hon'ble High Court Mumbai vide its order dated January 12,

2007. The merger has been effected with the filing of the order of the High Court with ROC on February 1, 2007. As per the order of the

HC, the merger  is effective from April 1, 2006. Accordingly the financial results of India Infoline Ltd. for the year 2006-07 are of the

merged entity. The orders have been filed with SEBI for effecting changes in the registration certificates in the name of IIL and the same

are awaited.

The current year figures include the results of India Infoline Securities Pvt. Ltd. and are therefore not comparable with those of the previous

year.

2) The company has provided a Corporate Guarantee on behalf of wholly owned subsidiary India Infoline Commodities Pvt. Ltd to the extent

of 80,000,000.

3) Secured loan from banks and institution is secured against pledge of securities amounting to Rs. 1,488,432,452 obtained as margin and

collaterals and Rs.66,977,000 secured against pledge of Fixed Deposit.

4) Interest expenses include the interest on Debentures Rs. 20,539,725 (Previous year Rs.15,128,172).

5) In accordance with the BSE (Corporatisation and Demutualisation) Scheme 2005, the company has subscribed to and was allotted 10,000

fully paid equity shares of the face value of Re. 1 each for cash at par of Bombay Stock Exchange Limited (BSEL) which are in the nature

of long term investments and have accordingly been disclosed in Schedule G to the Balance Sheet, the company has transferred the net

book value of its Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) membership cards amounting to Rs. 16,860,000 as on April 1, 2006 from Fixed Assets

(Schedule F) to Investments (Schedule G). Hitherto, the membership cards of BSE were being amortised over a period of 5 years. Had this

amortisation continued, amortisation for the year would have been higher by Rs.56,20,000 and profit before tax for the year would have

been lower to that extent.

6) The Company provides for the use of its wholly owned subsidiaries certain facilities like use of premises, infrastructure and other facilities

and services and the same are termed as 'Shared Services'. Hitherto, such shared services consisting of administration and other revenue

expenses paid for by the company were identified and recovered from them based on reasonable management estimates in accordance

with Board Resolution passed in this regard, which are constantly refined in the light of additional knowledge gained relevant to such

estimation. During the year ended March 31, 2007, these expenses are recovered on an actual basis and the estimates are used only where

actual were difficult to determine.

7) Till March, 2006, depreciation has been provided for the full year on assets acquired during the year irrespective of the date of acquisition.

8) Till December 31, 2006, the company provided services to India Infoline Insurance Services Limited (IIISL) and India Infoline Commodities

Private Limited (IICPL) towards:

1) Client Lead Fees for providing client lead services for commodities broking account

2) Providing Call Centre services to support their operations. 

These agreements have been terminated w.e.f. January 1, 2007. The Company is a registered Information Technology Enabled 

Services provider. The various charges / fees to be received by the company during the year are as under: 

9) The company during the financial year 1999-00 had announced an Employee Stock Option Plan (ESOP 2000), which provided for grant of

share options to employees of the company. The plan had reserved a total of 815,000 shares (2,445,000 shares after giving effect to Bonus

shares) for issuance under ESOP 2000. Until now the company has granted the options in three tranches being 11,37,000 options on March

1, 2000; 9,79,250 options on April 1, 2003, and finally 6,94,200 options on October 1, 2004 from the balance ESOPs including lapsed options

Forming part of the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2007 and Profit and Loss Account for the year ended March 31, 2007.

N SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES (Contd.)

(Amount in Rupees)

IIISL IICPL
Client leads services – 11,278,500

(–) (5,593,150)

Call centre charges 6,750,000 5,400,000

(9,000,000) (7,200,000)

Year ended 31st March, 2007
(Previous year)

Particulars 2006-07 2005-06

STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF INDIA INFOLINE LIMITED STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF INDIA INFOLINE LIMITED
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Schedules forming part of the Profit and Loss Account For the year ended March 31, 2007

INDIA INFOLINE LIMITED

Schedules forming part of the Profit and Loss Account For the year ended March 31, 2007

Forming part of the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2007 and Profit and Loss Account for the year ended March 31, 2007.

N SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES (Contd.)

from the earlier offerings. As on date 2,000 options are in force and 2,99,340 options have lapsed. No further options shall be granted under

the said scheme (ESOP 2000) in terms of the disclosures made in the prospectus dated April 11, 2005 issued by the company.

The company pursuant to approval of "Employee Stock Option Plan 2005" (ESOP 2005) at the Extra ordinary General Meeting of the

shareholders of the company held on January 25, 2006 providing for issue of 25,00,000 options entitling to a total of 25,00,000 shares to

the employees of the company and its subsidiaries including directors of the company (except an employee or director who is a promoter or

belongs to the promoter group or a director who either by himself or through his relatives or through any body corporate, directly or indirectly

holds more than10% of the outstanding equity shares of the company at any time) whether in India or at overseas location, has granted

15,00,000 options under this plan on May 4, 2006.

10) During the year, the company has formed / acquired  new subsidiaries as detailed below.

11) Of the 8,000 1% Optionally Convertible Bonds (OCBs) issued to DSP Merrill Lynch Ltd., 7,000 OCBs were converted into equity shares on

January 23, 2007 and  1,000 OCBs are outstanding as of March 31, 2007. Interest on the outstanding OCBs has been provided for at the

agreed rate of @1% p a. The Management is of the view that the OCBs will be exercised for conversion and interest has accordingly been

provided in the accounts. In case of redemption of bonds, the additional interest payable for the year will be 8,000,000. To this extent the

profits of the company for the year are overstated.

12) The Accounting Standard 22 on 'Accounting for Taxes on Income' first became applicable to the Company from the accounting periods

beginning April 1, 2002. The company recognised deferred tax assets for the first time for the year ended on March 31, 2007 since the

management is reasonably virtual certain of its profitable operations in future. Deferred tax assets as at March 31, 2007 are as below:

Deferred Tax Assets

13) The Company has taken office premises on operating lease at various locations. Lease rent in respect of the same have been charged to Profit

and Loss account. The agreements are executed for a period ranging from one to five years with a renewable clause. Some agreements have

a clause for a minimum lock-in period. The agreements also have a clause for termination by either party giving a prior notice period between

30 to 90 days. The minimum Lease rentals outstanding as at March 31, 2007, are as under:

*These subsidiaries have not commenced operations till March 31, 2007

Amount Nature of Business
Name of Subsidiary Invested (Rs)

(Amount in Rupees)

India Infoline Housing Finance. Ltd. * 20,000,000 Housing finance

India Infoline Commodity DMCC. * 11,755,102 Membership of Dubai Gold & Commodity Exchange

Moneyline Credit Pvt Ltd 7,888,970 Personal Finance

India Infoline Media & Research Services Ltd 500,000 Online media and other services

2007-06 2005-06
(Amount in Rupees)

On Gratuity/Leave Encashment 3,297,944 947,062

Depreciation (247,074) 1,919,332

Provision for doubtful debts 2,506,938 –

Total 5,557,808 2,866,394

Minimum Lease Rentals 2007-06 2005-06

Due for:

- Upto one year 43,739,236 2,220,170

- One to five years 20,377,000 –

- Over five years – –

Total 64,116,236 2,220,170

Equity broking & Online & other
related income media income Others Total

Segment Revenue 2,313,537,976 356,066,086 197,568,086 2,867,172,148
(218,644,975) (266,023,725) (484,668,700)

Segment Results 590,279,466 338,124,385 168,457,622 1,096,861,473
(206,072,979) (236,076,162) (442,149,141)

Less : Unallocated Expenses net of 236,726,560
other unallocated income (22,845,364)      
Interest 63,945,341

(21,798,284)
Less : Income Tax 274,972,881

(132,814,406)
Profit After Tax 521,216,691

(264,691,088)
Segment Assets 3,019,296,181 14,120,223 1,083,877,485 4,117,293,889

(22,752,124) (309,273,997) (332,026,121)
Unallocated Assets –  2,545,332,732

(2,505,069,243)
Total Assets 6,662,626,621

(2,837,095,364)
Segment Liabilities 2,382,081,517 721,751 –   2,382,803,268

(353,782) (2,575,847) (1,151,983)
Unallocated Corporate Liabilities – 1,382,169,781

(1,050,547,747)
Total Liabilities 3,764,973,049

(1,051,699,730)
Capital Expenditure 427,276,449 427,276,449

(915,718) (16,495,689) (17,411,407)
Unallocated Capital Expenditure 24,562,020

(17,761,711)
Total Capital Expenditure 451,838,469

(35,173,118)
Depreciation 93,085,366 1,103,683 94,189,049

(508,728) (9,401,779) (9,910,507)
Unallocated Depreciation – 29,079,433

(4,785,778)
Total Depreciation 123,268,482

(14,696,285)
Non Cash Expenditure other than Depreciation NIL

(NIL)

Forming part of the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2007 and Profit and Loss Account for the year ended March 31, 2007.

N SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES (Contd.)

14) Segment Reporting:
Segment information for the year ended March 31, 2007
Primary segment information (by business segment)

15) Related Party Disclosures:
Related party disclosures as on March 31, 2007.
Nature of relationship Name of party
(a) Related parties where control exists:

Subsidiaries India Infoline Distribution Company Limited
India Infoline Insurance Services Limited
India Infoline Commodities Private Limited
India Infoline Investment Services Private Limited
India Infoline Insurance Brokers Limited
India Infoline Housing Finance Limited
India Infoline Media and Research Services Limited
India Infoline Commodity DMCC
Moneyline Credit Pvt Limited

Note: The Company operates in only one geographic segment i.e. 'India'. Hence separate information on geographical segment is not required.

The other segment, if any, constitutes income like interest on investments etc, which are not the regular income streams of the company and

hence segment results, segment assets and segment liabilities are, accordingly disclosed. The accounting policies adopted for segment

reporting are in line with the accounting policies adopted for preparation of financial information of the company.

STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF INDIA INFOLINE LIMITED STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF INDIA INFOLINE LIMITED
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Schedules forming part of the Profit and Loss Account For the year ended March 31, 2007

INDIA INFOLINE LIMITED

Schedules forming part of the Profit and Loss Account For the year ended March 31, 2007

Forming part of the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2007 and Profit and Loss Account for the year ended March 31, 2007.

N SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES (Contd.)

(b) Other related parties:
Key Management Personnel Mr Nirmal Jain

Mr R Venkataraman

(c) Significant Transactions with Related Parties
Significant transactions with related parties (figure in bracket represents previous year figures)

Outstanding as at March 31, 2007

Key Managerial

Nature of Transaction Subsidiaries Personnel Total

Investment (refer Schedule G) 1,094,644,072 – 1,094,644,072

(600,500,000) – (600,500,000)

Share Capital (refer Schedule A) – –   –

– (44,200,000) (44,200,000)

Purchase of Securities & Commodities 9,759,417,939 121,122,003 9,880,539,941

(1,733,823,315) (114,527,809) (1,848,351,124)

Sale of Securities & Commodities 9,472,034,336 119,021,705 9,591,056,041

(1,592,904,497) (117,973,325) (1,710,877,822)

Brokerage Income 2,812,915 83,766 2,896,681

(3,884,876) (153,833) (4,038,709)

Remuneration – 16,717,500 16,717,500

–   (14,209,000) (14,209,000)

Reimbursement Of Expenses – 49,200 49,200

–   (2,706,000) (2,706,000)

Interest Income 69,438,891 – 69,438,891

(24,421,324) – (24,421,324)

Content Income – –

(18,000,000) – (18,000,000)

Client Referral Income(refer Note  8) 11,278,500 – 11,278,500

(170,169,400) – (170,169,400)

Call Centre Income (refer Note  8) 12,150,000 – 12,150,000

(58,200,000) – (58,200,000)

Corporate Guarantee (refer Note  2) 80,000,000 80,000,000

(870,000,000) – (870,000,000)

Advances given / Reimbursement of Expenses 2,779,059,208 – 2,779,059,208

(4,691,811,003) – (4,691,811,003)

Advance taken / allocation of expenses 2,906,654,104 – 2,906,654,104

(3,460,981,733) – (3,460,981,733)

Key Managerial

Nature of Transaction Subsidiaries Personnel Total

Creditors 417,299,788 – 417,299,788

(51,045,700) (7,092,396) (58,138,096)

Loans & advances 1,116,923,822 – 1,116,923,822

(1,395,122,190) – (1,395,122,190)

Investments 1,497,133,772 – 1,497,133,772

(1,002,489,700) – (1,002,489,700)

Guarantees 80,000,000 80,000,000

(870,000,000) (870,000,000)

(Amount in Rupees)

Forming part of the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2007 and Profit and Loss Account for the year ended March 31, 2007.

N SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES (Contd.)

16) Basic and Diluted Earning per Share ["EPS"] computed in accordance with Accounting Standard (AS) 20 “Earnings per share"

Particulars 2006-07 2005-06

BASIC
Profit after tax as per Profit and Loss account A 521,216,692 264,691,088
Number of Shares Subscribed B 46,334,726 42,510,382
Basic EPS (Rupees) A/B 11.25 6.23
DILUTED
Profit after tax as per Profit and Loss account A 525,658,745 264,691,088
Number of Shares Subscribed 46,334,726 42,510,382
Add: Potential Equity Shares on Account conversion of 
Employees Stock Options, Promoter warrants, OCB etc. 4,554,619 2,052,091
Weighted Number of Shares Outstanding B 50,889,345 44,562,473
Diluted EPS (Rupees) A/B 10.33 5.94

17) Loans and Advances Includes Dues from Companies under same Management 
Sl. No. Name Particulars 2006-07 2005-06

1 India Infoline Investment Services Pvt. Limited Outstanding at year end 631,664,573 823,924,358
Maximum Amount Outstanding 976,437,812 823,924,358

2 India Infoline Insurance Service Limited Outstanding at year end 250,973,826 54,216,602
Maximum Amount Outstanding 338,741,923 84,238,750

3 India Infoline Distribution Company Limited Outstanding at year end 116,906,341 –
Maximum Amount Outstanding 287,452,727

4 India Infoline insurance Brokers Limited Outstanding at year end 123,670
Maximum Amount Outstanding 174,170 123,670

6 India Infoline Media & Research Services Limited Outstanding at year end 112,547,512 –
Maximum Amount Outstanding 112,547,512 –

7 India Infoline Commodities DMCC Outstanding at year end 4,831,570 –
Maximum Amount Outstanding 4,831,570 –

2006-07 2005-06

Wholetime Directors
Salaries and Allowances 16,717,500 14,209,000
Company Contribution to Provident Fund, etc. 48,480 144,000
Perquisites 49,200 2,706,000
Non-Wholetime Directors
Commission 2,000,000 2,000,000

18) Directors Remuneration

2006-07 2005-06

Profit before tax as per Profit and Loss Account 796,189,572 397,505,494

Add: Depreciation charged to the Accounts 123,268,482

Managing and Whole -time Directors' remuneration 16,815,180

Directors' sitting fees 814,480

140,898,142 32,655,285

937,087,714 430,160,779

Less: Depreciation as per section 350 of the Companies Act, 1956 50,578,557

Excess of expenditure over income as per Section 349

50,578,557 12,150,446

Net profit as per section 349 of the Companies Act, 1956 886,509,157 418,010,333

Maximum permissible remuneration under Section 198 of

the companies Act, 1956 @ 10% of the profit computed above to 

Whole Time Directors 88,650,916 41,801,033

Maximum permissible remuneration under section 198 of 

the companies Act, 1956 @ 1% of the profit computed above to 

Non-Whole Time Directors 8,865,092 4,180,103

Computation of Net Profit in accordance with Section 349 of the Companies Act, 1956

STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF INDIA INFOLINE LIMITED STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF INDIA INFOLINE LIMITED
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Cash Flow Statement For the year ended March 31, 2007

INDIA INFOLINE LIMITED

Schedules forming part of the Profit and Loss Account For the year ended March 31, 2007

Forming part of the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2007 and Profit and Loss Account for the year ended March 31, 2007.

N SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES (Contd.)

19) Information under paragraphs 3 and 4 of part II to schedule VI of the Companies Act, 1956 is stated to the extent applicable.

2006-07 2005-06

Earnings in Foreign Currency
Content Sale – –

Online Media Rs.3,405,946 Rs.5,674,180

Expenses in Foreign Currency
Professional Fees 3,299,822 542,150

Travelling Expenses 1,605,265 325,460

Salaries 3,108,218 –

Type of Dividend 2006-07 2005-06

Type of Dividend Interim Dividend Final Dividend Interim Dividend
Number of Non-resident shareholder 5 6 5

Number of shares held by them 981,000 2,904,565 2,184,000

Gross amount of dividend 2,943,000 2,904,565 4,368,000

During the year the company remitted the dividend in foreign currency. The details are under.

Other requirements of para 3 and 4 of part II to schedule VI of the Companies Act, 1956 are not applicable to the company.

20) The Company fully utilised the funds raised through public issue of Rs. 90.28 crore made in April 2005 and preferential allotment of 

Rs. 104.40 crore made in February 2006 for the specified purposes mentioned in the prospectus and notice to shareholders respectively during

the year 2005-06 as disclosed in the Annual Report of 2005-06. Accordingly the details of utilisation of funds for the current year 2006-07 is

not applicable.

21) There are no dues to small scale industrial undertaking outstanding for more than 30 days.

22) Previous year figures have been regrouped, reclassified & rearranged, wherever considered necessary to confirm to current years presentation.

As per our attached report of even date.

As per our attached report of even date

For Sharp & Tannan Associates For India Infoline Limited

Chartered Accountants 

By the hand of 

Tirtharaj Khot Nirmal Jain R Venkataraman Kapil Krishan Nimish Mehta 

Partner Managing Director Executive Director Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

M. No. 37457 

Place: Mumbai 

Dated : April 25, 2007

Particulars As at 31.3.2007 As at 31.3.2006
(Amount in Rupees)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net profit before taxation, and extraordinary items 796,189,572 397,505,494

Adjustments for:

Depreciation & Amortisation 123,268,482 14,696,284

Provisions for Gratuity 7,977,204 – 

Provisions for Leave Encashment 8,232,126 137,154

Foreign exchange loss (32,003) 11,422

Interest income (76,285,635) (22,313,422)

Loss / (Profit) on Sale of Investments – (2,666,206)

Interest expense 63,945,341 21,798,284 

India Infoline Securities Pvt. Ltd. (Reserves) 93,027,410 –   

Tax (Paid) / Refund (292,335,251) (118,666,100)

Operating profit before working capital changes 723,987,246 290,502,910

(Increase) / Decrease in sundry debtors (1,252,356,853) (39,973,157)

(Increase) / Decrease in Loans & Advances (740,149,801) (199,582,514)

(Increase) / Decrease in Group Co. Balances 644,452,456 (1,236,651,082)

Increase / (Decrease) in Provisions 291,054,475 (290,535)

Increase / (Decrease) in Current Liabilities 1,961,772,520 7,608,929

Cash generated from operations 1,628,760,043 (1,178,385,448)

Cash flow before extraordinary item 1,628,760,043 (1,178,385,448)

Foreign Exchange Loss 32,003 (11,422)

Net cash from operating activities 1,628,792,046 (1,178,396,870)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of fixed assets (567,754,597) (29,767,909)

Purchase of intangibles (7,482,347) (12,972,108)

Purchase / sale of Investments (712,012,175) (596,735,391)

Interest received 76,285,635 22,313,422

Net cash from investing activities (1,210,963,484) (617,161,985)

STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF INDIA INFOLINE LIMITED STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF INDIA INFOLINE LIMITED
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Balance Sheet Abstract

INDIA INFOLINE LIMITED

Cash Flow Statement For the year ended March 31, 2007

Particulars As at 31.3.2007 As at 31.3.2006
(Amount in Rupees)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from issuance of share capital 709,486,990 1,097,605,777

(Repayment) / Proceeds of long-term borrowings 681,809,891 801,326,757

Conversion of optionally convertible bonds (699,999,990) –

Deferred Employee Compensation 10,967,210 –  

Interest paid (63,945,341) (21,798,284)

Dividend Paid (170,595,174) (87,848,760)

Net cash used in financing activities 467,723,586 1,789,285,490

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 885,552,148 (6,273,364)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period (see note 1) 12,060,621 18,333,985

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period (see note 1) 897,612,770 12,060,621

Net increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Opening Cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand and balances with banks 20,913,151 20,330,580

Short-term investments – –

Less: Bank overdraft 8,852,530 (1,996,595)

12,060,621 18,333,985

Closing Cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand and balances with banks 950,793,117 20,913,151 

Short-term investments 

Less: Bank Overdraft (53,180,347) (8,852,530)

897,612,770 12,060,621

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 885,552,148 (6,273,363)

As per our attached report of even date

For Sharp & Tannan Associates For India Infoline Limited

Chartered Accountants 

By the hand of 

Tirtharaj Khot Nirmal Jain R Venkataraman Kapil Krishan Nimish Mehta 

Partner Managing Director Executive Director Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

M. No. 37457 

Place: Mumbai 

Dated : April 25, 2007

1. Cash flow statement has been prepared under the Indirect Method as set out in the Accounting Standard (AS-3) "Cash Flow Statement"

issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

2. Previous year's figures have been re-grouped / re-arranged wherever considered necessary.

Public Issue

Bonus Issue

3 1 0 3

Registration No.

Balance Sheet Date

I. Registration Details

II. Capital Raised during the year (Amount in Rs. Thousands)

Total Liabilities

III. Position of Mobilisation and Deployment of Funds (Amount in Rs. Thousands)

2 0 0 7

Date Month Year

Private Placement

Paid-up Capital

Sources of Funds

Total Assets

Reserves & Surplus

IV. Performance of Company (Amount in Rs. Thousands)

Product Description Item Code No. (ITC Code)

V. Generic Names of Three Principal Products / Services of Company (as per monetary terms)

Net Fixed Assets Investments

Turnover

Profit/Loss before Tax 
(Please tick Appropriate box 
+ for Profit – for Loss)

Total Expenditure

Profit/ Loss after Tax
(please tick Appropriate box 
+ for Profit – for Loss)

Application of Funds

6 6 6 2 6 2 7

9 3 7 9 7

5 0 1 6 7 2

2 8 6 7 1 7 2

+ 7 9 6 1 8 9

2 0 7 0 9 8 3

+ 5 2 1 2 1 7

Basic Earnings Per Share in Rs. Dividend

Brokerage Income & Related Income

1 1 . 2 5 1 4 9 6 1 2

N . A

4 8 7 1 4 2 1 7 1 4 5 0 4

Net Current Assets Deferred Tax Assets1 4 9 9 9 7 0 5 5 5 8

Misc. Expenditure N I LAccumulated Losses N I L

6 9 9 9 9 9

ESOP 9 4 8 7

Rights Issue N I L

State Code 1 1

N I L

Equity Warrants Application N I L

N I L

6 6 6 2 6 2 7

2 3 5 1 7 8 2

Secured Loans Unsecured Loans4 4 6 8 2 4 3 6 2 6 9 6

As per our attached report of even date

For Sharp & Tannan Associates For India Infoline Limited

Chartered Accountants 

By the hand of 

Tirtharaj Khot Nirmal Jain R Venkataraman Kapil Krishan Nimish Mehta 

Partner Managing Director Executive Director Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

M. No. 37457 

Place: Mumbai 

Dated : April 25, 2007

Balance Sheet Abstract and Company’s General Business Profile

STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF INDIA INFOLINE LIMITED STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF INDIA INFOLINE LIMITED
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Consolidated Auditors’ Report

INDIA INFOLINE LIMITED

Section 212

Statement required to be included in the Consolidated Balance Sheet pursuant to approval granted
under Section 212 (8)

Particulars India Infoline India Infoline India Infoline India Infoline India Infoline India Infoline India Infoline Moneyline Credit India Infoline

Insurance Commodities Investment Media & Distribution Insurance Housing Pvt. Ltd. Commodities 

Services Ltd. Pvt. Ltd. Services Pvt. Research Company Ltd. Brokers Ltd. Finance Ltd. DMCC

Ltd. Services Ltd.

1 Capital 2,806,300 2,090,000 120,000,000 500,000 14,001,000 5,000,000 20,000,000 6,500,000 11,755,101

2 Reserves 205,948,375 23,396,473 1,343,662,584 15,857,367 79,734,722 – – 17,079 –  

3 Total Assets 211,099,412 25,486,473 3,102,584,488 16,357,367 93,735,722 5,000,000 20,000,000 6,517,079 16,586,672

4 Total Liabilities 211,099,412 25,486,473 3,102,584,488 16,357,367 93,735,722 5,000,000 20,000,000 6,517,079 16,586,672

5 Details of Investment – – 46,898,121 – 217,000 – – –

6 Turnover 592,990,058 122,182,248 289,447,367 289,049,829 189,189,844 – – 116,346 –

7 Profit before taxation 212,720,743 12,406,560 89,034,967 24,973,881 12,133,564 (92,800) (266,143) (1,086,480) –

8 Provision for taxation

(Current year) 71,598,630 3,851,349 24,464,942 9,492,826 2,907,105 – (266,143) – –

9 Deferred tax 3,747,391 197,237 34,200 376,312 637,940 – – – –

10 Profit after taxation 137,374,722 8,752,448.44 64,535,825.46 15,857,367 9,864,399.19 –92,799.85 –266,142.92 –1,086,479.98 –

Investment in Equity Shares Market Value

3,724.86 Units of Birla Income Plus Plan B: Growth 112,826

(Net Asset Value Rs.112,826 Previous year Rs.104,716.50)

5,457.99 Units of Birla Mid Cap Fund Plan  B: Growth 327,643 

(Net Asset Value Rs.327,643 Previous year Rs.115,764.10)

Total 440,469 

Details of Investment of India Infoline Distribution Company Ltd.

Investment in Equity Shares Face Value Number of Shares Market Value

Gayatri Projects Ltd. 10 90,000 20,713,500

Mangalam Cement Ltd. 10 40,000 5,480,000

Nirlon Ltd. 10 50,000 2,702,500

Opto Circuits Ltd. 10 5,548 1,650,530

Tanla Solution Ltd. 2 20,000 6,972,000

Tech Mahindra Ltd. 10 5,000 7,135,500

Voltamp Transformers Ltd. 10 3,000 1,808,850

Quoted, Non Trade, Current, Valued At Cost 435,241

39,639.091 (Previous year Nil) Units of

LIC Mutual Fund RS.4,35,241 (Previous year Nil).

Total 46,898,121 

Details of Investment of India Infoline Investment Services Private Limited

Note : The annual accounts of the subsidiary companies are available for inspection at the Registered Office of the Company at Bldg 75, Nirlon

Complex, Off Western Express Highway, Goregaon (East), Mumbai 400 063 during business hours for any investor.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF INDIA INFOLINE LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

To The Board of Directors,

India Infoline Limited

Mumbai

Sub: Report on Consolidated Financial Statement as at March 31, 2007

We have examined the attached Consolidated Balance Sheet of

India Infoline Limited and its wholly owned subsidiaries

namely, (1) India Infoline Distribution Company Limited, (2)

India Infoline Insurances Services Limited, (3) India Infoline

Commodities Private Limited, (4) India Infoline Investment

Services Private Limited, (5) India Infoline Insurance Brokers

Limited, (6) India Infoline Housing Finance Limited, (7) India

Infoline Media and Research Services Limited, (8) Moneyline

Credit Private Limited and (9) India Infoline Commodities

DMCC, Dubai (collectively referred to as the Group), as at

March 31 2007, the Consolidated Profit and Loss Account for

the year ended on that date annexed thereto, and the

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended on that

date. These financial statements are the responsibility of the

Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an

opinion on this financial statement based on our audit.

We have conducted our audit in accordance with auditing

standards generally accepted in India. Those standards require

that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable

assurance about whether the financial statements are

prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with an

identified financial reporting framework and are free of

material misstatements. An audit also includes examining, on

test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in

the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the

accounting principles used and significant estimates made by

management, as well as evaluating the overall financial

statements. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable

basis for our opinion.

In respect of the financial statements of Moneyline Credit

Private Limited and India Infoline Commodities DMCC, Dubai,

we did not carry out the audit. These financial statements have

been audited / reviewed by other auditor whose reports have

been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to

the amounts included in respect of the subsidiaries is based on

solely on the reports of the other auditors. The details of Assets

and Revenue in respect of these subsidiaries to the extent to

which they are reflected in the Consolidated Financial

Statements are given below:

Audited by other Auditors:

Name of the Companies Total Total

Assets Revenues

A. Indian Subsidiaries

Moneyline Credit Pvt. Ltd. 6,517,079.00 116,345.94

B. Foreign Subsidiaries

India Infoline Commodities 

DMCC, Dubai 23,734,825.46 Nil                     

We report that the consolidated financial statements have

been prepared by the Company in accordance with the

requirement of the Accounting Standard (AS) 21,

"Consolidated Financial Statement", issued by the Institute of

Chartered Accountants of India, and on the basis of the

separate audited financial statements of the Group included in

the consolidated financial statements.

We report that on the basis of the information and explanation

given to us and on the separate audit report on individual

audited financial statements of the Group, we are of the

opinion that the consolidated financial statements give true

and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles

generally accepted in India:  

a) in the case of Consolidated Balance Sheet, of the state of

affairs of the Group as at March 31,2007;

b) in case of Consolidated Profit and Loss Account, of the

profit of the Group for the year ended on that date; and

c) in the case of the Consolidated Cash Flow Statements, of

the consolidated cash flows of the Group for the year

ended on that date

Sharp & Tannan Associates
Chartered Accountants

By the hand of

Place: Mumbai Tirtharaj Khot
Date: April 25, 2007 Partner

Membership No.: 37457

(Amount in Rupees)
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Consolidated Profit and Loss Account For the year ended March 31, 2007

INDIA INFOLINE LIMITED

Consolidated Balance Sheet As at March 31, 2007

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF INDIA INFOLINE LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF INDIA INFOLINE LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

(Amount in Rupees)

SOURCES OF FUNDS

Shareholders’ Funds

Share Capital A 501,671,980 451,008,510 

Reserves and Surplus B 2,705,022,995 1,447,377,424

Equity Share Warrants C 44,200,000 3,250,894,975 44,200,000 1,942,585,934

Loan Funds

Secured Loan D 1,454,077,886 1,002,572,513

Unsecured Loan E 362,696,475 1,816,774,361 800,900,971 1,803,473,484

Total 5,067,669,336 3,746,059,418

APPLICATION OF FUNDS

Goodwill (On Consolidation) –  1,292,501 – 1,523,608

Fixed Assets (Including Intangibles) F 

Gross Block 911,395,837 370,429,500 

Less : Depreciation and Amortisation (294,141,578) (156,303,379)

Net Block 617,254,259 214,126,121

Investments G 264,485,121 240,031,108

Deferred Tax

Deferred Tax  Assets 8,676,191 10,129,969

Less: Deferred Tax  Liabilities 2,379,725 6,296,466 – 10,129,969

Current Assets, Loans and Advances H

Sundry Debtors 1,846,320,606 3,579,076,104

Cash and Bank Balances 1,266,759,432 804,052,316

Loans and Advances 4,089,784,724 1,722,120,238

7,202,864,762 6,105,248,658

Less : Current Liabilities & Provisions I

Current Liabilities 2,343,633,758 2,488,299,300

Provisions  680,890,015 336,700,747

3,024,523,773 2,825,000,047

Net Current Assets 4,178,340,989 3,280,248,612 

Total 5,067,669,336 3,746,059,418 

Significant Accounting policies and N 

Notes to Accounts

Schedules As at 31.3.2007 As at 31.3.2006

As per our attached report of even date

For Sharp & Tannan Associates For India Infoline Limited

Chartered Accountants 

By the hand of 

Tirtharaj Khot Nirmal Jain R Venkataraman Kapil Krishan Nimish Mehta 

Partner Managing Director Executive Director Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

M. No. 37457 

Place: Mumbai 

Dated : April 25, 2007

(Amount in Rupees)

INCOME
Online & other media income 645,115,915 200,644,975

Equity brokerage & related income 2,313,537,976 1,427,055,455

Mutual Funds , etc. distribution 150,092,004 199,858,093

Commodities brokerage 120,310,658 41,327,147

Life Insurance commission 592,936,058 215,866,327

Financing & Investing 281,784,526 46,936,622

Mortgage & Loan distribution 28,881,629 2,425,097

Merchant banking income 28,200,000 –

Other Income J 96,421,683 46,374,222

4,257,280,449 2,180,487,939
EXPENDITURE
Direct cost K 917,843,164 562,722,558

Employee cost L 1,063,100,922 366,041,330

Administration & other expenses M 863,696,501 382,800,808

Interest 117,120,194 65,098,365

Depreciation and amortisation 149,202,302 85,595,841

Preliminary expenses 303,500 166,230

3,111,266,583 1,462,425,132
Profit before tax 1,146,013,866 718,062,807
Less:  Provision for taxation - Current 367,040,488 227,829,500

- Fringe benefit tax 18,983,844 9,082,000

- Deferred tax (net) 3,833,503 (8,113,607)

Net profit after tax 756,156,031 489,264,914
Add : Pre-acquisition Loss  –   1,523,608

Add : Minority Interest in loss – 1,150,372

Net profit after tax for Available appropriation 756,156,031 491,938,894
APPROPRIATIONS 
Dividend 

– Interim Dividend 149,612,079 87,848,760

– Proposed final –   45,468,266

Dividend distribution tax 20,983,095

– Interim Dividend – 12,320,789

– Proposed final – 6,376,924

Transfer to General Reserve 53,000,000 30,000,000

Transfer to Special Reserve 18,500,000 –

Add : Brought forward loss of Moneytree Consultancy Services Pvt Ltd 1,928,036

Balance of Profit brought forward from previous year 293,556,902 (16,367,253)

Balance of Profit carried forward 809,545,795 293,556,902 
Earning Per Share - Basic 16.32 11.51

- Diluted 14.95 10.98

Face Value Per Share 10.00 10.00

Significant Accounting Policies and N

Notes to Accounts

Schedules 2006-07 2005-06

As per our attached report of even date

For Sharp & Tannan Associates For India Infoline Limited

Chartered Accountants 

By the hand of 

Tirtharaj Khot Nirmal Jain R Venkataraman Kapil Krishan Nimish Mehta 

Partner Managing Director Executive Director Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

M. No. 37457 

Place: Mumbai 

Dated : April 25, 2007
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Schedules forming part of the Consolidated Balance Sheet
As at March 31, 2007

INDIA INFOLINE LIMITED

Schedules forming part of the Consolidated Balance Sheet
As at March 31, 2007

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF INDIA INFOLINE LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF INDIA INFOLINE LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

As at 31.3.2007 As at 31.3.2006
(Amount in Rupees)

A SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised 
80,000,000 (Previous year - 45,000,000) Equity Shares of Rs.10 each 800,000,000 800,000,000

Issued, Subscribed and Paid Up
50,167,198 (Previous year - 45,100,851) Equity Shares of Rs.10 each fully paid -up 501,671,980 451,008,510

(Of the above 18,034,988 Equity Shares have been issued as a bonus

shares by capitalisation of Securities Premium Account and General Reserves) 

Total 501,671,980 45,108,510

Securities Premium Account
Opening Balance 1,124,870,894 206,255,007

Addition during the year 658,823,520 972,256,488

Deduction during the year – (53,640,601)

1,783,694,414 1,124,870,894

General Reserves
Opening Balance 30,000,000 30,000,000

Addition during the year 53,000,000 –

83,000,000 30,000,000

Special Reserve 18,500,000 –

Employee Stock Options Outstanding 48,375,000 –

Less : Deferred Employee Compensation Expenses (37,407,790) –

10,967,210 –

Profit and Loss Account 809,545,795 293,556,902

Minority Interest – (1,050,372)

Pre-aquisition profit of Moneyline Credit Pvt. Ltd. (96,469) –

Foreign Exchange Fluctuation Reserve (587,955) –

Total 2,705,022,995 1,447,377,424

B RESERVES AND SURPLUS

Overdraft from Banks (Secured against pledging of fixed deposits) 150,974,080 15,013,667

Overdraft from Banks (Secured against margins & collaterals) 389,342,608 689,096,294

Loan from Others (Secured against pledge of shares) 913,761,198 298,462,552

Total 1,454,077,886 1,002,572,513

D SECURED LOANS

1 %  Optionally Convertible Bonds 100,112,631 800,900,971

Non Convertible Debentures 262,583,844 –

Total 362,696,475 800,900,971

E UNSECURED LOANS

Equity Share Warrants (Application money received against Equity Warrants) 44,200,000 44,200,000

Notes : 
a) The Company has allotted 4,117,647 equity shares of Rs.10 each at the strike  price of Rs.170 per share, pursuant to exercise  notice for part

conversion of 7,000 Optionally  Convertible Bonds out of 8,000  Optionally Convertible Bonds of Rs.100,000 each to DSP Merrill Lynch Capital

Limited as per the terms of issue. 

b) The Company allotted 948,700 equity shares pursuant to exercising options by the employees under the ESOP Scheme 2000. 

C EQUITY SHARE WARRANTS

(Amount in Rupees)

As at 31.3.2007 As at 31.3.2006

G INVESTMENTS
Quoted, Non - Trade, Current (valued at cost or market value whichever is lower)
1) Benchmark Mutual Fund Liquid Bees (Aggregate Market Value: Rs.1897, P.Y. Rs.Nil) – 1,897 
2) 3,724.86(P.Y.3724.86)Units of Birla Income Plus Plan B : Growth 

(Net Asset Value Rs.112826 P.Y. Rs.107,574) 102,000 102,000 
3) 5,457.99 (P.Y.5457.99) Units of Birla Mid-Cap Fund Plan B : Growth

(Net Asset Value Rs.327,643 P.Y. Rs.312,961) 115,000 115,000 
4) Investments in Mutual Fund with Franklin Templeton - Daily Dividend Reinvestment Scheme – 5,000,000 
5) Investment in Equity Shares             Number of Shares Face Value

EIH Ltd.                                                 30,000 10 21,316,929 
Great Eastern Shipping Company Ltd. 25,000 10 6,588,617 
Havells India Ltd.                                              13,000 5 7,179,604 
Hero Honda Motors Ltd.                                                45,000 2 40,628,853 
Indian Hotels Company Ltd. 54,000 10 72,786,837 
Infosys Technologies Ltd.                                             15,000 5 45,058,487 
Matrix Laboratories Ltd.                                                2,500 2 717,325 
New Delhi Television Ltd. 6,600 4 1,640,510 
Paper Products Ltd.                                          20,000 10 8,505,239 
State Bank of India Ltd.                                             22,500 10 21,970,677 
Sadbhav Engineering Ltd.                           25,470 10 8,409,133 
Gayatri Projects Ltd.                               90,000 10 20,713,500 –   
Mangalam Cements Ltd.                                 40,000 10 5,480,000 –   
Nirlon Ltd.                                                     50,000 10 2,702,500 –   
Opto Circuits (India) Ltd.                                              5,548 10 1,650,530 –   
Tanla Solutions Ltd.                                   20,000 2 6,972,000 –   
Tech Mahindra Ltd.                                       5,000 10 7,135,500 –   
Voltamp Transformers Ltd.                        3,000 10 1,808,850 –   

6) 39,639,091 (P.Y.Nil) Units of LIC Mutual Fund RS.435,241 (P.Y.Nil). 435,241 – 
Aggregate Market Value of Quoted Investments : Rs.47,338,590 (P.Y. Rs.241,788,500) 47,115,121 240,021,108 
Un-Quoted, Non Trade, Long Term (valued at cost)
7) 16 % Debenture of Rs.100 each of Orion Tele-Equipment Pvt. Ltd.

Series A 1,500,000 Non Convertible Debentures 150,000,000 
Series B  500,000 Optionally Convertible Debentures 50,000,000 

200,000,000    –   
Quoted, Non Trade, Long Term (valued at cost)
8) 50,000 Can Multicap Equity Mutual Fund (Net Asset Value Rs.4,97,000 P.Y. Nil) 500,000 – 

500,000 –   
Un-Quoted, Trade, Long Term (valued at cost) 
9) 10,000 Equity Shares of Bombay Stock Exchange Limited of Rs.1 each (includes written down

value) of the Membership card of Bombay Stock Exchange Limited 16,870,000 10,000 
16,870,000 10,000 

Total Investments 264,485,121 240,031,108 

F FIXED ASSETS

As at As at As at For the As at As at As at

Assets 01.04.2006 Additions Deductions 31.03.2007 01.04.2006 year Deductions 31.03.2007 31.03.2007 31.03.2006

Air Conditioners 15,764,023 35,328,220 –   51,092,243 4,184,221 7,533,362 –   11,717,583 39,374,660 11,579,802 

Computers 139,315,970 170,901,902 192,660 310,025,211 67,971,066 68,777,130 64,220 136,683,976 173,341,235 71,344,904 

Electrical Equipment 13,685,881 50,056,699 –   63,742,580 5,653,395 7,011,336 –   12,664,731 51,077,850 8,032,486 

Furniture & Fixtures 87,628,000 256,141,779 65,410 343,704,368 29,247,615 44,271,218 13,082 73,505,751 270,198,617 58,380,388 

Office Equipment 20,733,348 33,222,516 46,800 53,909,063 8,485,366 7,445,336 46,800 15,883,902 38,025,161 12,247,982 

VSAT 20,203,118 14,750,306 –   34,953,424 6,693,994 5,638,583 –   12,332,577 22,620,847 13,509,122 

Vehicles 766,699 –   –   766,699 766,698 –   –   766,698 1 1 

Sub Total 298,097,041 560,401,423 304,870 858,193,589 123,002,356 140,676,966 124,102 263,555,218 594,638,371 175,094,685 

Software 23,810,500 8,969,790 32,780,290 17,976,630 4,440,946 –   22,417,576 10,362,713 5,833,870 

Non Compete fees 20,421,958 –   –   20,421,958 4,084,392 4,084,392 –   8,168,784 12,253,174 13,137,566 

Membership Rights, The

Stock Exchange Mumbai 28,100,001 –   28,100,001 –   11,240,001 –   11,240,001 –   –   16,860,000 

Sub Total 72,332,459 8,969,790 28,100,001 53,202,248 33,301,023 8,525,338 11,240,001 30,586,360 22,615,888 35,831,436 

Grand Total 370,429,500 569,371,213 28,404,871 911,395,837 156,303,379 149,202,304 11,364,103 294,141,578 617,254,259 210,926,121 

Previous Year 131,457,636 238,971,865 –   370,429,500 70,707,539 85,595,841 –   156,303,379 214,126,121 60,750,099

GROSS BLOCK (AT COST) DEPRECIATION NET BLOCK

Intangible Assets
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Schedules forming part of the Consolidated Profit and Loss Account
For the year ended March 31, 2007

INDIA INFOLINE LIMITED

Schedules forming part of the Consolidated Balance Sheet
As at March 31, 2007

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF INDIA INFOLINE LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF INDIA INFOLINE LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

As at 31.3.2007 As at 31.3.2006
(Amount in Rupees)

H CURRENT ASSETS, LOANS AND ADVANCES

A) Current Assets
I) Sundry Debtors (Unsecured, Considered good, unless otherwise stated)

Outstanding for a period exceeding six months 35,658,711 39,431,368

Considered doubtful 9,375,518 9,500,000

Other Debts - Unsecured and considered good 1,810,661,895 3,539,644,736

Provision for doubtful debts (9,375,518) (9,500,000)

1,846,320,606 3,579,076,104
II) Cash and Bank Balance

Cash on Hand 7,246,679 3,910,706

Bank Balances

With Schedule Banks :

- In Current Accounts 441,516,757 252,056,234

- in Fixed Deposits 817,995,996 548,085,376

1,266,759,432 804,052,316
B) Loans And Advances (Unsecured, Considered good, unless otherwise stated)

Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received 97,879,833 24,166,807

Other Deposits 293,402,516 237,387,347

Advance Income Tax, Refund & Tax Deducted at Source 575,884,133 253,795,903

Other Loans & Advances 3,122,618,242 1,206,770,181

4,089,784,724 1,722,120,238
Total 7,202,864,762 6,105,248,658

A) Current Liabilities
i) Sundry Creditors

Due to Small Scale Industrial Undertaking – –

Others 1,985,396,565 1,817,820,540

ii) Other Liabilities 357,061,432 669,391,585

iii) Income received in advance 651,601 951,983

iv) Interest accrued but not due 524,160 135,192

2,343,633,758 2,488,299,300
A) Provisions 

Provision for taxation 659,966,154 278,895,282

Provision for gratuity 11,636,959 3,276,101

Provision for leave encashment 9,286,902 2,684,174

Proposed final dividend – 45,468,266

Provision for dividend distribution tax – 6,376,924

680,890,015 336,700,747
Total 3,024,523,773 2,825,000,047

I CURRENT LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS

2006-07 2005-06
(Amount in Rupees)

J OTHER INCOME

Interest on Fixed Deposits (Gross) 

(includes TDS Rs.74,89,020, P.Y. Rs.3,879,051) 47,088,218 18,043,523 

Share of profit in partnership firm 9,791,915 4,018,487 

Sub letting income 10,030,628 6,976,800 

Miscellaneous income 29,510,922 17,335,412 

96,421,683 46,374,222 

Brokerage related expenses 413,758,215 305,015,010 

Exchange and statutory charges 358,392,696 187,163,733 

Business promotion expenses 6,455,711 2,583,692 

Marketing and commission expenses 121,848,771 61,208,588 

Investment and financing related cost 17,387,771 6,751,535 

917,843,164 562,722,558 

K DIRECT COST

Salaries and bonus 967,782,112 351,342,989 

Contribution to provident Fund and other funds 45,044,560 3,242,341 

Gratuity 8,605,343 1,954,599 

Staff welfare expenses 30,701,697 9,501,401 

Deferred employee compensation expenses 10,967,210 –   

1,063,100,922 366,041,330 

L EMPLOYEE COST

Advertisement expenses 32,429,377 29,785,774

Premises expenses 213,579,412 68,845,974

Electricity expenses 41,480,455 16,357,956

Communication expenses 210,939,808 100,565.566

Postage and courier 19,966,467 11,362,815  

Printing and stationery 75,214,729 33,726,648

Bank charges 21,635,054 464,409

Repairs and maintenance

- Computers 9,996,442 4,353,096

- Others 7,169,895 4,441,570

Travelling and conveyance 51,571,928 38,356,945

Legal and  professional charges 60,076,572 25,734,982

Remuneration to auditors

- Audit Fees 874,080 843,800

- Certification work and other matters 117,086 515,510

- Out of pocket expenses 208,800 44,380

Office expenses 37,525,904 2,136,366

Software charges 42,835,020 9,393,614

Miscellaneous expenses 38,075,472 35,871,403

Total 863,696,501 382,800,808

M ADMINISTRATIVE AND OTHER EXPENSES
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Schedules forming part of the Consolidated Account

INDIA INFOLINE LIMITED

Schedules forming part of the Consolidated Account
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF INDIA INFOLINE LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF INDIA INFOLINE LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

A. Significant Accounting Policies:
1) Basis of Consolidation 

a) Basis of Preparation:
The individual Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2007 and Profit and Loss Account for the year ended March 31, 2007 of India Infoline
Limited ('the Company') and its subsidiaries ('companies and / or subsidiaries'), collectively referred to as 'Group', have been
consolidated as per principles of consolidation enunciated in Accounting Standard (AS) 21- 'Consolidated Financial Statements' issued
by the Council of The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

b) Principles of Preparation:
The financial statements of the group companies of India Infoline Limited are prepared according to uniform accounting policies, in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in India. The effects of all inter-group transactions and balances have been
eliminated on consolidation.

c) List of Subsidiaries Consolidated:
The individual Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2007 and Profit and Loss Account for the year ended March 31, 2007 of following
subsidiaries are included in consolidation.

India Infoline Distribution Company Limited (IIDCL)
India Infoline Insurance Services Limited (IIISL)
India Infoline Commodities Private Limited (IICPL)
India Infoline Investment Services Private Limited (IIISPL)
India Infoline Insurance Brokers Limited (IIIBL)
India Infoline Housing Finance Limited
India Infoline Commodity DMCC
India Infoline Media and Research Services Limited
Moneyline Credit Private Limited 

2) Basis of preparation of financial statements
The financial statements have been prepared under historical cost convention on an accrual basis

3) Use of Estimates
The presentation of financial statements in conformity with the generally accepted accounting principles requires estimates and
assumptions to be made that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities on the date of the financial statements, the reported
amount of revenues and expenses and the disclosures relating to contingent liabilities as of the date of the financial statements. Examples
of such estimates include the useful lives of fixed assets and intangible assets, provision for advances/ doubtful debts, etc. Actual results
can differ from these results. 

4) Revenue Recognition
a) Revenue from Online Media is recognised pro-rata, over the contractual /subscription period.

b) Brokerage income earned on secondary market operations is accounted (inclusive method) on trade dates. Depository income is
accounted (inclusive method) on an accrual basis.

c) The revenue of commission on sale of non-equity investment instruments at the Company's Investor Points or Online on its holding
Company's website is recognised on submission of forms by the customers along with payment at Investor Point or Online, as the case
may be, provided that collection of the related recoverable, if any, is probable.

d) Commission income on first year premium on insurance policies is recognised (inclusive method), when an insurance policy sold by
the Company is accepted by the principal insurance company. Renewal commission on policies is accounted for on receipt basis.

e) Brokerage income from commodities trading is accounted for on the dates of respective trades.

5) Intangible Asset & amortisation
The Intangible Assets are stated at cost of acquisition less amortisation. These are amortised on straight line method as below:

Software 3 years
Non-Compete Fees 5 years
Goodwill 5 years

6) Fixed Assets and Depreciation
Fixed assets are stated at cost of acquisition less accumulated depreciation thereon. Depreciation is charged using the straight line method
based on the useful lives of fixed assets as estimated by the management as specified below, or the rates specified in accordance with the
provisions of schedule XIV of the Companies Act, 1956, which-ever is higher. 

Depreciation is charged from the quarter in which new assets are purchased. No depreciation is charged from the quarter in which assets
are sold.

Individual assets costing less than Rs 5,000 have been depreciated in full in the year of purchase. 

of the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2007 and Profit and Loss Account for the year ended March 31, 2007.

N SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT

Estimated useful life of the assets is as under 
Furniture and fixtures 5 years 
Computer equipment 3 years 
Office equipment 5 years 
VSATs 5 years

7) Investments
Investments are classified into current and long-term investments. Current investments are stated at lower of cost or market value. Long-
term investments are carried at cost less provisions, if any, for permanent diminution in the value of such Investments.

8) Foreign Exchange Transactions
Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the prevailing rates at the time transactions are effected. Foreign currency assets &
liabilities outstanding at the year-end are translated at the rates of exchange ruling on that day. Any gain or loss on transactions are
accounted in the Profit & Loss account, or adjusted in the value of Fixed Assets, as applicable.

9) Retirement Benefits
The company's contribution towards Provident Fund and family pension fund is charged against revenue on actual basis.

The Company has provided Gratuity on the basis of actuarial valuation and Leave Encashment payable to employees on actual basis.

10) Deferred Employee Stock Compensation
The Company has formulated an Employees Stock Option Scheme. The Scheme provides that employees are granted an option to acquire
equity shares of the company that vests in a granted manner. The options may be exercised within a specified period. The company follows
the intrinsic value method as prescribed by the guidance note on "Accounting for stock options" issued by the Institute of chartered
accountants of India ("ICAI") to account for its stock-based employees compensation plans.

11) Leases
Lease rentals in respect of operating lease arrangements are charged to the Profit & Loss Account on accrual basis in accordance with
Accounting Standard 19 - Leases, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

12) Taxes on Income
Provision for current tax is computed in accordance with relevant tax regulations.

Deferred tax is recognised for all timing differences between accounting income & taxable income and is quantified using enacted /
substantively enacted tax rates as at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets are recognised subject to the management judgment that
the realisation is reasonably certain.

13) Preliminary Expenses
Preliminary Expenses are written off in the financial year in which it is incurred

B. Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements: 
1) The board of directors of India Infoline Ltd. (IIL) and India Infoline Securities (P) Ltd. (IISPL) in their meeting held on April 26, 2006 approved

merger of India infoline securities (P) Ltd. with India Infoline Ltd. subject to necessary approvals. Further to the approvals of BSE and NSE
as well as prior approvals of SEBI for the scheme of amalgamation of IISPL with IIL, the merger was approved by Hon'ble High Court
Mumbai vide its order dated January 12, 2007. The merger has been effected with the filing of the order of the High Court with ROC on
February 1, 2007. As per the order of the High Court, the merger is effective from April 1, 2006. The orders have been filed with SEBI for
effecting changes in the registration certificates in the name of IIL and the same are awaited. Accordingly the financial results of India
Infoline Ltd for the year 2006-07 are of the merged entity.

2) The company has provided a Corporate Guarantee on behalf of wholly owned subsidiary India Infoline Commodities Pvt. Ltd. to the extent
of 80,000,000.

3) Secured loan from banks and institution is secured against pledge of securities amounting to Rs.3,097,192,985 (P.Y. Rs. 2,634,000,000)
obtained as margin and collaterals and Rs. 166,977,000 secured against pledge of Fixed Deposit.

4) Interest expenses include the interest on Debentures Rs.20,539,725 (previous year Rs.15,128,172).

5) Till March, 2006, depreciation has been provided for the full year on assets acquired during the year irrespective of the date of acquisition.

6) In accordance with the BSE (Corporatisation and Demutualisation) Scheme 2005, the company has subscribed to and was allotted 10,000
fully paid equity shares of the face value of Re. 1 each for cash at par of Bombay Stock Exchange Limited (BSEL) which are in the nature
of Long term investments and have accordingly been disclosed in Schedule G to the Balance Sheet. The company has transferred the net
book value of its Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) membership cards amounting to Rs. 16,860,000 as on April 1, 2006 from Fixed Assets
(Schedule F) to Investments (Schedule G). Hitherto, the membership card of BSE were being amortised over a period of 5 years. Had this
amortization continued amortization for the year would have been higher by Rs.5,620,000 and profit before tax for the year would have
been lower to that extent.

of the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2007 and Profit and Loss Account for the year ended March 31, 2007.

N SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT (Contd.)
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INDIA INFOLINE LIMITED

Schedules forming part of the Consolidated Account
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF INDIA INFOLINE LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF INDIA INFOLINE LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

of the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2007 and Profit and Loss Account for the year ended March 31, 2007.

N SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT (Contd.)

7) The Company shares with its subsidiaries, certain premises, infrastructure and other services and the same are termed as 'Shared Services'.
Hitherto, such shared services consisting of administrative and other revenue expenses paid for by the company were identified and
recovered from subsidiaries based on a reasonable management estimates in accordance with Board Resolution passed in this regard from
time to time. These are constantly refined in the light of additional knowledge gained relevant for such estimation. During the year ended
March 31, 2007, these expenses are recovered on an actual basis and the estimates are used only where actual were difficult to determine. 

8) As per the Accounting Standard issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India under Accounting Standard 28  "Impairment of
Assets", the Company has assessed the recoverable amount of the relevant assets and found that no indication of impairment exists in
relation to its assets as at March 31, 2007.

9) Till December 31, 2006, India Infoline Insurance Services Limited (IIISL) and India Infoline Commodities Private Limited (IICPL) charged
towards: 

1) Client Lead Fees for providing client lead services for commodities broking account

2) Providing Call Centre services to support their operations.

These agreements have been terminated w.e.f. January 1, 2007. The Company is a registered Information Technology Enabled Services
provider. 

The various charges / fees to be received by the company during the year are as under:

10) The company during the financial year 1999-00 had announced an Employee Stock Option Plan (ESOP 2000), which provided for grant
of share options to employees of the company. The plan had reserved a total of 815,000 shares (2,445,000 shares after giving effect to
Bonus shares) for issuance under ESOP 2000. Until now the company has granted the options in three tranches being 1,137,000 options
on March 1, 2000; 979,250 options on April 1, 2003, and finally 6,94,200 options on October 1, 2004 from the balance ESOPs including
lapsed options from the earlier offerings. As on date 2,000 options are in force and 2,99,340 options have lapsed. No further option shall
be granted under the said scheme (ESOP 2000) in terms of the disclosures made in the prospectus dated April 11, 2005 issued by the
company. 

The company pursuant to approval of "Employee Stock Option Plan 2005" (ESOP 2005) at the Extra ordinary General Meeting of the
shareholders of the company held on January 25, 2006 providing for issue of 2,500,000 options entitling to a total of 2,500,000 shares
to the employees of the company and its subsidiaries including directors of the company (except an employee or director who is a
promoter or belongs to the promoter group or a director who either by himself or through his relatives or through any body corporate,
directly or indirectly holds more than10% of the outstanding equity shares of the company at any time) whether in India or at overseas
location,has granted 15,00,000 options under this plan on May 4, 2006.

11) During the year, the company has formed/acquired new subsidiaries as detailed below.

12) Of the 8,000 1% Optionally Convertible Bonds (OCBs) issued to DSP Merrill Lynch Ltd., 7,000 OCBs were converted into equity shares on

January 23, 2007 and 1,000 OCBs are outstanding as of March 31, 2007. Interest on the outstanding OCBs has been provided for at the

agreed rate of @1% p.a. The Management is of the view that the OCBs will be exercised for conversion and interest has accordingly been

provided in the accounts. In case of redemption of bonds, the additional interest payable for the year will be Rs.8,000,000. To this extent

the profits of the company for the year are overstated. 

The accounting effect of the above transactions has been nullified on consolidation.

*These subsidiaries have not commenced operations till March 31, 2007

Amount Nature of Business
Name of Subsidiary Invested (Rs)

India Infoline Housing Finance. Ltd. * 20,000,000 Housing finance

India Infoline Commodity DMCC * 11,755,102 Membership of Dubai Gold & Commodity Exchange

Moneyline Credit Pvt. Ltd. 7,888,970 Personal Finance

India Infoline Media & Research Services Ltd. 500,000 Online media and other services

(Amount in Rupees)

IIISL IICPL
Client leads services – 11,278,500

(–) (5,593,150)

Call centre charges 6,750,000 5,400,000

(9,000,000) (7,200,000)

Year ended 31st March, 2007
(Previous year)

Particulars 2006-07 2005-06

13) The company has adopted the revised accounting standard AS-11,"The effects of changes in Foreign Exchange Rates" issued by the ICAI

for consolidating its investment in foreign subsidiary. As required by the standard, the exchange gain/loss on translation of financial

statements of the foreign subsidiary for the purpose of consolidation is taken to Foreign Currency Translation Reserve and disclosed

separately in the Consolidated Balance Sheet.

14) The Accounting Standard 22 on 'Accounting for Taxes on Income' first became applicable to the Company from the accounting periods

beginning April 1, 2002. The company recognised deferred tax assets for the first time for the year ended on March 31, 2007 since the

management is reasonably certain of its profitable operations in future. Deferred tax assets as at March 31, 2007 are as below:

Deferred Tax Assets

15) The Company has taken office premises on operating lease at various locations.  Lease rent in respect of the same have been charged to

Profit and Loss account. The agreements are executed for a period ranging from one to five years with a renewable clause. Some

agreements have a clause for a minimum lock-in period. The agreements also have a clause for termination by either party giving a prior

notice period between 30 to 90 days. The minimum Lease rentals outstanding as at March 31, 2007, are as under:

of the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2007 and Profit and Loss Account for the year ended March 31, 2007.

N SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT (Contd.)

16) Segment Reporting:
Segment information for the year ended March 31, 2007. Primary segment information (by business segment) 

Particulars 2007-06 2005-06
(Amount in Rupees)

Depreciation (247,417) 5,744,634

On gratuity/leave encashment 3,954,289 1,960,835

Provision for doubtful debts 2,506,938 2,424,500

Preliminary Expenses 82,656 –

Total 6,296,466 10,129,969

Minimum Lease Rental 2007-06 2005-06

Due for

- Upto one year 44,517,741 2,220,170

- One to five years 20,377,000 –

- Over five years – –

Total 64,894,741 2,220,170

Sl. Particulars Equity Agency Commodities Life Insurance Media & Share Trading,
No brokerage and Commission & Brokerage Content Investment &

related income Fees Financing Others Total
I Segment Revenue

External 2,313,537,976 178,973,633 120,310,658 592,936,058 645,115,915 281,784,526 124,621,683 4,257,280,449
(1,427,055,456) (202,283,190) (41,327,147) (215,866,327) (200,644,975) (46,936,622) (46,374,221) (2,180,487,939)

Inter-segment – – – – – – – –
Total Revenue 2,313,537,976 178,973,633 120,310,658 592,936,058 645,115,915 281,784,526 124,621,683 4,257,280,449

(1,427,055,456) (202,283,190) (41,327,147) (215,866,327) (200,644,975) (46,936,622) (46,374,221) (2,180,487,939)
ii Segment Result 590,279,466 1,917,353 27,213,471 220,242,943 372,239,291 141,783,011 153,421,114 1,507,096,649

(369,074,921) (92,331,533) (12,677,518) (100,934,985) (158,125,416) (34,195,988) (46,374,221) (813,714,582)
Less: Unallocated Expenses 297,137,444 

(30,553,410)
Operating Profit 590,279,466 1,917,353 27,213,471 220,242,943 372,239,291 141,783,011 153,421,114 1,209,959,205

(369,074,921) (92,331,533) (12,677,518) (100,934,985) (158,125,416) (34,195,988) (46,374,221) (783,161,172)
Interest Expense 63,945,339

(65,098,365)
Profit before Tax 1,146,013,866

(718,062,807)
Less: Current Tax 389,857,835 

(228,797,893)
Short Provision for –
tax of earlier year (–)
Net Profit after Tax 756,156,031

(489,264,914)
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Schedules forming part of the Consolidated Account
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF INDIA INFOLINE LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF INDIA INFOLINE LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

of the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2007 and Profit and Loss Account for the year ended March 31, 2007.

N SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT (Contd.)

16) Segment Reporting (contd.)

Note: The company / group operate in only one geographic segment i.e. 'India'. Hence separate information on geographical segment is

not required. The other segment, if any, constitutes income like interest on investments etc, which are not the regular income streams of

the company / group and hence segment results, segment assets and segment liabilities are, accordingly disclosed. The accounting policies

adopted for segment reporting are in line with the accounting policies adopted for preparation of financial information of the company.

Sl. Particulars Equity Agency Commodities Life Insurance Media & Share Trading,

No brokerage and Commission & Brokerage Content Investment &

Related Income Fees Financing Others Total

iii Segment Assets 2,387,631,608 199,866,530 173,115,252 469,613,422 241,111,521 3,020,468,852 1,190,544,856 7,682,352,041

(4,387,661,397) (122,248,688) (6,225,730) (22,222,706) (22,752,124) (236,182,760) (4,797,293,405)

Unallocated Corporate assets 412,220,793

(1,773,766,059)

Total Assets 8,094,572,834

(6,571,059,464)

iv Segment Liabilities 2,382,081,517 7,322,696 194,288,503 11,669,075 107,898,117 1,015,025,336 – 3,718,285,245

(2,929,158,633) (60,369,677) (93,597,272) (7,483,265) (951,983) (1,170,856,293) (4,262,417,123)

Unallocated Corporate Liabilities 1,125,392,614

(314,211,218)

Total Liabilities 4,843,677,859

(4,576,628,341)

v Capital Expenditure 427,276,449 16,972,505 40,900 100,317,570 – 201,769 – 544,809,193

(149,683,672) (29,968,067) (1,387,333) (12,938,906) (915,718) (1,949,000) (24,313,898) (221,156,594)

Unallocated Capital Expenditure 24,562,020

(17,761,711)

Total Capital Expenditure 569,371,213

vi Depreciation 93,085,366 11,976,240 391,902 12,885,746 – 30,265 1,103,683 119,473,202

(55,841,960) (10,406,424) (378,270) (3,499,134) (508,728) (649,667) (9,525,880) (80,810,063)

Unallocated Depreciation 29,729,100 

(4,785,778)

Total Depreciation 149,202,302

(85,595,841)

vii Non-Cash

Expenditure

Other than 

Depreciation

17) Related Party Disclosures for the year ended March 31, 2007:
(a) Name of the Related parties with whom transactions have been entered during the year and description of relationship.

(i) Key Management Personnel Directorship Held
Mr Nirmal Jain India Infoline Limited and its all subsidiaries (except Moneyline credit Pvt. Ltd. 

and India Infoline Media and Research Services Ltd.)

Mr R Venkataraman India Infoline Limited and its all subsidiaries (except Moneyline credit Pvt. Ltd. 

and India Infoline Media and Research Services Ltd.)

(ii) Relatives of Key Management Personnel
Mrs. Madhu Jain Wife of Mr Nirmal Jain

Mrs. Aditi Venkataraman Wife of Mr R Venkataraman

of the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2007 and Profit and Loss Account for the year ended March 31, 2007.

N SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT (Contd.)

Key Managerial

Particulars Relatives Personnel Total

Purchase of Securities & Commodities 182,863,873 121,122,003 303,985,876

(143,377,098) (114,527,809) (257,904,907)

Sale of Securities & Commodities 186,221,661 119,021,705 305,243,366

(148,888,170) (117,973,325) (266,861,495)

Brokerage Income 133,125 83,766 216,981

(263,700) (153,833) (417,533)

Share Capital – – –

– (44,200,000) (44,200,000)

Remuneration 16,717,500 16,717,500

(19,515,144) (19,515,144)

Reimbursement of Expenses 49,200 49,200

(2,706,000) (2,706,000)

Outstanding as at March 31, 2007

Payable – – –

(10,606,494) –  (10,606,494)

Receivable – – –

(837,553) (198,366) (1,035,919)

17) Related Party Disclosures for the year ended March 31, 2007 (contd.)
Disclosure of Transactions with related parties

The summary of Consolidated Financial Statements represents consolidation of accounts of the Company with its
following subsidiaries, all incorporated within India, as detailed below:

Notes: 

(i) Figures in brackets indicate previous year figures.

(ii) The transaction between group companies comprise of extension and return of temporary advances of funds, allocation of expenses,

reimbursement of expenses, etc as identified by the Company's management from the Holding / Subsidiary Company's Current

Account. 

Proportion of ownership interest

Subsidiary 31.03.2007 31.03.2006

India Infoline Distribution Company Ltd. 100% 100%

India Infoline Insurance Services Ltd. 100% 100%

India Infoline Commodities Pvt. Ltd. 100% 100%

India Infoline Investment Services Pvt. Ltd. 100% 100%

India Infoline Insurance Brokers Ltd. 100% 100%

India Infoline Housing Finance Ltd. 100% –

India Infoline Commodity DMCC. 100% –

Moneyline Credit Pvt. Ltd. 100% –

India Infoline Media & Research Services Ltd. 100% –
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF INDIA INFOLINE LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF INDIA INFOLINE LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

of the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2007 and Profit and Loss Account for the year ended March 31, 2007.

N SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT (Contd.)

17)  Basic and Diluted Earning per share ["EPS"] computed in accordance with Accounting Standard (AS) 20 'Earnings per share"

18) Figures pertaining to subsidiary companies have been reclassified wherever necessary to bring them in line with parent company's financial

statements

19) Figures for the previous year have been regrouped/reclassified wherever considered necessary.

As per our attached report of even date

For Sharp & Tannan Associates For India Infoline Limited

Chartered Accountants 

By the hand of 

Tirtharaj Khot Nirmal Jain R Venkataraman Kapil Krishan Nimish Mehta 

Partner Managing Director Executive Director Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

M. No. 37457 

Place: Mumbai 

Dated : April 25, 2007

Particulars 2006-07 2005-06

BASIC
Profit after tax as per Profit and Loss account A 756,156,031 489,264,914
Number of Shares Subscribed B 46,334,726 42,510,382
Basic EPS (Rupees) A/B 16.32 11.51
DILUTED
Profit after tax as per Profit and Loss account A 760,598,084 489,264,914
Number of Shares Subscribed 46,334,726 42,510,382
Add: Potential Equity Shares on Account conversion of 
Employees Stock Options, Promoter warrants,OCB etc. 4,554,619 2,052,091
Weighted Number of Shares Outstanding B 50,889,345 44,562,473
Diluted EPS (Rupees) A/B 14.95 10.98

Particulars As at 31.3.2007 As at 31.3.2006
(Amount in Rupees)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net profit before taxation, and extraordinary item 1,146,013,866 718,062,807

Adjustments for:

Depreciation & amortisation 149,202,302 85,595,841

Provisions for gratuity 8,605,343 1,954,599

Provisions for leave encashment 8,875,641 2,684,174

Interest income (47,088,218) (18,043,523)

Share of profit in partnership firm (9,791,915) (4,018,487)

Loss / (Profit) on sale of fixed assets – –

Interest expense 86,400,452 65,098,365

Tax (Paid) / refund (322,088,230) (237,136,339)

Operating profit before working capital changes 1,020,129,241 614,197,436

(Increase) / Decrease in Sundry Debtors 1,732,755,497 (2,429,801,272)

(Increase) / Decrease in Loans & Advances (2,045,576,256) (1,325,172,205)

Increase / (Decrease) in Provisions (59,316,048) (3,929,121)

Increase / (Decrease) in Current Liabilities (260,290,399) 1,997,841,496

Cash generated from operations 387,702,034 (1,146,863,666)

Cash Flow before Extraordinary Item 387,702,034 (1,146,863,666)

Capital Reserve written back – –

Net cash from operating activities 387,702,034 (1,146,863,666)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of fixed assets (552,099,336) (210,169,085)

Purchase of intangible assets (28,802,780)

Purchase of Investments (29,455,910) (234,812,211)

Pre-acquisition Profit on purchase of Moneyline Credit Pvt. Ltd. (96,469)

Share of profit in partnership firm 9,791,915 637,165

Sale of fixed assets – –

Interest received 47,088,218 18,043,523

Net cash from investing activities (524,771,583) (455,103,388)
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INDIA INFOLINE LIMITED

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement For the year ended March 31, 2007

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF INDIA INFOLINE LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

Particulars As at 31.3.2007 As at 31.3.2006
(Amount in Rupees)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from issue of share capital 709,486,990 1,053,405,777

Conversion of Optionally Convertible Bonds (699,999,990)

Proceeds from issuance of minority share capital 2,978,409 100,000

Deferred employee compensation 10,967,210 –

Foreign exchange fluctuation (587,955) – 

(Repayment) / Proceeds of long-term borrowings 713,220,068 1,296,405,754

Equity share warrants issued – 44,200,000

Dividend paid (170,595,174) (87,848,760)

Interest paid (86,400,452) (67,209,573)

Net cash used in financing activities 479,069,106 2,239,053,199

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 341,999,557 637,086,145

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period (see note 1) 776,074,122 138,987,977

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period (see note 1) 1,118,073,679 776,074,122

Opening Cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand and balances with banks 804,052,316 173,010,338

Short-term investment 5,218,897 1,317,300

Less: Bank Overdraft (33,197,091) (35,339,661)

776,074,122 138,987,977

Closing Cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand and balances with banks 1,266,759,432 804,052,316

Short-term investment 217,000 5,218,897

Less: Bank Overdraft (148,902,753) (33,197,091)

1,118,073,679 776,074,122

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 341,999,557 637,086,145

As per our attached report of even date

For Sharp & Tannan Associates For India Infoline Limited

Chartered Accountants 

By the hand of 

Tirtharaj Khot Nirmal Jain R Venkataraman Kapil Krishan Nimish Mehta

Partner Managing Director Executive Director Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

M. No. 37457 

Place: Mumbai 

Dated : April 25, 2007

1. Cash flow statement has been prepared under the Indirect Method as set out in the Accounting Standard (AS-3) "Cash Flow Statement"

issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

2. Previous year's figures have been re-grouped / re-arranged wherever considered necessary.

US GAAP
Consolidated

Financial Statements

US GAAP financial statements are available under the Investor Relations
corner on our website

http://www.India Infoline.com/investors/USGAAP2007.pdf

In line with our endeavour to maintain the highest standards of Corporate

Governance and transparency; although not mandated by law, 

we get our financial statements audited under 

the United States Generally Accepted Accounting Practices (US GAAP). 

These are the accounting standards accepted across the globe.
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Corporate information
PLEASE FILL IN ATTENDANCE SLIP AND HAND IT OVER

AT THE ENTRANCE OF THE MEETING HALL.

INDIA INFOLINE LIMITED
Registered Office: Bldg. No. 75, Nirlon Complex, Off Western Express Highway, Goregaon (East), Mumbai – 400 063.

Joint shareholders may obtain additional attendance slip on request.

NAME AND ADDRESS OF THE SHAREHOLDER: _______________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

Regd. Folio No./ DP ID/ Client ID: ___________________________________________________________________________________

No. of Shares held: _______________________________________________________________________________________________

I hereby record my presence at the 12th ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the Company held on the June 20, 2007 at 2:30 p.m.

SIGNATURE OF THE SHAREHOLDER OR PROXY* :____________________________________________________________________

*Strike out whichever is not applicable

Folio No./ DP ID/ Client ID : ________________________________________________________________________________________

I/We ____________________________________________ of _____________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

being a member/members of INDIA INFOLINE LIMITED hereby appoint __________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________ of _______________________________________________________or 

failing him ________________________________________________ of ___________________________________________________

____________________________________________________________________as my/our proxy to vote for me/us and on my/our

behalf at the 12th ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the Company held on the June 20, 2007 at 2:30 p.m. or at any adjournment

thereof.

Signed this .................................................... day of .................................. 2007

NOTE: The Proxy must be returned so as to reach the Registered Office of the Company not less than 48 hours before the time

of holding the aforesaid meeting. The Proxy need not be a member of the Company. 

PROXY FORM

INDIA INFOLINE LIMITED
Registered Office: Bldg. No. 75, Nirlon Complex, Off Western Express Highway, Goregaon (East), Mumbai – 400 063.
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